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5

6

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

7

order.

8

Carroll, Kane, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares,

9

and Nishiki present.

10

Budget and Finance come to

I'd like to recognize Councilmembers

Excused are Members Johnson

and Hokama.
Yeah, I know.

11
12

ITEM NO.1:

13

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

FISCAL YEAR 2005 BUDGET (C.C. 03-265)

14

testimony.

15

Corn.

Comments.

We'll start with public

Dr. Arthur Medeiros, followed by Ruth

. . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

16
17

(Gavel.)

MR. MEDEIROS:

Thank you, Councilperson Nishiki.

Aloha

18

nui, Councilpersons.

19

are thriving.

20

admirable job these past few years during very tough

21

times.

I heard about your late night session last

22

night.

You are to be thanked and congratulated.

23

I hope you and your families

I feel the Council has dOne an

I am asking that the Council consider not

24

reducing the budget of the Maui Nui Botanical Garden

25

by $25,000 as is currently proposed.

Maui Nui
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1

Botanical Garden is an excellent example of an

2

entity that makes Maui unique and proud.

3

important Maui resource for both visitors and

4

locals.

5

tourism, especially to those ever more frequent

6

visitors who arrive by

7

much needed, high quality, and I'd say really

8

culturally appropriate activity in Central Maui.

q

The Hawaii plants and their role in culture, which

It is an

Maui Nui Botanical Gardens support regional

cruis~

ship, by supplying a

10

are key pieces of the garden, are a taste of real

11

Hawaii most comparable to a museum.

12

Maui Nui Botanical Gardens contribute

13

critical technical expertise in the replanting of

14

rare Hawaiian species.

15

restoration, this is a project I work with, of the

16

extirpated Ma'o-hau-hele, it's the State flower,

17

yellow hibiscus, which was gone from Haleakala, but

18

reintroduced at Pukali in 2003 in cooperation with

19

Maui Nui Botanical Gardens.

20

Gardens support the unique local and Hawaiian

21

culture of Maui.

22

local high schools, they are working to enrich our

23

next generation of local Maui youths.

24
25

Just one example is the

the

Maui Nui Botanical

Working with students at MCC and

The $25,000 that the budget has been reduced
has been described to me as the tipping point, the
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reduction of the critical mass that this endeavor
2

requires to keep functioning as a free and vital

3

service to Maui residents and visitors.

4

provided to the Maui Nui Botanical Garden will

5

clearly be leveraged and add to Maui's economy.

6

do I know this?

7

partners working in the replanting of rare Hawaiian

8

species.

9

the garden with US Fish and Wildlife Service.

10

Monies

How

Because I'm one of the leveraging

I have special pending grants working with

Like the Maui Arts and Cultural Center, Maui

11

Nui Botanical Garden adds the character to Central

12

Maui that is very much appreciated.

13

I very much appreciate your past support to

14

the garden.

15

discuss this.

16

consideration.

17

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

18

Feel free to contact me any time to
Thank you for your attention and

Thank you, Mr. Medeiros.

Any questions for Mr. Medeiros?

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

No.

20

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Seeing none -- Seeing none, thank you

21

again, Mr. Medeiros.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

23

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

MR. MEDEIROS:

Wayne.

Oh, excuse me.

Jo Anne.

Good morning, Art.

Good morning, Jo Anne.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
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1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And thanks so much for all that

2

you do.

3

of a grant or monies that will be coming as a

4

pass-through through the Department of Water Supply?

5

Because that is why the item was reduced by the

6

25,000.

7

MR. MEDEIROS:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

MR. MEDEIROS:

10
11

No.
Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Ruth Corn, representing Business

Research Library.

She's the library director.

Good morning.
MS. CORN:

Good morning, Wayne Nishiki, Council -- and

14

Councilmembers.

15

late-night efforts.

16

week, and it is very commendable.

17

Are you aware

Are you aware of that?

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

12
13

The question that I have is:

Again, thank you for your
I've been hearing about you all

I apologize that I could not attend Council

18

chamber hearings in person earlier this week.

19

in Honolulu attending the 17th Annual SBA awards

20

banquet to receive the 2004 State of Hawaii award

21

for Business Research Advocate of the Year.

22

the only Statewide winner from the island of Maui.

23

I was nominated locally by a business banker from

24

the Bank of Hawaii.

25

were in Honolulu to participate in the ceremony,

I am

My staff and my administrator

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

along with some of you who are here today, I

2

understand.
My purpose in this memo is to implore you to

3

4

reconsider the full funding of 110,000 for the

5

Business Research Library that was made in the

6

earlier budget request.

7

staff, I wish to thank the Council for supporting

8

the Business Research Library through the years.

9

With your support, we have been able to provide

On behalf of myself and my

10

market share, economic, and statistical information

11

from resources that the average person has no way to

12

access.

13

hard-to-find information for our local businesses,

14

for our farmers,

15

government departments, to the Mayor's Office, and

16

even to Council members working on local studies or

17

hearings.

We provide data, statistics, and

for nonprofits, to various Maui

Being geographically located and

18
19

electronically connected in the Technology Park, we

20

are able to provide not only scientists and

21

engineers working on grants to continue their

22

operations on Maui, but we are able to leverage our

23

information to the whole spectrum of Maui businesses

24

with competitor industry research and development

25

needs.

The BRL is the only library in the State

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

with this unique combination of business, commercial

2

databases, plus advanced level PhD scientific and

3

engineering databases, plus our status as a census

4

library.
However, not all of these resources are free.

5

6

We have not had an increase beyond 100,000 for 12

7

years.

8

reference tool costs have risen significantly.

9

example, the 18-volume Small Business Source Book

10

that is utilized with almost every request we get

11

costs $405.

12

$155.

13

that are put out by the SBA that cost $75 each, and

14

for the Maui Business Resource Center we have

15

identified about 90 of those that we'd like to

16

purchase.

17

when you count that they're $75 apiece.

18

just a few examples.

19

provider fees, automated electronic archives are all

20

costs that must be borne annually.

21

the point that the most needed tools have not been

22

updated in five years.

For

The Annual Business Plan Handbook costs

There are sets of entrepreneurial handbooks

23

MR. TAGUCHI:

24

MS. CORN:

25

In the meantime our rent, personnel, and

That comes up to thousands of dollars
These are

Business ratio books, database

It has come to

Three minutes.

Businesses need current information, not

five-year-old data.
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9

We dare not shave money from our database

1
2

Maui County Databook Project, that is just too

3

valuable.

4

obtain that from the University of Hawaii, the law

5

libraries, so we're very popular with other

6

archives.

I have a list of the people who want to

7

I'll just cut to the end and say that

8

personnel expenses, collection renewals, and

9

expanded services for the NCBRC, these are key areas

10

that need support.

11

10,000 to our 110,000 total.
Thank you for your time.

12
13

Please consider restoring the

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

14

Thank you.

Any questions for Ruth?

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

Ms. Corn.

19

percent of the -- your overall budget does that

20

represent?

Charmaine.
Yes.

Thank you for being here,

Of that 110,000 that's requested, what

21

MS. CORN:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

MS. CORN:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

Yeah.

That's about a third of our budget.
About a third.

The rest of it is Federal and State.
Oh, okay.

So the Federal and

State does participate in --
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1

MS. CORN:

Yes, they do.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

MS. CORN:

this project.

Okay.

The problem is they have not funded to the full

4

level.

And we depend on a Federal match from the

5

Federal government depending on what we get from the

6

State, so we have not had any increases for the past

7

three years.

8

throughout the network.

And we've had to reduce staff
Here in my library we have

lost two people, so we're down to three, my admin.
10

assistant and my researcher and myself.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

MS. CORN:

13

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

14

Thank you.
Any other questions?

Seeing none,

thank you.
Janet Allan.

15
16

Thank you, Ms. Corn.

MS. ALLAN:

Good morning, Counci1members.

I seem to have

17

forgotten my glasses, so I am not sure if I can even

18

read my own writing.

19

for all that you have done for Maui Nui Botanical

20

Gardens.

21

Botanical Gardens.

22

But, anyway, I do thank you

I am president of the Board of Maui Nui

And endangered and almost extinct native

23

plant species can't get up here and plead with you.

24

They can't even whisper to you.

25

native plants in our nurseries that are on the brink

We have a few
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1

of extinction.

2

the wild.

3

the brink.

4

There are only a handful of them in

We're trying to propagate them back from

We just have one full-time Nursery Curator

5

and a few stalwart volunteers helping her.

6

one full-time Volunteer Coordinator who produces our

7

quarterly newsletter, does all of the office work,

8

and directs our volunteers.

9

Director, Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond, who is at a

10

Hawaii Museums Association Conference on the Big

11

Island this week and couldn't be here, is in charge

12

of our AmeriCorp volunteers, our MCC Service

13

Learning students, and at-risk Baldwin High School

14

students who are now working on our hale

15

landscaping.

16

We have

Our full-time Executive

And, of course, Lisa also directs all of our

17

events, like the recent Earth Day event where over

18

1,000 Maui people learned about our island ecology

19

from 16 organizations on our grounds.

20

kids had a lot of fun with all of the Hawaiian games

21

and everything that we had there.

22

sold over $4,000 worth of nonendangered native

23

species, 25 different species, actually, that day.

24

Lisa also gives tours of the grounds every day to

25

school classes, MCC classes, our visitors, and

And a lot of

On that day we
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1

colleagues from botanical gardens allover the

2

world.

3

We have just one part-time staff person, and

4

he is in charge of keeping the grounds, our 5 acres

5

of grounds in pristine condition at all times.

6

Those of you who have visited the gardens know that

7

he is doing a full-time job in a part-time position.
The $75,000 that you have cut US to in your

8
9

budget simply isn't enough to keep our staff going.

1u

Our overall budget is over $200,000, and we have a

11

hard time --

12

MR. TAGUCHI:

13

MS. ALLAN:

Three minutes.
-- with the 75,000 you gave us last year.

14

It's gone, and it will be July or later before any

15

more funds are available from the County.

16

few generous donors, 300 or more membership --

17

members, a few small grants, and we sell plants and

18

T-shirts.

19

partner in this major County park.

20

help.

21

lot.

22

We have a

And the County is supposed to be our
We need your

Even just 10 or $15,000 more would help a

I have not -- We have not received any

23

paperwork about the $25,000 from the Department of

24

Water Supply that Jo Anne talked about.

25

that they might be, but we don't know that.

So we heard

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

I am here to ask you to please up our grant from the

2

County as much as you can.
Thank you very much.

3

4

It would help a lot.

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Questions for Janet?

anyone else wishing to testify?

Seeing none,

If not, Members,

6

this Committee is in recess 'til 10 o'clock.

7

(Gavel.)

8

RECESS:

9

RECONVENE:

10

9:19 a.m.
10:06 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel.)

Let us bring the Budget and

11

Finance Committee meeting back to order, please.

12

Good morning, Members.

13

assisting the Chair once more this morning.

14

Thank you, Mr. Nishiki, for

Members, you have the new handout the staff

15

worked hard to prepare.

16

this time the difference of where we are, and we

17

have not finished round one, compared to the Chair's

18

proposal, we are approximately $7 million short.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I will tell you that at

Wow.

So we have our challenges ahead for today,

21

tomorrow, and whatever it takes to complete our

22

responsibility to produce a budget for the County of

23

Maui for the Fiscal Year 2005.

24
25

We have one more person that has requested to
give testimony this morning, since opportunity is
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1

still open to anyone.

2

person that we do have, I'd ask if there is anyone

3

else wishing to provide testimony this morning, the

4

29th of April, 2004, please make yourself known to

5

the Committee and we will provide anyone their

6

opportunity to provide comment.
At this time I'd like to ask for a Mr. Loren

7
8

9
10

So before I call the last

Lapow.
MR. LAPOW:

Lapow.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Lapow.

Thank you.

I'm sorry for the

11

mispronunciation.

12

forward, state your name for the record, i f you

13

represent an organization, and you have three

14

minutes to share your comments.

15

At the three-minute mark, the Staff will inform you,

16

and then you have up to a minute to conclude.

17

Lapow.

18

MR. LAPOW:

Mr. Lapow, if you would come

Good morning, Council.

And if you need

Mr.

My name is Loren

19

Lapow.

I'm with the Maui Hero Project of Aloha

20

House.

I know I have spoken to you before.

21

just got these two letters in the last couple days,

22

and they're from kids, and I

23

them to you guys before making your final decisions.

And I

just wanted to bring

24

One is from a student Upcountry.

25

"I graduated from the Maui Hero Project and
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1

now I am an ali'i.

2

because it's fun and it keeps me busy from all those

3

bad things.

4

we do.

5

and help me to stay away from my bad influence

6

friends that I used to hang out with.

7

helped me a lot and I enjoy this good program.

8

Please help us so we can continue and do more good

9

things."

All these things get me out of the streets

It really

I'm sure

you understand.
The second one is from a high school student.

12
13

I like adventures and the things that

I've got to leave the names out.

10
11

I really enjoy this program

She worked really hard on this letter.
"I am writing you because I feel very

14
15

strongly about the Maui Hero Project.

16

me and my family a lot over the last few years.

17

learned things about myself and my culture and about

18

others, too.

19

only thing we have that we can do; otherwise we

20

might be getting in trouble or not doing anything at

21

all.

22

to have a place to call home."

23

It has helped
I

For a lot of us Heros, this is the

Please support the program so we can continue

"When I came to Maui Heros, I didn't get

24

along with my family at all.

They never paid much

25

attention to me except to make me clean the house or
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1

take care of my little brothers and sisters while

2

they sat around or partied at night.

3

didn't do things right, they would yell at me and

4

tell me I was no good.

5

hit me for my brothers and sisters when they were

6

mad.

Then if I

Sometimes they would even

I didn't think that they loved us at all."
"School wasn't much better for me, either.

7

A

8

lot of times I would come late because I had to walk

9

because I missed the bus trying to get my sisters

10

and brothers ready for school.

11

would walk them all to school and then go to mine.

12

Mostly I was tired when I got there because it was

13

hard to sleep at my house because there is a lot of

14

yelling.

15

that good because I had a hard time focusing on my

16

work.

17

into fights a lot.

18

usually just argue with each other."

19

I would walk -- I

Even when I tried at school, I didn't do

Other kids would tease me and I would get
I had friends, but mostly· we

;'The school counselor showed me about the

20

Maui Hero Project and I really wanted to join.

She

21

talked to my parents and so did Jose.

22

said I could go.

23

home happy.

24

When things were crazy at home, I would just focus

25

on going to the next adventure with Jose guys."

Finally they

When I started going, I would come

I told everyone about our adventures.
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1

17

"One day Jose came over after program and

2

talked to my parents.

3

and if he could do anything for us.

4

talked to my family every week, and things started

5

getting better.

6

gave me leis and stuff.

7

be better at home.

8

too."

9
10

MR. TAGUCHI:
MR. LAPOW:

He told them I was doing good
Jose came and

Everyone came to my graduation and
Since then, things seem to

I'm doing better at school,

Three minutes.
"I'm not tired because my auntie guys help me

11

at home more and wake me up in the morning.

12

says I'm their hero.

13

Jose

School is good because I can

'focus on my work and have other friends from the

14

program.

15

we talk about them when we go with Loren for

16

graduate days.

17

the program, but we don't mind because we like to

18

work together.

19

Hana once a month."

20

We don't fight too much, and when we do,

Now mostly we do work when we go to

For fun we go on weekend trips to

"The Maui Heros have become like ohana to me.

21

They're there to talk to when I feel down and also

22

to have fun with, too.

23

care of the aina and living together on camping

24

trips just like a real ohana.

25

but Loren and Jose help us to talk about it instead

We work hard together taking

Sometimes we fight,
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1

of getting crazy."
"Sometimes somebody goes through real hard

L

3

times, like somebody dying, then everybody cries and

4

shares deep personal things about their lives.

5

we go back to school and we see each other in the

6

halls, we look at each other and remember those

7

times and we smile because we know what it means to

8

be part of the Maui Hero Project.

9

that the Maui Heros are all that a lot of us kids

10

have."

11

MR. TAGUCHI:

12

MR. LAPOW:

When

I know for me

Four minutes.
"Jose and Loren really care about us and we

13

feel safe to go with them and learn about each other

14

and ourselves.

15

they need to still be there for us and other kids."

16

I hope you can give them the money

Thank you again for your consideration for

17

what we feel like is a really important program.

18

Mahalo.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20
21

Any questions for the testifier this morning
on his testimony, Members?

22

MR. LAPOW:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

25

Thank you, Mr. Lapow.

Thank you again.
Thank you very much, Mr. Lapow, for being

present.
Last opportunity for today, the 29th of
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1

April, anyone else wishing to give testimony?

2

Seeing none, testimony is closed for today.
.

3
4

MR. AGSALOG:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

MR. AGSALOG:

7

. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY .

Mr. Chair.
Budget Director.
May I say a few words, Mr. Chair, before you

start your second round on your

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

MR. AGSALOG:

on the budget?

It depends on what.
Just to clarify some items that you -- the

10

Committee discussed yesterday, Mr. Chair,

11

specifically in the transportation, if that's at all

12

possible.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any objections, Members?

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

MR. AGSALOG:

No objections.

Okay.

Mr. Agsalog.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

And I really

17

applaud you for the wonderful discussion you guys

16

had yesterday with regards to transportation.

19

when I was listening, I didn't hear anyone that did

20

not want mass transit.

21

way that the -- the body want to go, but we cannot

22

have mass transit when we have big buses running

23

with one passenger, that's not a mass transit.

24

25

I think mass transit is the

Mr. Chair, I know that we had two parts.
want to clarify the two parts where we had two
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matching funds for the buses.

2

transit, which was the 250,000, and the other 400

3

was for the specific specialty needs.

4

Administration point of view, Mr. Chair, we want to

5

separate the two type of transportation because the

6

public transportation is the one that the

7

Transportation Department was, I think -- was

8

created for, because the specialty program was

9

already running then.

10
11

One is for the public

And in the

And we want to support that

and keep going.
So, Mr. Chair, when I was listening to you

12

yesterday, they are not the same.

13

different type of program.

14

program right now called transportation, mass

15

transit, if you will, run by a very, very new

16

department.

17

department for a long time, and I think we need to

18

give them a chance.

19

It's two

We have a very young

And I think we have not created a

Mr. Chair, I would really like to see if you

20

guys can reconsider looking at the marketing part of

21

the proposed budget for the mass transit, because

22

that's what they were doing.

23

study by KAKU and Associates on page 13 under

24

Executive Summary, which is transmitted to you on

25

December 19, 2003, and they have eight points there

And following the
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that they're following.

2

which says that action No. 1 that they should do is

3

to confirm that bus service on the island of Maui be

4

provided in a manner that equivalent to at least

5

three routes.

6

amount, I think that cannot go forward.

7

And their proposed budget,

And, you know, without a minimum

And the second item is -- Mr. Chair, is to

8

place operation of all public transportation service

9

under the administration of the Department of

10

Transportation.

And they're trying to figure out

11

how to do this.

They want this discussion with you.

12

They want your guidance, but they really need some

13

operation money to do this.

14

6, which Councilmember Tavares mentioned yesterday,

15

which is a part of the recommendation of the KAKU

16

program, which is the five-year transportation

17

development program that the Department is supposed

18

to create.

19

And goes on to item No.

But they really want to have this discussion

20

with you, Mr. Chair.

And I think if we don't give

21

them at least enough to work on, maybe they cannot

22

produce us what you -- you request -- I mean your

23

expectations, I should say.

24

that there would be some money for them to at least

25

do the first five bullets on the Executive Summary

And I was just hoping
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of the KAKU and Associates.
They also have secured last year,

2

I think,

3

some Federal money for buses, but, again, they need

4

your guidance as how do we want to go.

5

to be buses owned by the County and we just rent

6

rent

7

type of things that they really want guidance from

8

you.

9

want to involve this Council.

RFP the operation of it?

Is it going

Those are the

They don't want to just do it themselves, they
I think their

10

submittal of this particular study paid by the

11

County Planning Department, I think it's the steps

12

that we can direct the Department of Transportation,

13

Mr. Chair.
And with that, Mr. Chair, I really appreciate

14

15

it.

16

that we put in mind the land acquisitibn for the

17

Central Maui Waiale Drive if the numbers that you're

18

working on allow it, Mr. Chair, because that's a

19

very, very important component of the affordable

20

housing, and the Wailuku community parking lot, Mr.

21

Chair.

22

And the Mayor also asked me to just make sure

I know you guys have a hard, hard decision to

21

make because of the limited revenue that we have.

24

So, Mr. Chair, I really, really appreciate you

25

giving me a time to communicate what the Mayor's
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position in this particular budget.

2

Chairman.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Budget Director Agsalog.

4

Excuse me, Members.

5

Yes, Ms. Tavares.

6

Thank you, Mr.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Chair, if it's appropriate now, I

7

would like to ask for clarification on what he said

8

the purpose for that 400,000 was.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Please do.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

MR. AGSALOG:

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Would you clarify that.

Oh, the 400 -The 400,000 is 250,000 -- as you

13

were here last night, you know that the 250,000 we

14

reduced to the 197,000, I believe, which is what MEO

15

had indicated to us they needed for the match from

16

the Federal funds.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair, point of clarification,

real fast.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

So what is the 400,000 for?

State your point.
The point is that the 400,000 was

reduced to 197.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

24

MR. AGSALOG:

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Oh, the 400,000.

The 250 was deleted completely.

Yes.
Oh, okay.

Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

7

No, no.
I'm sorry.

Yeah, that's right.

It went the other way.
Okay.

5
6

So, I'm, sorry, I just wanted --

So the -- So what was the 250 for,

then?
MR. AGSALOG:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

The original

8

proposal -- Let's go back 250, 400.

The original

9

250 was going to be dedicated for public transit,

10

not the special service for the MEO.

We're trying

11

to separate the two services that we provide.

12

special service that MEO provide, we have been

13

providing bus replacement for them through matching

14

funds or we just give them a grant to buy their

15

vehicles.

16

have given them about $600,000 for bus purchases

17

last year.

The

As you have approved last year, also, you

18

We recognize that that is an important

19

component of this transportation, even though it's a

20

special transportation.

21

however, this is now the one -- the transportation

22

that we offer to the general public, we wanted to

23

put 250 for matching funds for the Federal dollars

24

that they think they're going to get.

25

already have that particular part of the Federal

The public transit,

I think they
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money.

However, they don't know if should we own

2

the bus as a County.

3

need to get from this body, the County Council.

4

I think that's why -- I think when you have the

5

when budget is finished, I think you have the

6

discussion, we will understand that they trying to

7

follow the KAKU and Associates recommendations and

8

see if we can proceed as stated on this particular

9

report.

That's the guidance that we
And

And they are willing to sit down with anyone

10
11

to discuss this, because I think the discussion

12

yesterday was very, very productive.

13

get everybody else's point of view, and I really,

14

really appreciated that, Mr. Chair.

15

hard thing to do, you know, what's come first, the

16

chicken or the egg, you know.

17

now or, you know

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

MR. AGSALOG:

You know, we

I think it's a

Should we put money

Thank you.

That -- you know, it's something that the

20

It's not an easy decision to do, but have it --

21

having the Transportation Department as a young

22

Department, I'd say there is -- I think if you want

23

it to succeed, we have to invest some money into it.

24

Because I don't -- I -- you know, I've been here 20

25

years, I think this is the first time that we have
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created a new department, so I don't know how to

2

create a new department.

3

now we create -- we created Department of

4

Transportation through the mandate of the Charter.

5

So how do we nurture this Department now?

6

give them too much money, or not enough money to

7

grow, I don't know.

8

Chair.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Shall we

It's a policy decision, Mr.

And thank you very much for the question.
Ms. Tavares.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

We have acquire Water, but

Thank you.

Any other questions for clarification?

Pontanilla.

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No.

Mr. Nishiki.
No.

Mr. Molina.
No.

Mr. Mateo.
No.

Ms. Johnson.
Danny, if I understand you

22

correctly, what you're saying is the 250, then,

23

would be the County's potential match for the

24

Federal funds that they're going after?

25

correct?

Is that
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2

MR. AGSALOG:

That's correct, Mr. Chairman.

That's

correct.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

All right.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.
Just for clarification, Chair.

6

Although that 250 was recognized as replacement

7

bus replacement money to go after Federal dollars,

8

you also stated that we do not have a position of

9

the Department as to whether or not we're going to

10

own buses or we're going to go replace somebody

11

else's buses.

12

point you made; correct?

13

MR. AGSALOG:

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

MR. AGSALOG:

We don't know that yet, that's the

I -- That's clear, Mr. Chair.
Thank you.

And that's the position at this moment.

16

That's my understanding.

17

that's been made since the last time I had an

18

opportunity to sit in a meeting with the Department,

19

then if a policy has changed, I don't have it.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

MR. AGSALOG:

If there is a decision

Okay.

But my understanding right now is they need

22

your guidance in how do we move forward.

Because

23

this is big amount of money, it's not just, you

24

know, a thousand here, a thousand there.

25

investment.

It's a big

And I think a collaborative effort
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between the Administration and the Council to

2

nurture this Department to grow I think is very,

3

very important.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5
6

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Carroll.
Any questions for clarification?

7
8

Thank you, Director.

Seeing

none, thank you very much, Budget Director.
Okay.

9

I believe last night we ended after

10

some discussion with Mr. Moto, Head Corporation

11

Counsel, regarding some of the requests regarding

12

his Department.

13
14
15

Staff, is there anything else we need to
consider in Corporation Counsel at this time?
MS. KOLLER:

Mr. Chair, we just had the other areas

16

regarding, you know, the potential move and the ADA

17

litigation.

18

going to get back with us today regarding whether

19

the ADA litigation should be in this Department.

20
21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I believe Corporation Counsel Moto was

Thank you.
Members, if I may direct you, then, to the

22

Department of Housing and Human Concerns on page 6.

23

We have on line 204 -- And let me just make sure

24

we're in the right category.

25

Okay.

It was either here or where?
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1

Thank you.

2

sure.

Thank you.

Okay.

I just wanted to make

You will see on line 204 as well as on page

3
4

9, line 306, this relates. to the saroe item, which is

5

the Halauaola 2005 World Conference on Hula being

6

hosted on the island of Maui.

7

recommendation to the members this morning is that

8

we reduce grants and disbursements for Cultural and

9

Arts by $50,000 and to create a specific line for

The Chair

10

the Ka 'Aha Hula '0 Halauaola 2005 World Conference

11

on Hula grant in the amount of $50,000.

12

comments?

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any

And move it, Mr. Chair?

It would be a separate item.
In which Department?

Under Housing and Human Concerns.

17

wait.

18

discussion whether it should go in Economic

19

Development --

We're -- Oh, I'm sorry.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Oh,

There's also

OED.

which is under the Office of the Mayor.

22

So I'm open to additional comments by the members.

23

I'm open to the Department.

24

this time to make it clear of our intent this

25

one-time specific line item deserves consideration

I just felt that at
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1

by the members, so I will ask members for their

2

comments.

3

Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

My take on it, Chair, is if in

4

Housing and Human Concerns we have an item that

5

talks about Cultural Preservation and Restoration,

6

my feeling is that it's more appropriate there.

J

the reason being is because this is a one-time event

8

that I think falls nicely into the Cultural

9

Preservation, because that really is the mission of

And

10

this whole idea, is to make sure that people from

11

around the world who are teaching the art of hula,

12

that they're all on the same page of understanding

13

what hula is.

14

by Ms. Holt-Padilla, she made it very clear that a

15

lot of these people who are teaching hula have never

16

been to Hawaii in their lives, and yet they're

17

teaching an art form that is from here.

18

whole idea is to perpetuate a part of our culture

19

that derived from here.

20

Many of these people, as was stated

So the

And so Economic Development to me is kind of

21

building blocks for economic purposes.

This I think

22

more is a building block to preserve cultural

23

purpose.

24

Concerns, Housing and Human Concerns, I think my

25

opinion is that it would fit where it is.

And because we have something in Human
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1

you, Chair, in reduction of 50,000 and making this a

?

separate line.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4
5

Thank you.

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson, any comments?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I just want to be clear.

Okay.

6

We've got 203, which is Grants and Disbursements to

7

Culture and Arts Grants, and then we also have 27,

8

which is Grants and Disbursements For Cultural

9

Preservation and Restoration.

And I guess because,

10

you know, just looking at the two titles, I think of

11

maybe like the fishpond project going under

12

preservation/restoration.

13

activity where you would be restoring something that

14

was not there or, let's say, was at risk of being

15

lost.

16

that, too, but I -- for me, I think because it's

17

culture and it's also art, I view hula as an art, I

18

would say it is appropriate I think under either

19

category, but I think it's more appropriate under

20

Cultural and Arts grants.

21

I think of more site-type

Now, granted, you know, in the culture fits

Also, they have 150,000, whereas the

22

restoration part, like the fishpond project, you

23

know, I -- I would prefer that there be left at

24

least 100,000.

25

203 and it would also leave the other 100,000 in the

So that would leave 100,000 in line
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line 303.

2

underneath the two.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4
5

So that's just my feeling, you know,

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you.

I would be

6

able to support your recommendation, Chair.

7

believe it is appropriate in its present location.

8

The focus of this world conference is to promote, to

9

perpetuate, and to share the culture with the world.

10

It's also an art that is, I guess, exclusive here in

11

Hawaii, and I believe the

12

at line 20 -- to leave it on 203 is the appropriate

13

thing to do, Chairman, and I'd support your

14

recommendation.

15
16
17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I

I believe to leave it

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yes, Chairman, I can support your

18

recommendation as long as it reaches the objective.

19

Now, again, for clarification, you're wanting to

20

create a separate line item, reduce Culture in

21

grants by 50,000, and create a special line item for

22

50,000 for the event.

23

can go with what you're suggesting as long as we

24

have the event, because I think it's something

25

that -- I would like to see it -- an event like this

Whichever way, Chairman, I
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happen more often, because it's perpetuates the

2

Hawaiian culture.

3

Hawaii is the Mecca of hula, so I think this is

4

something really great for the community, Chairman.

5

Thank you.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

Thank you.
Mr. Nishiki.

8

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

And, after all, the state of

No.

Mr. Pontanilla.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

I think it's

11

appropriate to leave it in the Human Services area

12

under Cultural and Arts, and I support the line item

13

of $50,000 for this hula conference.

14
15
16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chairman.

I think we

17

have had discussions in previous budgets about

18

having culture and arts in one place rather than

19

having them in two places, but one of the

20

considerations is that the Human Concerns Cultural

21

and Arts is handled by the GRC, and the Economic

22

Development Culture and Arts is handled by the

23

Department.

24

preference is for this.

25

we were going to do a specific proviso, that

So it would be like whatever the
So I was thinking that if
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probably it should be in the OED part, unless we're

2

going to move everything to Human Concerns.

3

would be my comment.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5
6
7

That

Thank you for that comment.
Mr. Carroll, any comments?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair, real fast, can I revise

something that I said?

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Sure, Mr. Kane.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I will reverse myself and state that

10

I will support what Member Tavares just stated and

11

to bring to light the fact that this is something

12

that we can have as a line item by itself.

13

think we can -- if that could be created under OED

14

for the purpose of -- as stated by Member Tavares, I

15

could be supportive of that as being another

16

appropriate place.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I

So forgive my earlier comments.

No, no.
I retract them.

Thank you.

No apology is necessary, Members.

I think

20

that is one of the great things of this Committee,

21

we have the opportunity to hear comments from eight

22

other members, and then we are able to try and make

23

the best decisions possible.

24
25

One of the Chair's comments why he prefers a
line item is, of course, it is very clear that --
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from what I have heard and what I have seen, is that

2

this Committee truly supports the ability to this

3

have this world conference move forward.

4

have heard that they have done yeomanship activity

5

in gaining funds outside of the County.

6

heard other efforts with private foundations, other

7

government entities.

8

can run between 700 and $1 million in costs, the

9

request before you is for $50,000, which is for your

I think we

We have

And that for a conference that

10

Chair one of the most refreshing requests we have

11

had in a long time.

12

they have worked to minimize that request before

13

you, and I can appreciate entities that approach it

14

in that manner.

And they have shown how hard

15

So I would ask that you would support the

16

Chair in a specific line item of $50,000, that a

17

reduction be done from the category of Culture and

18

Arts grants that will be reduced now to a revised

19

number of $100,000.

20

has heard all of you, and my preference is that the

21

line item is the key legislative intent.

22

we -- you choose to leave it in Housing and Human

23

Concerns, it will be through the administration of

24

the Department, not the Grants Review Committee,

25

just as much as it will be processed in a similar

And I would say we
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fashion, maybe not exactly, but similar fashion if

2

it goes to the Office of the Mayor Office of

3

Economic Development.
So I share that with you and, of course,

4

5

everyone has very valid comments, so the Chair is

6

not leaning one way or another.

7

that it deserves a line item consideration.

8

this time I will ask that we just set it up within

9

Housing and Human Concerns so we can finish up the

10

first round.

11

will do it in the next round.

So at

And if there is any adjustments, we

Ms. Johnson.

12
13

The key for me was

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

My question is we took out

14

$100,000 on page 9 on line I guess it would be 304

15

from Cultural Preservation/Restoration.

16

that.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

We deleted

Yes.
Then out of the -- Is it out of

the 150 you're going to take another 50?

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.
So that leaves only $100,000 --

Yes.
-- for all cultural.

I -- you

24

know, I have to say that it troubles me that with

25

the host culture trying to work with the host
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1

culture and accentuate alL of the things that are
really important here in the County of Maui, that we

3

would take that money.

4

conference is really, really important.

5

for consideration that if we reduce this amount

6

because we split the conference and this money this

7

year, that we create a line item that next year

8

50,000 be restored to Culture and the Arts.

9
10
11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I realize the hula
I would ask

That would be up to the sitting Council at

that point in time, Ms. Johnson.
CODNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I know, but I would like it noted

12

somewhere that -- You know, because when you

13

we look at what different levels of funding, so many

14

times it's easy to forget that, you know, we're

15

going from 250,000 down to 100,000, really, in this

16

particular category.

17

able to qualify for grants, whether it's Lahaina

18

Restoration Foundation or it's another restoration

19

group, that means the pot of money, it got cut in

20

more than half for them, and that's hard for me to

21

accept.

22

but, you know, I just would like people to think

23

about that.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

when

So those people that would be

And I know we're in a tough budget year,

Okay.

Thank you.

recommendation.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Okay.

You've heard the Chair's

Any objections?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Okay.

Let us move forward.

I believe we

3

are on page -- it's straddling page 8 and 9 under

4

Youth Centers.

5

MS. KOLLER:

Mr. Chair.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

MS. KOLLER:

Yes, Tamara.
Before we do that one, if we could go to

8

lines 247 and 251.

9

that was

I don't have these two shaded,

I'm sorry about that, but if you

10

remember on the Hana Head Start, we have received a

11

letter from MEO indicating that that program, the

12

preschool program, is being handled by Kamehameha

13

Schools.

14

that $12,500 on line 251 and add it to 247.

15

would allow them to expand their program at the

16

public housing in -- I believe it's in Happy Valley.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And what MEO is requesting is that we take

Thank you.

This

I believe that is the Kahekili

18

Terrace specifically, Mermers, which is right next

19

to lao Stream on the upper side.

20

Comments, Mr. Carroll?

21

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23
24
25

Could you give me a moment?

Thank you.
Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair, right now I'm in favor of

leaving the number as is as far as the $195,000 and
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2

not adding it.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

No, we're talking about more, I believe,

3

the --

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'm commenting on your Staff's

5

comments about adding the 12,500 to the existing

6

195,000.

7

delete line 251, my comment is that I would still

8

prefer to leave the working number at 195.

9

you.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

11

12

And my comment is to -- If we're going to

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Given the fact that we're $7

13

million over what we should be, I would prefer just

14

to leave that number right now at what it is, also,

15

at the 195.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

25

Chairman, I concur.

I would leave

it at 195.

20

24

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo.

17
18

Okay.

Mr. Molina.
No comment.

Mr. Nishiki.
I need to head in the opposite

direction, and so I support eliminating 12.5.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

I can

2

support the move of $12,500 to line 247 to provide

3

more families to have this opportunity as far as

4

getting to the Head Start.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

12,500.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

6

7

That's a school program.

I'll support the deletion of the

Mr. Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Thank you, Chair.

Excuse me.

11

That $12,000 originally two years ago was taken out

12

of what is now line 215, Grants and Disbursements

13

for Hana Human Services.

14

was removed from there to be a line item where it's

15

at now, and that's where that $12,000 came from.

16

would hope that there would be some consideration

17

toward putting it back toward Grants and

18

Disbursements for Hana Human Services.

19

where if the members -- rim sure the Chair

20

remembers, because you proposed it two years ago.

21
22
23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

At that time that $12,000

I

And that's

It seems such a long time ago,

doesn't it?
Okay.

Hearing comments from all the members,

24

at this time the Chair will recommend that line 247

25

remain 195.

We shall delete line 251.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Okay.

And we'll see where we are at the

3

end.

We need to finish up all the remaining

4

considerations at this time.
Let us move to the bottom of page 8, Members,

5
6

that straddles the top of page 9 on the Grants and

7

Disbursements for Youth Centers.

8

members with a similar consideration, so we'll have

9

both members give comment.

10
11

We have two

First we will let Ms.

Johnson give her comment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

I think that previously I

12

gave comment about the whole pot of money going to

13

the Youth Centers, and actually Boys and Girls Club

14

will have to cut staff.

15

to if we don't at least try to maintain some level

16

of funding.

17

the pot of money has remained level for such a long

18

period of time, I think that for my purposes, if you

19

spend it on youth programs going in, you hopefully

20

will not have to spend it on drug court at some

21

future point in time, which is far more expensive

22

and which really doesn't address the issue of

23

prevention.

24

additional amount of money to Youth Centers.

25

you.

That's what it comes down

And because they have remained -- or

So that is why I support adding an
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Kane.

2

3

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I'm willing to

4

stay with the 1.3 million at this time,

5

understanding the challenges that we have in the big

6

picture.

7

this case I also concur with Member Johnson's

8

comments about we need to take care of the youth,

9

and that's why I'm not willing to support a cut in

We're going to deal with some cuts.

So in

10

this area.

But if we can hold the line, at least

11

it's better than cutting, so I'll take that position

12

at this time.

Thank you.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Carroll.

14

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Support 1.3 million.

Ms. Tavares.
Support it as it is.

Mr. Pontanilla.
I'll support the 1.3.

Mr. Nishiki.
I have not heard that at 1.3 kids are

21

being turned back from any program.

So until I hear

22

that kids are being turned back because of the lack

23

of funding -- Again, as much as Jo Anne makes the

24

argument about taking care of our kids, since I have

25

not heard that kids are being turned away, I will
,
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2

support the 1.3 and not see any more adds.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Molina.

3

4

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

You

5

know, Chairman, growing up here, we had lots to do,

6

yeah.

~

very fortunate.

I

And today, seeing what the kids have, they're
And I guess anything can be

8

improved, but compared to when we were growing up,

9

they still have a lot more than what we had.

10

happy to stay at 1.3 as well, Chairman.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

So I'm

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo.
Chairman, I'll support the 1.3.

Thank you.
You know, even for your Chair, this is a very

15

difficult consideration.

I did see the request.

I

16

can tell you while I agree that the challenges of

17

our youth now are much different than when each of

18

us were young people -- And for some of us that was

19

just a short time ago, and for some it's been a long

20

time ago.

21

people now and what influences are around them and

22

near them at the schools and the parks are much

23

different than when we were young.

24

this because you might say, wow, the Chair is really

25

going the wrong way on this one, but, you know,

But, you know, the challenges our young

And I'm sharing
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1

me, I was fortunate.

I had a parent at home after

2

school.

3

into organized athletics as well as motivated me to

4

excel in academics.

5

always the discipline at the house and the family

6

was still the influence of our young people.

7

Times have obviously changed.

I had great peers that motivated me to get

And, of course, there was

Parents now

8

look at government, including the County, to assume

9

some parental supervision or guidance to our young

10

people because we are aware that their parents,

11

mostly both of them are not at home, are doing their

12

best to provide for our young people.

13

And for me, I get frustrated looking at how

14

much we need to put forward in substance abuse

15

programs, which is -- already we have problems.

16

I look at -- And, again, you have all kind comments

17

and that's why I tell you even for me I am very -- I

18

am having a hard time on this one since I am aware

19

that prevention, of course, is for us -- I would

20

assume all of us, from how I hear each member, the

21

preferred method.

22

much better than dealing with the situation.

And

If we can avoid a situation, it's

And while -- So what I will -- Personally, I
24

would support the $200,000 increase.

I have heard

25

the comments from all the members and, therefore,
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the Chair will say that we'll move the 1.3 forward,

2

but I just wanted to share my comments and how I

3

looked at this request.

4
5

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, Mr. Chair, and I know you've

6

already said what you said.

I want to put things

7

into perspective just a little bit when we get to

8

some other items.

9

Centers, they're providing a program.

When you look at the Youth
It's both

10

recreation/education.

The dollars that we put into

11

Youth Centers are matched.

12

tripled, quadrupled in many cases.

13

and Girls Club, what they bring, even Senator

14

Inouye, what he's brought to Paukukalo.

15

many resources in terms of the parents, actually,

16

the time that they devote to coming in and tutoring

17

the kids.

18

and Girls Club in West Maui.

19

Honor Society come in and actually work with the

20

kids.

They're doubled,
I look at Boys

There's so

And I can speak specifically about Boys
We had the Lahainaluna

21

So I can look at that and then I can look at

22

the money that we will spend on -- and I'll use the

23

example, playground equipment or playgrounds, and I

24

say, okay, now, yes, it provides opportunity, it

25

provides recreation, but it is not a program and it
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doesn't generate -- In one case for the -- it does

2

generate some matching funds, but it's like a

3

one-time thing.

4

thing, I would say would it be better to take

5

200,000 out of the Boundless Playground and then put

6

it into the Youth Centers, knowing that the kids,

7

many of who go to the Youth Center, will be right

8

near that facility.

9

that if the whole project can't be done at one time

So when I look at that kind of

And perhaps challenge the kids

10

or the community playground group can't go forward

11

with the entire thing, that it could be split up

12

into two segments.
So those are the kinds of things that I look

13

14

at, but one is a physical piece of equipment and one

15

is a program that really deals with the values and

16

the things that you're going to impart to the kids.

17

So I will support your decision, but I just want us

18

to think about what do we want to do with the money

19

and where is the best and highest use of our

20

dollars.

21

22
23

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Thank you.

Thank you.

And, Members, that would be part of the
challenge of the next round.
Yes, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah.

Thank you, Chairman, for my

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

47

BF 04/29/04

1

second and final time on this.

2

stance on this, at the very least we're not cutting.

3

And, you know, we have to find places where we have

4

to hold the line.

5

wake-up call for parents to get more involved, too.

6

Again, my -- for my

And this may also serve as a

There was a community association meeting

7

last week in Makawao, and the Police Chief was

8

emphasizing as it relates to crime and drugs and

9

youth, the key is the parents staying involved.

And

10

I know it's difficult for some nowadays where you

11

have both parents working, but we have to make time.

12

We've got to find time.

13

making time.

14

their kids' lives, whether it be having more meals

15

with them and sitting down and talk to them, I think

16

that can help, you know, as far as kids getting into

17

trouble or as a preventive measure.

18

And there are ways of

But the more parents stay involved in

For me, I would like to obviously see more

1~

money put into this as well, but, again, government

20

can't do everything.

21

holding the line on this maybe can serve as some

22

type of call to the parents and the aunties and

23

uncles and everyone else to get involved.

24

firm believer in that old proverb, it takes a

25

village to raise a child.

So the way I look at this,

I'm a

I'll leave it at that,
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2

Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Thank you.

Anyone else?

If not, as

3

indicated earlier, we shall at this time move 1.3

4

forward.
If we can now move to line 292, Members,

5
6

under Community Workday Program.

7

consideration by Ms. Tavares.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

We have a

Mr. Chair, at this time I would

like to withdraw that request, the 70,145.

I

10

believe we're in a cutting mode and we should be in

11

a cutting mode.

12

have another way to fund this group, and it is

13

through the Highway Beautification fund.

14

it's appropriate and when we talk about that fund,

15

will do my proposal.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And when

Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you.

We can skip over 306 on page 9.

We

20

have dealt with the Halauaola World Conference on

21

Hula.

22
23
24
25

I

Your opportunity will be provided.
Okay.

19

I will remove this because I do

If I may direct us to page 10, line 324, we
have a consideration by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

is for the Maui Hero Project.

This $60,000

This morning you
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heard the coordinator for the project read two

2

letters from two students.

3

hearings and we've heard principals and counselors

4

talk about this project in regards to how students

5

benefit, turning their negativity to positive.

6

They're very involved in Hawaiian culture and,

7

again, this is one way

8

that can turn anger into a positive result.

9

supporting this project.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11
12

-7

We've gone out to public

this program is one way
I'm

Thank you for your comments.
Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chair.

I feel -- I

13

support this project, also.

I think it's a great

14

project, but I think that they should go through the

15

grants review process.

16

first time that County funding is being requested,

17

and I think that in fairness, actually, to all of

18

the other programs that are being conducted in the

19

County of Maui, that they should go through grants

20

review.

21

line item a couple of programs, both Women Helping

22

Women and Big Brothers, Big Sisters, and these are

23

programs that have been around for years and years.

24

And so to consider them for a line item, I don't

25

have a problem with that.

This is going to be the

And I know that we are being requested to

But considering something
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for the first time for County funding,

2

should go through the grants review process.

3

you.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Carroll.

6

Mr. Kane.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

I concur with the member from

Upcountry.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

10
11

Thank

Thank you for your comment.

5

7

I think it

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I also concur with Charmaine.

And

12

the other thing that is sad is when the Department

13

of Education, who was funding this program

14

previously, pulls money from the State when we

15

support so heavily through our Parks Department,

16

through Public Works, and many other ways the

17

programs that are funded through the DOE, this is

18

the kind of damage that gets done.

19

that they did yank the funding for this.

20

don't think at this point in time, as Charmaine

21

said, that it's fair to put this in with it being a

22

new program.

23
24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I am sad

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

No comments, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Molina.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, Chairman.

Just another

3

classic example of the State passing on their

4

responsibilities to the County.

5

appropriate process is going through the grants

6

review, Chairman, so I can support what Member

7

Tavares has recommended.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I believe the more

Thank you.

Mr. Nishiki.

Okay.

Grants review.
Any other comments before the Chair

11

makes his recommendation?

12

will be deleted and we will advise the program to

13

apply under the grants review program.
Members, line 326, consideration from Mr.

14
15
16

Seeing none, line 324

Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you.

Yesterday we

17

had Mr. Vicens, who responded to some of the

18

questions that the Chair had regarding the Big

19

Brothers, Big Sisters program.

20

wanted to reiterate at this particular point the

21

importance of this particular program to our island.

22

With 40 matches and 48 still waiting, the program is

23

a necessity.

24

record stands for the integrity that they provide in

25

helping our youth.

I think I just

I think the record stands -- their
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And once again, Chairman, I believe the

1

2

responses were adequate.

3

initial inquiry of the Chief Executive Officer, as

4

well as their additional funding sources.

5

Chairman, I ask for consideration for this

6

particular project.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

They responded to the

And,

Thank you.

Thank you.
I will reverse the order.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

Ms. Johnson.

I can support this because

10

Big Brothers, Big Sisters program has been around a

11

long time.

12

review process sufficient funding, which I think may

13

have led to some of the unfortunate circumstances

14

that occurred.

15

when, you know, you recognize the importance of the

16

role that an organization plays.

17

that I have seen what the kids that benefit from

18

this, you know, have really been able to accomplish.

19

So I support it.

20
21
22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

They did not get through the grants

So this is what happens, I think,

And I can tell you

Thank you.
Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair, I will support the Big

23

Brothers and Big Sisters.

I will ask for

24

consideration for a reduced amount of -- from the

25

$80,000.

I think through testimony yesterday and
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1

whether it was intended or not, Mr. Vicens, I think,

2

made it clear that there is going to be a coming

3

together of people who have invested years and years

4

of their time and energy in this program, and his

5

comments were whether we give them 80,000 or if we

6

don't give them anything, they're going to make it

7

work.

8

have their challenges and we have ours.

9

for me, I can be a part of passing on some

And I took that to heart, knowing that they
And I think

10

assistance to the program, but, again, we have our

11

challenges, too.
So, you know, what number -- I mean, if the

12
13

body feels 80,000, my comments are stated on the

14

record.

15

reduction.

16

air and say, well, I can support 50,000, but not

17

80,000.

18

I think we've been given the opportunity to hear

19

what was said in testimony that waS brought forward

20

by people who have shown a commitment to this group.

21

And no matter what, it's going to work and they're

22

going to make it happen.

23

who state they're going to do that.

24

can take that as their appreciation for their past

25

support and continued support.

And, you know, I don't know what type of
I could simply grab something out of the

And I don't think that's fair, either, but

And I trust in the people
So I think we

So those are my
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1

2

comments.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Thank you.
Mr. Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Thank you, Chair.

Whether 50 or

80,000, I support the program.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

I think that

we need to do all or nothing in this case, because

10

if we give them a small portion, smaller portion

11

than what they need for their entire budget, they

12

will be crossed off the list for the Grants Review

13

Commi ttee.

14

put a proviso in Community Partnership Grants,

15

as we put a proviso in the Culture and Arts Grant,

16

but that's like, you know, neither here nor there.

17

The other opt,ion that we may have is to
just

So what may -- what may survive or be able to

18

be survived, I'm not sure, we'd have to check with

19

Grants Review, that if we put in a portion in a line

20

item only for the Molokai program, that's another

21

possibility.

22

with Human Concerns if that would jeopardize the

23

rest of the grant, because I think from what I heard

24

in testimonies that if they get any portion of their

25

funds from the County, they are ineligible to apply

But I think we would have to check

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

55

BF 04/29/04

1

under Community Partnership Grants.

2

understanding.

3

then we have to do an all or nothing at this point.

4

If not, it will hurt them even more.

5

That is my

So if that is the understanding,

I would also like to say about the Big

6

Brothers, Big Sisters program, perhaps, I am very

7

biased in this organization.

8

charter founding member of Big Brothers, Big Sisters

9

many, many years ago, one of the charter members to

My father was the

10

found it.

11

program in Maui County back when it was established.

12

And I forget how many years old they are.

13

He was very adamant about having this

I have served on their board of directors for

14

a number of years and also was involved with

15

reviving the Bowl For Kids Sake event which had been

16

dropped by previous boards.

17

one organization that is working towards

18

self-sufficiency through their work with Savers.

19

And, you know, they didn't go into detail about

20

that, but they get a dollar amount from the pounds

21

or types or whatever of clothing that they deliver

22

to them.

23

Brothers, Big Sisters, and that is a lot of their

24

revenue.

25

indicated yesterday through testimony, is one that

I believe that this is

So the Savers buys,the clothing from Big

And that revenue stream, as I think was
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can increase quite a bit.

2

you know, make a plea to the public, you want to

3

help Big Brothers, Big Sisters, take your unused

4

clothing to all those drop boxes that are around,

5

around the place, or even to the Big Brothers office

6

at the -- across down there at Waiale Drive.

7

They are

-~

I believe that if we can,

They're serious, I believe, in

8

becoming self-sufficient, so I do not mind putting

9

in a line item at this time.

But, Members, realize

10

that I am -- I have a prejudice towards this

11

particular organization.

12
13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you.
I just was going to inform the Committee that

14

I was re-reviewing the County Code regarding the

15

grants program, and particularly the Grants Review

16

Committee if the Committee can adopt rules, but they

17

must follow Chapter 91 of the Hawaii Revised

18

Statutes.

19

regarding things such as capping grants such as not

20

allowing possible Council action in providing

21

partial funding and then being ineligible to apply

22

under the grants program.

I am not aware that they have done so

23

So it is something I think we'll do what we

24

can under budget, but maybe, Mr. Pontanilla, under

25

your leadership as Chairman of our standing
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committee, that you may need to follow up if they

2

have followed -- If they are following the

3

Administrative Procedures Act, it must go through a

4

public process, which includes a public hearing to

5

create such rules, if that is what they are relying

6

upon to do -- to set the caps as well as eliminating

7

considerations that go before them.
I would say at this time I would like to

8

9
10

finish the first round,

And hearing all comments, I

would say --

II

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

You went through everybody?

I'm sorry.

You're absolutel.y right.

I did

11

not give Mr. Pontanilla an opportunity and Mr.

14

Nishiki and Mr. Molina.

15

sorry, Members.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So Mr. Pontanilla.

Thank you, Chair.

I'm

I can

17

support the request made by the Big Brothers, Big

18

Sisters.

19

them as far as the program.

20

the l.eadership of Lynne Woods of the Chamber as well

21

as Chubby Vicens of A&B, they can bring back this

22

organization to where it was before.

23

support of the $80,000.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I think it's unfortunate what happened to
And I do believe with

So I'm in

Thank you.
Mr. Nishiki.
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VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I know by some of my actions and my

2

earlier statements as we hit this budget I may be

3

sounding like a hypocrite, but it is only because I

4

made up my mind at this point that I was going to

5

try to look at trimming this budget.

6

that everybody would have a hard time now in trying

7

to cut.

8

looking at any figure, but now when it comes to

9

cuts, I knew that we were going to hit a roadblock,

10
11

And I knew

It is easy to add, because you're not

Mr. Chairman.
You know, when I look at Big Brothers, Big

12

Sisters, one positive thing is that they do

13

fund-raising, and I think that's a big plus when I

14

look at an organization.

15

monies, also, froIn grants and I can't remember that

16

other organization that they get money from.

17

this point --

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I know they get other

At

Probably United Way.

At this point, because of what was

20

represented yesterday that we're going to make it

21

with or without, personally, I am going to say that

22

they go to the Grants Review Committee and I will

23

not support a line item for this group.

24

it's admirable that they go and fund raise, but at

25

the same time I'll wait to see at the end of round

I think
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two and three, and hopefully we can, you know, give

2

more to social service agencies because I realize,

3

again, that this is an area that our community needs

4

help.
So I would hope that all members can -- if

5
6

you feel the same way that I do, that we can look at

7

maybe increasing social services grants that we cut

8

on the big pod and -- but at this time I will not

9

support the line item.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11
12

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

I think we

13

have to give consideration to entities that have

14

proven themselves over the years.

15

Sisters, right now I liken them to being a boxer

16

who's just been knocked down on the canvas and

17

they're just trying to pick themselves off the

18

canvas and they need some assistance.

19

point for me because of their prior record in years

20

past, I am willing to support the 80,000, but if the

21

majority of my colleagues feels that this should be

22

trimmed, I would hope the figure is very minimal.

23

So that's my stance, Chairman, thank you.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Big Brothers, Big

So at this

Any other comments?
I have my concerns regarding this
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organization.

2

heard yesterday.

3

by the efforts of previous board members as well as

4

those that have been asked to assist, we are in a

5

I would say, to move on, the Chair will allow the

6

80,000 to stand at this time.

7

Any objections?

8

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I did hear the comments that you have
And while I am greatly encouraged

Okay.

No objections.

Thank you for each Members' comments.
Let us move to Department of Management.

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Chair~

Mr. Carroll.
Question.

Yesterday we talked

14

about when we got to Department of Housing and Human

15

Concerns we were going to address the Hana

16

affordable housing at this time, or wait until next

17

time?

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I would say you can bring it up at this

19

opportunity, Mr. Carroll, because I would like to

20

give the Committee, after we finish this portion

21

and -- which means round one is through, I would

22

like to get a very accurate number of where we stand

23

in relation.

24

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So I can proceed now?

Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Thank you.

Page.
That is on page 31, the proposal

4

in the Highways, and we would like -- I would like

5

to move it to page 10, line 316, Grants and

6

Disbursements for Self-Help Housing.

7

$50,000.

8

Highways at $225,000 for the Hana Self-Help Housing,

9

add 200 -- that $225,000, making it $275,000.

10
11
12
13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We have

I would like to move that one from

I'm sorry, Mr. Carroll.

Can you repeat

that last portion?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

I would like to move that from

Highways

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

the $225,000, and add it to the

16

$50,000 in line 316, Grants and Disbursements for

17

Self-Help Housing Development, bringing it to a

18

total of $275,000.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you for your consideration.

Mr. Kane.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

24

I have no comments.

Ms. Johnson.
Mr. Chair, I can support.

And I'm

not sure about the 50,000 that's already there, if
that was earmarked for anything specific.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

I would

62

BF 04/29/04

1

support perhaps raising -- instead of the 275,

2

raising it to 250 all together, so that there would

3

be the money for Mr. Carroll's program, plus a small

4

amount of money left in there.

5

the project is ready to go, there are families

6

waiting -- I was pleased to see all the information

7

that was given to us.

8

going to be where do we get this money from,

9

we're going to have to look at revenues.

I think that because

I think that the challenge is
and so

One

10

suggestion I would make at this time for where we

11

might look is I know we had cut the TAT down to 17

12

million.

13

we're putting in 200,000 more into this program,

14

perhaps adjusting that figure.

15

suggestion of where we might get the money.

16

you.

17

18
19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I would ask for consideration of -- if

That's one
Thank

Thank you very much for your comment.
Mr. Mateo.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you.

I can support

20

Member Carroll's request to move this item.

21

yesterday after we had Ms. Shay share a lot of

22

information to this body, I think it was really

23

refreshing because she has a track record of

24

accomplishments in helping to actually provide the

25

affordable housing components.

I support the
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1

project.

2

put on line 316 as requested.

3

leave it at that, Chairman.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I'm just going to

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

5

6

I still don't know what dollar value to

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, Chairman.

I think this

7

Council over this whole term has made an emphasis on

8

providing affordable housing for citizens throughout

9

this whole County.

So this is self-help, this is

10

not a total handout, the way I look at it, because

11

they're going to have to work, a lot of sweat

12

equity.

13

that will be benefiting is about 15, that's 15 less

14

families that have to wait for a house.

15

support this, Chairman.

So I believe that the number of families

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

So I can

Thank you.

Mr. Nishiki.
Yeah.

I didn't hear clearly.

If I

18

may ask the question, what was the additional 50,000

19

for, Mr. Chairman?

20
21
22

23
24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I can tell you that we were not given a

breakdown on what the money is being requested for.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

No, but wasn't it 225 or is it 250 --

2 -CHAIR HOKAMA:

225 is the request for the Hana Ranch

Affordable Housing Project.
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VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I thought he said 275.

He wanted to add it to the program of

3

self-help housing under Human Concerns, which

4

currently a request of $50,000 is still there.

5

there's 50 there, he wants -- Mr. Carroll --

6

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

So

For -- specifically for Hana?
No.

It's a request, but there has

8

been no explanation of what that request would be

9

for.

10

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla.

12
13

I just -- I just will support 225.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I can support the $225,000 as

14

requested by the Councilperson from Hana.

15

understand that the first phase will provide 15 lots

16

for self-help housing, and in total in the first

17

phase would be 52 lots that will be provided.

18

can support the member from Hana.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20
21

I

So I

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chair, I will support

22

the 225 for the Hana Affordable Housing Project and

23

not the addition of the 50,000.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yes, Mr. Molina.
Yeah.

Thank you, Chairman, for
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allowing me to speak again.

2

correct myself.

3

would benefit.

4

Fifteen lots to benefit 75 families,

5

better number.

6

Thank you.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

?:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

10

I just wanted to

I believe that I stated 15 families
I was getting the numbers mixed up.
so that's a

So I just wanted to correct myself.

Thank you.

(Inaudible) .

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

(Inaudible) .
Just to bring us up, under page 31,

11

which is CIP Bond Fund, last evening· we did delete

12

that project as a project.

13

you that the Chair does not view this one as a CIP

14

request, and, two, it is not a road project.

15

therefore Mr. Carroll is bringing it forward as a

16

grant consideration.

The Chair did state to

And

I

I would say at this time, because there has

17
18

been specific proposal with specific comments and a

19

verification of the success of the requester, which

20

is through Ms. Shay and her organization, the Chair

21

at this time will be recommending 225 to move

22

forward for self-help housing project, and earmarked

23

for the Hana Affordable Housing.

24

MS. KOLLER:

Mr. Chair.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

2

MS. KOLLER:

The word "Ranch" is (inaudible).

So as I understand, then, you would want a

3

proviso that the 225,000 shall be for the Hana Ranch

4

Affordable Housing Project?

5
6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I would just prefer to -- Yes, yes.

Yeah,

we'll proviso that way for now, for round one.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
Was it this -- Was it made clear that

10

this is not a Hana Ranch Affordable Housing Project,

11

it's a Hana Affordable Housing Project?

12
13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Excuse me.

Well, you know, I mean, we can

get very

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Technical.

-- nitty about it.

16

heard was one

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I think the comments we

Hotel (inaudible).

I still consider this a Hana Ranch project,

19

because, for one, Members, as we heard through

20

questions by members -- I think Mr. Nishiki hit the

21

head when he asked about donation.

22

there is no donation.

23

Ranch partners to do this type of projects, but they

24

still maintain ownership the land and the County is

25

not -- has no guarante$s that the remaining 85 acres

It was clarified

It is a dedication by the
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of the dedication will actually happen.

2

intention.

3

and doing is another.

4

Hana Ranch project.

And we all know intention is one thing,

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

Thank you, Chair.

recommendation at this time?
COUNCIL MEMBERS:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Okay.

10

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you very much, Mr. Carroll.
Thank you, Chair.

We shall move that forward to the next

round.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVAR8S:

16

So I consider this still a

Any objections to the Chair's

8

12

It is an

Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
Excuse me.

Moving that up there,

what are you doing with the 50,000?

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm only leaving --

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Oh, you're leaving it?

-- 225,000.
Oh, total?

Yes.
Okay.

So --

There is no 50.
Adding 175, then?

Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

I think it's only fair at this point in

3

time with financial considerations that we move

4

forward with those specific things that people have

5

come forward and explained why a dollar amount is

6

being requested.
Okay.

7

Let us move to the bottom of page 10

8

under Department of Management.

9

to move forward on.

We have some areas

Line 348, we have a

10

consideration from Mr. Pontanilla.

11

please.

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pontanilla,

Thank you, Chair.

This is one

13

of the decisions that I did in regards to your

14

instructions the first time in creating a balanced

15

budget.

16

services for the Department of Management.

17
18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So as far as line 348, I reduced the R&M

I'm just trying to understand the language.

It says "move to CIP."

Any additional comments,

~

19
20

21
22

Mr. -COUNCILME~BER

PONTANILLA;

No.

Can you disregard the

"move to CIP" portion?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

I am assuming, Mr.

23

Pontanilla, that we are looking as consideration

24

under 11-4 of the details?

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yes, sir.
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1
2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That in 2003 their actual expenditure in

this category was 3,268?

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, sir.

And that this year they are asking for -42,000.

-- 42,000?

Okay.

Yes.

Comments.

Ms. Tavares.

Oh, I can support that, Mr. Chair,

10

but you'll notice up above what we already talked

11

about and accepted was a reduction for Miscellaneous

12

Other Costs, 50,000 and -- Oh, that was equipment.

13

I'm just checking to see if I included that 50,000

14

or not in mine.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Chair, it wasn't.

It was not included in?
It was not included.

Thank you.

18

Mr. Carroll.

19

Mr. Kane.

20

Ms. Johnson.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

No comment.

Mr. Mateo.
No.

Mr. Molina.
No.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-,2090

70

BF 04/29/04

1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

7

Support.

Okay.

We shall move forward the deletion

of $20,000.

5
6

Mr. Nishiki.

Line 349, Professional Service.

Mr.

Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Similar to line 348, this is

8

one of the decisions that I made in regards to

9

creating a balanced budget as instructed.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Just rub it in.

(Inaudible.)

As I believe we are looking at page

13

11-4 of the details, Professional Services in the

14

year 2003 that we have an actual amount is $422.

15

This year's request is $60,000.

16

request is to eliminate the whole amount.
Comments, Members.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares.

I will support that, Mr. Chair.

Mr. Carroll.

20

Mr. Kane.

21

Ms. Johnson.

22

Mr. Pontanilla's

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

What is this, you know, actually

23

for?

Is it when we have to defend ourselves when

24

someone complains that something isn't handicapped

25

accessible, or is it trouble-shooting?

Is that your
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understanding, Mr. Pontanilla?

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Pontanilla, any comments?

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yes.

In regards to the heading

4

Litigation, I understand that last night we talked

5

about it and the Prosecuting -- not Prosecuting, but

6

Corporation Counsel is now reviewing this.

7

you'll note, the next line down is for ADA

8

Litigation, so this is where if we do have any

9

litigation in regards to ADA, that line will take

10
11

As

care of it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

My only comment, Mr. Chair,

12

is that if the Professional Service is to make

13

certain that our buildings are in compliance so that

14

we don't get litigated against, then what is more

15

prudent, to spend money to prevent litigation if you

16

can just review and go through all of the areas of

17

County property, or is it less expensive to

18

litigate?

19

know the answer, it is far less expensive to take a

20

preventive measure to prevent a much larger

21

expenditure later on.

22

And I can tell you, and I know you all

So this is one area that I would ask members

23

to seriously consider an ounce of prevention is

24

worth a pound of cure.

25

would try to maybe find out a little bit rnore about

And in this case I really
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1

the role or the monies that are expended in this

2

area.

3

costs of both litigation and then the massive

4

expenses that we're having to go through to do all

5

the studies to see that we're in compliance.

6

is something I question.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

And it could be because of all of the huge

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

12

recommendation.

Chairman, I'll support.

Mr. Molina.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

16

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo.

10

15

I'll support Member Pontanilla's

Mr. Nishiki.
I'll support only because he's got an

add on the next one.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

Okay.

Thank you.

Tamara, do we have additional information

18

regarding the Professional Services account in

19

Department of Management?

20

This

MS. KOLLER:

Can you recall?

I believe it included the two items that

21

Councilmember Pontanilla was suggesting to have

22

specific line items.

23

County Facilities Security Project are both included

24

in the 60,000 on line 349.

25

attempting to contact the -- Mr. Schwind, who

The ADA litigation and the

We are currently
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1

handles ADA compliance for the County, to get some

2

more information on what this line item is.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Chair.

Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
On the Professional Services,

7

they had indicated that $25,000 was for ADA

8

litigation and $35,000 for the security system.

9
10
11

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And we're just doing a line

item and it's a wash.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, I -- I am looking at lines 349, 350,

13

and 351 as a package.

14

know if Corporation Counsel with us this morning has

15

any comments, but I had -- it was my understanding

16

as your Chairman that we were working from a point

17

of fulfilling either court orders or consent decrees

18

regarding ADA compliance, and that we have a

19

program.

20

why do we need this amount for ADA litigation, since

21

we already are required to perform.

22
23
24
25

But my comment -- And I don't

And so it -- As your Chair, I just wonder

Corporation Counsel, any comments for the
members, please?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

Mr. Chair, I believe Brian is

following up from the question from last night to
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1

get more information, but my understanding is is

2

that the amounts that are spent in Department of

3

Management for this item are to pay for contracts to

4

comply with a settlement agreement from a case that

5

had already been filed.

6

implementing that settlement agreement and making

7

some changes on County property, and that's what

8

these -- the money is being used for.

9

is -- I know there is currently at least one

And so now the County is

And there

10

contract already executed and has already been

11

implemented.

12

getting more information for Council.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

But I believe Brian is going to be

Wouldn't we include that amount in the

14

specific contract to address the implementation?

15

Why do we have it separated out?

16

mean, I'm having a hard time understanding it's for

17

the contracts.

18

addresses and complies with the ADA requirements,

19

and then usually we assess it to each Department's

20

specific project that addresses compliance

21

requirements, such as Parks.

22

portion under Management?

23

MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

Are you aware?

I

When we do the specific project that

Why would we do this

Mr. Chair, I believe last night

24

Brian mentioned that normally it's the function of

25

the Department of Management to ensure that the
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1

County facilities are in compliance with ADA laws.

2

And so this contract right now is under the

3

Department of Management because I believe they're

4

looking at several facilities, not just, you know,

5

our parks, but other County facilities as well.

6

I believe that's also why it's probably under

7

Professional Services.

8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And

Thank you for your comment,

Corporation Counsel.

10

MR. TAGUCHI:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

MR. TAGUCHI:

Chair Hokama.
I'm sorry.

Yes, Lance.

I just got off the phone with Corporation

13

Counsel Moto.

14

responsible for that line item is not here, yeah,

15

and is -- He won't be back until sometime in May.

16

His understanding is that if it is -- if it's a case

17

or litigation matter, it would be taken up in

18

self-insurance.

19

of thing, then it would be in the Office of Managing

20

Director.

21

it is at this point because the person who put it

22

into the budget is not here.

23
24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Basically the person who was

If it is a type of preventive type

He's not sure, he cannot verify which one

Okay.

Thank you for that comment, Mr.

Taguchi.
I would say we can look at this or the Chair
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1

would say would come -- we could -- I don't have a

2

problem having it come to the self-insurance program

3

where that might be more appropriate if it is

4

regarding the litigation itself.

5

You know what, since we did give Mr. Moto --

6

Is he going to check with that person who is asking

7

for the money, but is not available?

8
9
10
11
12

MR. TAGUCHI:

Perhaps.

May I suggest that we contact the

Managing Director, and maybe he can shed some light
on this line item.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

We will see if he will be available

after the midday break, if he -- if it is possible.
Okay.

13

Because it is a wash and I understand

14

what Mr. Pontanilla is trying to accomplish and make

15

it very clear that the 60 will be used for, one,

16

ADA, as well as the security project, 35,000, I

17

would say at this time why don't we delete

18

Professional Services, add lines 350, 351 for

19

balance -- or the difference is zero.

20

make contact for Department of Management to provide

21

further comment after the midday break.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And we will

No objection.

And, if anything, we will address in round

24

two.

Any objections?

25

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Next is line 352.

We have a

2

consideration by Mr. Pontanilla and Mr. Mateo.

3

let Mr. Mateo go first at this opportunity.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Chairman.

I'll

The request to

5

delete was based on the deletion of the expansion

6

positions, the elimination of that, their office

7

furniture.

8

next logical thing to do is to delete their need for

9

rental space.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

With no positions, no furniture, the

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

Chairman.

I concur with this proposal,

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18
19

Support.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Yeah.

The deletion is for

rental space of -- for the expansion.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

20
21

Mr. Nishiki.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chair.

Could we have a

22

reference in the budget details if we have it?

23

it on 11-4?

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Is

11-4 under sub code 63 -- 6235, Members.
Thank you, Chair.

I support.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

2

Mr. Carroll.

3

Mr. Kane.

4

Ms. Johnson.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

No comment.
At this time line 352 is deleted.

7

Let us move on to line 362.

8

consideration from Mr. Pontanilla.

9

please.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

We have a
Mr. Pontanilla,

Thank you, Chair.

I think we

11

discussed this a couple days ago in regards to all

12

of the expansions that are being requested for the

13

different type of programs that we have.

14

again, this is one of those decisions that I had to

15

make in regards to balancing your budget, and at the

16

same time requested that we have someone that does

17

an overall analysis in regards to the possibility of

18

creating a division just for compiling all of the

19

oh, a division that will run all of the different

20

systems that we have in Maui County.

21
22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is this corning from details 11-9, Mr.

Pontanilla?

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

And,

Yeah.

So you are proposing that four of the seven

positions remain?

No, three of the seven positions
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1

requested for expansion remain?

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

In your consideration what would remain?

4

In the request there is one, two, three, four,

5

system analysts and two support technicians.

6
7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

I believe it's one analyst and

one support technician.

8

10

five

Would remain?

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Yeah.

That -- Okay.

That is six.

We have

seven requested positions.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair.

Yes, Ms. Tavares.
I also had deletions of the same

15

sort.

16

Pontanilla, because I was only leaving two.

17

However, I think we can leave one analyst and the

18

two support technicians, so I would support Mr.

19

Pontanilla's expansion -- deletion of the 4.0 E/P

20

expansion for this section.

21

And I guess I was cutting deeper than Mr.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah.

Two technicians and one

analyst.
23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

To stay.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Ms. Tavares, any other comments?
Not about the expansion positions.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

Mr. Carroll.
Mr. Kane.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

No comment.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Ms. Johnson.
No comment.

Mr. Mateo.
No.

Mr. Molina.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Support.

Mr. Nishiki.

Okay.

Don't support.
The Committee had earlier supported

13

the Chair in just reducing two E/P's, which was one

14

analyst and one technician, which would have

15

remained -- allowed five to remain of the seven.

16

have a request to delete four of the seven.

17

at this time -- One, two, three, four.

18

a close one, the way the Chair is assessing the

19

comments.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

We

I would

Oh, this is

Mr. Chair.

Yes, Mr. Kane.
I don't know if it would help your

23

decision if the body would compromise and allow to

24

have two analysts and two technicians to remain and

25

determine the others, but I don't know how the body
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1
,...,
L.

feels.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

I was just trying to recall -- Yeah, thank

3

you for that suggestion.

I was just trying to

4

recall listening to the comments of the Division.

5

And, of course, the level of service that they can

6

provide to all of the requests throughout all the

7

departments is dependent upon, of course, the

8

Division's manning requirements.

9

just say, people, we need to ensure that whatever we

And so I would

10

decide to do will affect, good or bad, the level of

11

service that even we as Council -- legislative

12

branch of government will be needing from the MIS

13

program.

14

I would say at this time -- You know what,

15

the Chair is going to ask you to let the Chair defer

16

this and allow me to -- and Staff review some

17

information.

18

the midday break.

And then I will return to this after

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21
22

No objections to deferral.

Let us go to line 363.

We have a

consideration by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

Thank you, Chair.

This is

23

to reduce the printer replacement costs which were

24

noted at $2,000 each to $500 each.

25

believe, 25 printers.

And this was, I
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla, comments?

2
3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I'll support.

Mr. Nishiki.
Support.

Mr. Molina.
Support.

Mr. Mateo.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Support.

Ms. Johnson.
One question.

Are these really a

12

specific type of printer, or are they just regular

13

printers?

14

when you visit with Mr. Verkerke.

If you could find that out, Mr. Chair,

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

19

Mr. Chair.

Yeah.
Or if Ms. Tavares knows the

answer, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair, even if it were the

20

highest class of laser printer, the cost range is

21

300 to $380 apiece.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you for that comment.
And the only reason I ask is

24

because in certain types of -- It's not just your

25

standard printer.

I mean, there are some really
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1

sophisticated printers.

2

couple thouqand, so I just want to verify that with

3

Mr. Verkerke.

4

saying is correct, if it's not a specialized piece

5

of equipment -- The printers do in some cases cost

6

very, very high amounts of money because they

7

perform specific tasks.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

I have seen them go up to a

If that's -- If what Ms. Tavares is

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

No comments.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Carroll.
Mr. Chair.

Yes, Ms. Tavares.
I don't think there's anything

15

special about these printers.

16

of them, and I think this is the -- part of the

17

replacement schedule of equipment throughout the

18

County.

19

printers I believe we have in our office.

20

this is not true, it should have been noted when

21

they made the request, but -- If they're going to

22

give us other information about these printers do,

23

you know, I would stay open, but I would say for now

24

we should just reduce it.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

They're replacing 25

And it would be similar to the kind of

Okay.

And if

The Chair would then recommend,
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1

Members, that for line 363 -- That was 25, right,

2

Ms. Tavares, you said?

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

Twenty-five printers.

Okay.

Let's reduce

5

it by $25,000, which would be $1,000 each per

6

printer at this time.

7

contact MIS to verify if there is some specific

8

purpose for a higher end printer.
Okay.

9

And then the Chair will

Any objections?

We'll move forward a

10

deletion of $25,000, which is cutting the request in

11

half.

Ms. Tavares.
Okay.

12
13

We shall move forward

the deletion of $25,000.
Line 364, Ms. Tavares.

14
15

No objections.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Chairman, I think when we

16

went over the equipment purchases for this section,

17

these are kind of like the wish list.

18

conference system is what was the 25,000 on that

19

next line.

20

have, that this is something we could defer putting

21

into our systems right now, and, therefore, I was

22

suggesting the $25,000 delete, reduction.

23
24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The video

I believe, given the hard choices we

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Support.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Nishiki.

2

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Support.

Mr. Molina.
Support.

Mr. Mateo.
Support.

Ms. Johnson.
Support.

Mr. Kane.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No comment.

Mr. Carroll.

12

Okay.

Delete 25,000, line 364.

13

Line 365, we have a consideration regarding

14

wireless access.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares.
Yes, Mr. Chair.

For the same

16

reason as above, this is for secure wireless access

17

ports, and I think we can still depend on our POT

18

system, use our land lines and our connections that

19

we have already.

20

good case made for why we need this at $50,000.

I don't think there was a very

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Pontanilla.

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Support.

Mr. Nishiki.
Support.

Mr. Molina.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Support.

Mr. Mateo.
Support.

Ms. Johnson.
No comment.

Mr. Kane.
No comment.

Mr. Carroll.
We shall delete line 365 at this time.

10

Line 366, Ms. -- Ms. Tavares, any objection

11

to deferring, since I've -- we -- the Committee is

12

allowing the Chair to defer 362?

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19
20

Yes.

And then I can return.

Okay.

It would make sense, right.
Any objection, Members?

No objections.

Thank you.
Line 367, Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Chair, this was the

21

computers for the expansion positions in the

22

Department of Transportation, which I believe we

23

have at this point not approved.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

S

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Support.

Mr. Nishiki.
Support.

Mr. Molina.
Support.

Mr. Mateo.
Support.

Ms. Johnson.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No comment.

Mr. Kane.
No comment.

Mr. Carroll.
No comment.

Line 367 we shall delete at this time.
Let us move down to line 372 regarding a

1~

16

consideration to reduce one expansion position for a

17

GIS Analyst V.

18

for the consideration.

19

I am not sure who would like to ask

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pontanilla.

Yes, sir.

So far as the

20

consideration in that Department, the request was

21

for two expansion.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Comments.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

This is just a reduction of one.
Ms. Tavares.
Yeah.

Mr. Chair, I had wanted to

24

leave these positions in GIS because that is an area

25

that we have been supporting for all of these years.
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1

They've been doing a yeomen's job at doing the data

2

input and working to get information in the system

3

so that we all can use it.

4

ourselves often of this Department or this section's

5

programs, and I just felt like -- This is Bill

6

Medeiros' section, and the work that they're doing

7

is great, and I wanted to continue to support them.

8 '

So I was considering both positions that they asked

9

for.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

~1

Mr. Carroll.

12

Mr. Kane.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

16
17

20

No comment.

Ms. Johnson.
I don't support this deletion.

agree with Ms. Tavares.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

18
19

We have availed

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, I would support Member

Pontanilla.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Molina.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No comment.

Mr. Nishiki.
I support the cut.

The Chair will, with no objections, ask
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1

that at this time this line be deleted.

2

objections?

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

?:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10
11

No objections.

Okay.

372 is deleted.
We can always come back in the

next round.

6

9

Any

Yeah.
Line -- Page 12.

13, Members.

We are straddling 12 and

Line 418, a consideration from Mr.

Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Thank you, Chair.

That -- For the

12

East Maui Cultural Economic Development, just in the

13

past few days we have had some restructuring of some

14

of the programs that we have in Hana, and I wanted

15

some extra money for

16

counter project.

17

community, it -- they're consolidating and I would

18

need 25,000, not 50,000, because they are going to

19

be working with Mr. Henderson and the other groups

20

over there and consolidating their efforts.

21

would be -- only half the money that I requested

22

would be needed, so I would ask for 25, not 50,000,

23

additional, for a total of 75,000.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

to be added to that for this

However, after consulting with the

Comments.

Mr. Kane.

Mr. Chair, I have -- I have a
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1

preference to move forward just the $50,000 request,

2

the original number, on 416.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Mr. Mateo.
No comment.

Mr. Molina.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

12

I would support the 25,000.

No comment.

Mr. Nishiki.
I do not support it.

I have not

heard the program.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Pontanilla.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

No comment.

Ms. Tavares.
Yeah, Mr. Chair, you know, in

17

light of the dialysis monies that we put in to --

18

for Hana, which I feel has a much higher priority

19

for Hana, I think at this time we should just keep

20

it at the original 50,000.

21
22
23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

At this time, line 418, the Chair's

recommendation is deletion.
Okay.

Objections?

We shall move forward at this point.

24

We are on page 13.

25

dual consideration, both similar.

We are at line 447.

I have a

We'll let Mr.
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Molina provide his comments first.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

3

Chairman.

4

these funds back to MEDB is -- It's minimal, and I

S

think it helps to augment, I believe, their, what is

6

it called, kama'aina program to bring youngsters

7

back home here, to provide incentives as a way to

8

reduce the so-called brain drain in our community.

9

So I don't think, just in my opinion, 10,000 is too

10

much to ask for as it relates to what MEDB has done

11

for this community over the last several years and

12

being that we do have a movement towards high tech.

13

I think it's a good investment, Chairman.

14

you.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I think the re-addition of the 10,000 of

Okay.

Thank

Thank you.

Mr. Nishiki.

16
17

Yeah, thank you very much,

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I support.

As an alternative to the

18

visitor industry and looking for diversification in

19

economic development, I support this in trying to

20

focus in on bringing our kids that have left Maui

21

back.

22

getting our own people back here and giving them the

23

jobs that forced them away, I guess.

24

it.

25

And I think that this is a good way of

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So I support

Thank you.
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Mr. Pontanilla.

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

I support.

Ms. Tavares.
Support.

Mr. Carroll.
Support.

Mr. Kane.
Mr. Chair, unless Ifm mistaken, I

note that MEDB got 200,000 in '03, 200,000 in '04,

10

this current fiscal, and the Mayor's original

11

proposal of 285 is an $85,000 increase.

12

as -- if I'm not mistaken, they've already been

13

working on the Bring Back Kama'aina Program, and

14

were cited as some examples that are -- have

15

currently existed.

16

which is a $75,000 increase from this current year

17

to next year, I think that they can find the means

18

of making those things work with the $75,000

19

increase and working with the other programs to make

20

some adjustments.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

23
24
25

And, again,

And I think that with the 275,

So I'll be supporting 275.

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I support the addition of the

$10,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Mateo.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.

(808) 524-2090

93

BF 04/29/04

1

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Support the addi.tion.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

At this time we shall add back the

3

$10,000.

4
5
6

Okay.

Okay.

Why don't we finish this page, and

then we'll break for midday.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Line 452, Mr. Mateo.

Chairman, I believe what I did was

7

look at their prior budget and, I guess, deducted

8

10,000 from the additional request.

9

leave it at that, Chairman.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And I'll just

Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Molina.

11
12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

Chairman.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

16

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I support your recommendation,

Mr. Nishiki.

Yes.

We have Mateo's minus 10,000?
Yes.
We had earlier decreased by 25, since

18

in the testimony we had heard that Department of

19

Water Supply was providing $25,000.

20

testimony from the Botanical Garden representative.

21

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24
25

And this was

No comment.

Mr. Pontanilla.
I'm not going to be supporting

the $10,000 additional decrease.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

It's not additional.

It would replace
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my -- the 25 --

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

that the Committee had earlier

supported.

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11
12
13
14

Okay.

No comments on this.

Ms. Tavares.
I'll support your recommendation.

Mr. Carroll.
Mr. Kane.

9
10

Oh, I'm sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I support full funding for Maui Nui

Botanical Gardens.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I also support full funding.

And

15

I think that even though they may be getting monies

16

from the Water Supply, the work that they're doing

17

in the watershed areas is really invaluable, the

18

expertise that people bring here.

19

part of economic development, also, because what

20

we're trying to do is provide programs that support

21

the university, and this program works very well

22

with the Maui Community College.

23

the CTAHR people.

24

Plant Society, many other groups to really try to

25

save our -- both our watersheds and also save our

I look at this as

It also works with

It works with the Native Hawaiian
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endangered and rare species of plants.

So I think

2

that eventually when these plants are actually put

3

on display, I think it will provide a tremendous

4

addition and draw, which is one more way that we can

5

diversify economically.

6

investment in Maui's future.

So I think it's a small

So I have always supported the Botanical

7

8

Gardens.

And even if they were getting 25,000 from

9

the Board of Water Supply, I guess it -- for me it

10

really wouldn't matter that much because we benefit

11

in both ways, both economic development and also in

12

protecting our watersheds from invasive species.

13

Thank you.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

15

Staff, do we have any comments from Water

16

Department regarding their consideration for the

17

Botanical Garden program?

18
19
20
21

MS. KOLLER:

I don't believe we do, Mr. Chair.

want, we can follow up with Water.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Let us see if Water has incorporated in

their budget consideration 25,000 for the gardens.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

If you

Mr. Chair.

Yes, ma'am.
Another way we can do this is to

put a proviso in the Water Department's water
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conservation program, and that way they will know

2

for sure that that 25,000 would be set aside for

3

them.

4

be supporting this group because of the education

5

they're doing in zero-scaping, which is using

6

water -- non-thirsty plants in landscaping.

7

behooves them as part of their conservation program

8

to have this partnership with the Maui Nui Botanical

9

Garden.

10
11

I do believe that the Water Department should

So I would recommend putting a proviso in

the Water Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

12
13

Okay.
Okay.

Thank you.
At this time we'll maintain the

current Committee's position of reduction by 25.

14

When we return from the midday break,

15

Members, we will start with page 14.

16

recess until 1:45.

17

RECESS:

18

RECONVENE:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12:07 p.m.
1:52 p.m.
(Gavel.)

We shall bring this Committee

meeting back to order, please.

21

we did complete page 13.

22

Members, of the detailed worksheets.

24
25

We shall be in

(Gavel. )

20

23

So it

At the midday break

We are on page 14,

We are on page 14, line 476.

We have a

consideration from Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 04/29/04

97

1

I hope everybody had a good lunch.

2

Chair, there was some opportunity previously

3

to this time we have now on this item, and I did

4

mention the fact that we have as a body invested in

5

the business center down in the Maui Mall.

6

is going to be an ongoing expense.

7

had a presentation about what monies are going to be

8

needed to keep that ongoing.

9

And that

And, in fact, we

My thought here, Mr. Chairman, was to

10

although it's a cut of $20,000, because this would

11

go for small business promotion, I think the whole

12

idea of the business center was to assist and

13

perhaps even go as far as help incubate or provide

14

at least services for businesses to grow and prosper

15

from the services that are being provided down at

16

the Business Service Center.

17

What I was going to ask for consideration is

18

of this $20,000, I'd like to dovetail off of that

19

and ask the body to consider

20

individual member supportive of the Business

21

Research Library, and so I would -- I would ask for

22

the consideration of the 20,000 reduction, taking

23

10,000 of that, plugging it into the Business

24

Research Library for their funding to continue with

25

what I think is an important component of supporting

Because I am as an
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small business as well as large business, including

2

the County as a government agency who utilizes the

3

Business Research Library, and still ask for a

4

$10,000 reduction overall for this line 475, Grants

5

and Disbursements For Small Business Promotion,

6

Chair.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

Thank you.
Thank you.

Excuse me.

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson, comments.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I basically can't recall exactly

10

what the money was going to be used for in Small

11

Business Promotion, but my thought would be a little

12

bit different than I guess heading in the down

13

direction.

14

Business, I would rather -- Because I know we've cut

15

from Maui Economic Opportunity, I would like to see

16

if we're thinking about cutting in this particular

17

area, consider shifting that money up to the Maui

18

Economic Opportunity Small Business Micro Enterprise

19

Program.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

I -- Rather than cut money from Small

So that's my comment.
Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No comment.

Mr. Molina.
No comment.

Mr. Nishiki.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

99

BF 04/29/04

1

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

Support.

Mr. Pontanilla.
No comment.

Ms. Tavares.
I support the 10,000 going to --

back to the Maui Research Library.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Carroll.

8

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Support the money going back.

Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kane.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

And just for

12

clarity, my total number in this area would be

13

90,000 for this area, and then the 10,000 would be

14

for Business Research Library.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

The 20 is not the amount?
I'm asking for a 20,000

actually,

17

a 10,000 reduction from here

18

Chair.

19

reduction from here, so forgive me, so the number

20

would be 80,000.

21

taking 10,000 of that and moving it over to the

22

Business Research Library to provide the funding.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Let me clarify.

Okay.

Excuse me, Mr.

I'm asking for a 20,000

And of the 20,000 reduction,

I understand.

Okay.

We shall move

24

forward with the revised number for Small Business

25

Promotion to be $80,000.

And on page 12, line --
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

399, Chair.

-- 400 -Excuse me.

-- delete, whereby 401 will now be 110.
Understood, Staff?

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

Mr. Chair.

Yes, ma'am.
I've got a question about the

Small Business Promotion.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

According to the information sheet

12

that they provided for us dated April 27th, on the

13

Fiscal Year '04 monies, they were spent -- among the

14

costs was a $5,000 grant to Lanai Chamber of

15

Commerce, seed monies for the newly formed

16

organization.

17

10,000 to the Lanai Chamber of Commerce.

18

you -- can you -- do you know anything about that,

19

that part?

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And then in the 2005 budget they have
So do

I at this time cannot share any comment on

21

the $10,000.

I can tell you that through the Office

22

of Economic Development, Ms. Araki Regan, I think

23

Mr. Barsatan assisted the community's business

24

sector in creating a Lanai Chamber program.

25

focus on Lanai is going to be a little bit more than
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1

just business.

2

our other activities.

3

comment as in regards to yesterday when we discussed

4

Main Street that our Lanai Chamber is, I would say,

5

a hybrid to fit what they wanted for Lanai.

6

not like the Maui Chamber and neither is it like the

7

Molokai program.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

It will take into account some of
And that's why I made my

So it's

It's a --

Hybrid.

It's like a hybrid.

It's more into what

10

Lanai chose to have it be, which is, for me, quite

11

an exciting time for them.

12

active.

13

participating in their way.

14

what the 10,000 would pe, unless it is to assist

15

them in getting them started off on an operational

16

standpoint.

17

a certified nonprofit entity.

The merchants are very

The older, established businesses are
And so I am not sure

I know they have worked hard to become

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

status.

21

the process of completing their bylaws.

22

too sure what this 10,000 would be for, Ms. Tavares.

23

Oh.

So they have established their tax-exempt
They have officers.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

They are, I think, in
So I am not

Yeah, Chair, it says on here that

24

it -- in parenthesis, "to promote festivals,

25

business summit, business classes," et cetera on
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Lanai, so that's part of the description that they

2

had there.

Okay.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So

I remember discussion, Ms. Tavares.
Yeah.

Because part of it is how to establish like

6

a feeder program for Lanai businesses.

7

wanted -- The businesses there, some of the

8

businesses, wanted to put some of their resources

9

And I guess they were looking at partnering with the

They

10

County to establish a program whereby they could

11

help train Lanai residents

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

I see.

-- to be ready for hiring.

one of the intents.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

Thank you for that information.

Thank you for the questions.
Okay.

Members, let us move to page 15 under

18

Watershed Protection, line No. 492.

19

consideration from Ms. Tavares.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

And that was

I'm sorry.

We have a

Where are you?

Line 492.
Line 492.

The CTAHR consideration, Ms. Tavares.
Yes, Chair.

That was -- We had a

discussion about it a little bit the other night,
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and this was a $50,000 grant to the College of

2

Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources, known as

3

CTAHR.

4

Maui for our Maui residents, farmers, et cetera.

5

And this is, you know, one of those other things we

6

just agonize over, because here is another State

7

agency that the County is asked to support.

8

I -- It would be interesting to look at at the end

9

of this budget how much of what we support is

It provides agricultural services here on

And

10

actually a State function.

11

surprised at the number, or maybe not surprised at

12

the number.

13

And I think weill be

But on the second -- you know, second hand

14

or, you know, the other hand, not supporting this,

15

you know, creates some disadvantages for us on Maui,

16

because I think all of the neighbor islands donlt

17

receive the kind of attention it needs in this area.

18

College of Tropical Agricultural is actually located

19

on the Manoa campus, and maybe thatls most of the

20

problem.

21

campus, at least get it into a neighbor island area

22

that has a lot of agriculture.

23

Maybe that should be relocated to the Hilo

But I ask the members to consider supporting

24

this for the agricultural programs that they will be

25

providing for our Maui farmers and ago people.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla, comments?

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILIJA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

No comments.

Mr. Nishiki.
Charmaine, what specific areas were

6

they going to direct their energies into in regards

7

to agriculture?

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

Without my sheet here?

Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

It's $6,000 for developing

11

multiresistant commercial tomatoes.

12

blight resistant taro hybrids.

13

for vegetable processing and packaging facility,

14

5,000.

15

crops is 10,000.

16

and infrastructure development, 25,000.

17

the total of 50,000.

A feasibility study

Advanced nutrient management of container

18

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

$4,000 for leaf

And flower and foliage research
So that's

Support.

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Support.

Mr. Mateo.
Support.

Ms. Johnson.
Support.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Kane.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Carroll.
Okay.

4

No comment.

At this time we shall move forward the

5

addition of $50,000 for University of Hawaii College

6

of Tropical Ag. and Human Resources.
Next, line 493, another consideration.

7
8

see.

9

their comments.

10

comments first.

11

Let's

We'll ask both Ms. Johnson and Ms. Tavares for

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

We'll ask Ms. Johnson for her

Yes.

And I know that we had

12

discussed this previously.

We may be able

13

According to some of the feedback that we have been

14

getting, we may be able to start the project with a

15

little bit less money.

16

do is help to restore or at least look for

17

additional crops that could be used as feed for the

18

cattle industry.

19

out, which was a primary feed source that the cattle

20

industry was utilizing -- Maui Land and Pine

21

principally is going to be shutting down a huge

22

number of acres, and this was a primary feed source.

23

So what they are looking for so that they can

24

continue to do agriculture and actually grow the

25

cattle industry, they're trying to find some other

But what this project would

Right now with pineapple going
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1

alternative, and the Canetop Project was one of

2

them.

3

So any amount of money, I believe, at this

4

point that could be given -- It's not necessarily

5

the Cattlemen's Association that is going to be

6

doing the whole thing.

7

project.

8

form of a grant, if that might be, you know,

9

earmarked specifically underneath Economic

It would be a collaborative

I don't know if you want to put it in the

10

Development underneath Agriculture, but somehow they

11

do need that support because the cattle industry is

12

vital, I believe, to helping maintain the

13

diversified agriculture on the island.

14
15
16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

I think none of

17

us can dispute the importance of a project like this

18

or the importance of the end product of the project,

19

which is to find feedstock here on the island.

20

think traditionally we all know that before cattle

21

was shipped to the mainland for their fattening

22

process.

23

I

While they have requested $250,000, Mr.

24

Chair, I felt that they're in sort of the beginning

25

stages of this and that the 50,000 would be -- would
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1

be sufficient to get them started on looking at the

2

feasibility, looking at the different feed analysis

3

that they need to do, and then come back when they

4

have a real -- when they have formulated a plan.

5

And when their plan is formulated, to find out how

6

much of the community that is in -- that would be

7

impacted by this is participating, because I think

8

that we need to have that buy-in by all of the

9

ranchers and

10

who may be using this type of

feedstock.
I know there is a working group or a task

11
12

force that has been established, and members of the

13

small ranchers are part of it at this point, and

14

they will -- you know, I'm sure they'll be working

15

diligently to get this underway, because it's a

16

serious problem now.

17

feedstock.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23
24
25

The stock is very limited,

Which?

Support.

Which number?
Cane tops Utilization Study,

$50,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Nishiki.
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1

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I'll come back.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Mr. Molina.
Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

Having

4

been born and raised in Makawao and being well aware

5

of the importance of the cattle industry, needless

6

to say for me I am in total support of this.

7

at first inclined to go with Member Johnson's

8

recommendation of 250,000; however, in light of the

9

fact that we are in a fiscally conservative mode

I was

10

today, I would prefer to take the approach of going

11

with the study first.

12

with a more fully comprehensive plan, then proceed

13

ahead with the necessary equipment for them.

14

today's purposes, I will support the $50,000

15

recommendation.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

And when they can come back

So for

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

Chairman, support the 50.

Thank you.
Mr. Kane.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

I can support the 50.

Mr. Carroll.
Okay.

At this time we shall move forward

24

with an add of $50,000 for the Canetop Utilization

25

Study.

We have an additional -- Actually, this
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1

shouldn't be under Watershed Protection, line 29.

2

So we'll see how it goes and then we'll --

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

S

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

It's No. 29.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Whatever this total, it shouldn't

9

It's different, Chair.

It's an implementation.

494.
No. 29.

be under one, it should be

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah, but it's placed under -- Okay.

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

It should be under Watershed.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I understand.

No, no.

13

the -- I'm sorry.

14

this.

15

MS. KOLLER:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I misunderstood how I'm reading

The staff -Mr. Chair.

17
18

I understand what

-- did it correctly.
Tamara.

MS. KOLLER:

Yes, if I can clarify.

19

separate grants.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

21

MS. KOLLER:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Those should all be

Oh, okay.

I'm in the process of correcting that now.
Okay.

Thank you.

I was trying to --

23

trying to find the connection with Watershed

24

Protection and Commercial Kitchen, so --

25

Ms. Tavares, your consideration, please.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

This is the Wailuku Business

2

Center/Lokahi Pacific partnership for a Wailuku

3

Business Center.

4

explaining to us what this project was about.

5

had presented us with a budget that totaled

6

$324,000, but they were actually going to be very

7

appreciative if there was any part of it that we

v

Q

could help to fund.

9

the equipment for the commercial kitchen, because

And we heard from Alexa Basinger
They

And the part that I chose was

10

this will also serve for some of the incubator

11

businesses to use this and do some product

12

enrichment types of -- or value-added products for

13

them, and also serve as the training area for the

14

job training that they also are intending to do.
They have listed a whole lot of other sources

15

16

of funding, and I feel -- I think the committed

17

projects -- committed sources so far to date is

18

about $1.6 million.

19

project costs would be a little over $2 million.

20

I felt that our contribution in this endeavor would

21

be very much appreciated and I think would go a long

22

way to helping in this particular part of our

23

businesses on Maui.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And the total -- the total

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Support.

Mr. Nishiki.
No corrunent.

Mr. Molina.
Support.

Mr. Mateo.
Support.

Ms. Johnson.
You know, and I -- I don't know

10

because of the fact that sometimes the grant monies

11

are not always available for their start-up and

12

their operational expenses like salaries or

13

anything, so what I had looked at -- I looked at

14

this in the same way that Councilmember Tavares did,

15

but because sometimes capital purchases are easier

16

to get than some of the start-up costs, what I was

17

thinking was that they have on the transmittal that

18

we received on April 18th for possible consideration

19

if some of the members don't support the full

20

amount, would be looking at start-up and operation,

21

which was about $80,043.

22

And the reason that I think it might be

23

easier for them to get money for equipment is that a

24

lot of the grantors and a lot of the places that

25

they would go to seek funds more than likely
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1

would -- you know, they would purchase equipment or

2

they would provide equipment.

3

money, though, for their start-up and their

4

operational expenses, which would cover employees'

5

salaries, other things, and for some of the

6

personnel costs.

7

consideration by the body.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

It's harder to get

So I just throw that out there for
Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Kane.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I think Ms. Ridao made it clear that

11

this is a one-time -- one-time approach to the

12

County.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I can support, Chair, this one time.
Okay.

Thank you for all of the comments,

14

including yours, Ms. Johnson.

15

past Council has always been concerned about funds

16

for operations versus programs or equipment or

17

capital considerations.

18

forward with the 102,300 amount.

19

I will say in the

At this time we shall move

Before we go further down the list, Ms.

20

Johnson did make Staff aware that we had another

21

area that was still needed to make a determination,

22

so I ask you to go back to page 14 and review line

23

462 under Business Development Corporation.

24

Chair did recommend a reduction of 25,000, and I

25

believe members had other considerations including
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1

no revisions.

2

continue to provide comment.

3

Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So I will allow the Committee to
We'll start with Mr.

Mr. Chair, 11m one person who would

5

consider full funding for this area.

I will not --

6

I will not be shy about saying I think this is one

7

place where additional thread in the fabric of our

8

people trying to work their way up in life can

9

depend on a program like this for that help.

This

10

is the one that seals those holes from people who

11

don't go -- people who don't qualify for

12

opportunities to move ahead in the business world.

13

I think in order to qualify for this, you

14

actually have to fail a loan request from the major

15

institutions.

16

their last opportunity.

17

money, but it's about the background, the training,

18

the assistance that they get.

19

that, you know, start off with $500, $600, $1,200

20

just to get them going on some initiative that they

21

have within their -- within themselves to try to

22

make a difference and contribute to a community.

23

I think there's a great amount of payback and

24

contribution to the community with something like

25

this, so I can support and I'll continue to support.

And so this is their last -- this is
And it's not just about the

And these are people
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1
2
3
4

Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

I share the same kinds of

5

concerns that when we try to diversify our economic

6

base, one of the opportunities that people have when

7

they lose their jobs in agriculture or when they

8

lose them because our resort numbers turn down, it

9

really is important that they have the knowledge and

10

the ability to just go and say, well, okay, if I

11

want to make a difference and stabilize my own

12

economic situation, I've got a chance, I've got an

13

opportunity to do that.

14

And I did have a chance over the years to

15

watch many of the people who have won awards and to

16

see their presentations for the businesses that they

17

were able to start.

18

which is desperately needed, that was one of the

19

businesses that made a presentation.

20

case I think Council Chair Kane had mentioned one of

21

our success stories would be the gal that started

22

the swimsuit company, which now has national

23

recognition.

24

into the area of actually caring for the aged in

25

their homes.

And I have seen child care,

In another

We also have people that are moving

And so care home is one of the areas
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1

that we really are desperately in need of assistance

2

in, and I think that Maui Economic Opportunity is

3

partnering with all these various entities, the Maui

4

Long-Term Care Partnership, Maui Community College,

5

they're going to be partnering with Lokahi on many

6

of these projects.

7

So I really ask the members to consider this,

8

because that $25,000 may start five small businesses

9

in operation.

So I just ask the members to please

10

allow that full amount to be funded in the interests

11

of trying to at least put money into diversified

12

employment opportunities.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

14
15

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, I would support the 150

16

that's showing on our -- under the Mayor's line.

17

believe the Micro Enterprise Program is one of the

18

most successful programs there is in providing, I

19

guess, you know, their saying, their own slogan, by

20

giving the opportunity of changing lives.

21

is an important program, it's an important

22

direction, and I believe the 150,000 would be a good

23

small investment in the end result.

24

Chair.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:
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Mr. Molina.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

3

Chairman.

I can support this program,

Thank you.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Nishiki.

5

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Mr. Chairman.

Yes.
I remember years ago when Micro

8

Enterprise said that this is going to be the last

9

they were going to come.

Since then they have been

10

bold enough to come back again and ask again.

11

was supposed to be a program that was going to have

12

a revolving fund.

13

people today have touted this to be a successful

14

program, then obviously those that have borrowed

15

money would be returning the money so that we can

16

continually use the money as a revolving fund,

17

thereby, the pie should be getting bigger and bigger

18

and bigger.

19

This

In other words, if what many

I don't know if we ever got an accounting of

20

this program to show how much money we've given to

21

actually pay for a program, or is this money really

22

being paid for Administrator Bonnie.

23

time they had told us that they were going to get

24

the money somewhere else to pay for the

25

administrative and it would be strictly for

Because at one
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1

programs.

But I don't know if those hard questions

2

are asked of these people.
Surely I can come every year and bring one

3
4

individual up here and say, oh, that is a big

5

program, you know, it's helped me.

6

this Council needs to look at is if this has been

7

that successful, then those people that were

8

borrowing the money should have been paying back,

9

also, to keep this revolving fund going.

But I think what

And I am

10

curious whether this money that we give is for

11

actually programs or actually to pay for, you know,

12

administrative overhead.

13

years we've been funding this program, so they can

14

have quite a bit of money turning over and over and

15

over if it's been successful.

And I don't know how many

Have we ever asked that question of what --

16
17

this is actually program money?

18

loan

19

collection rate is on these loans that we supposedly

20

are giving out?

21

Is that revolving

is continuing to revolve and what the

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I will ask Ms. Koller to give comments

22

since she had an opportunity to receive comment from

23

the entity.

24

25

MS. KOLLER:

Tamara.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I was informed by MEO

that the money is used for operations.

The loan
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funds come from banks.

2

the money that's used for loans.

3

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

And so this is not any of

So just want people to know,

4

therefore, that -- to dispel any illusions that this

5

money is given to people that don't qualify or

6

you're thinking that this money is given to actually

7

the people that are going to use the money for an

8

operation.

9

people that are working in this area, so

That this is to pay salaries for those
I'm not

10

going to say any more.

11

going to give it my support at this time.

12
13
14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Majority rules, but I'm not

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

I'm in favor

15

of restoring the $150,000 for Micro Enterprise.

I

16

have attended several of their meetings.

17

meetings we do have professional people from the

18

banking industry or lending institution supporting

19

people, young people, in creating their own

20

business.

21

that came here and testified in regards to getting

22

rid of tires.

23

that opportunity, and he has a viable business going

24

with the County.

25

that go to these classes, those that can't get a

At the

In fact, Chair, we had one individual

So he saw an opportunity, he took

So these are the type of people
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1

loan from the bank.

2

people helping these people?

3

restoring of the 150,000 for

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

And can you imagine the bank
So I support this
t~is

program.

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No comment.

Mr. Carroll, you did not have an

8

opportunity.

9

Okay.

No comment.
We'll--

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair.

Yes, ma'am.
I do have a comment, I'm sorry.

13

According to an e-mail that I received, and I think

14

probably all the members received this, maybe, that

15

with the -- they funded 41 new and expansion Micro

16

Enterprise operations in Maui County.

17

invested $150,000 in loans to these clients,

18

resulting in 57 new and retained jobs.

19

from the CEO of the Business Development Corporation

20

from MEO.

21

this point hearing the statement that it's -- this

22

is all operations and overhead versus money that

23

actually does go to the clients.

24

differences of opinion that I think need to be

25

straightened out.

And we

And this was

And I am a little, I guess, confused at

So we have some

Thank you.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for that comment.

2

The Chair will defer this item and have Staff

3

follow through on that concern or concerns that have

4

been raised by the Committee.

5

deferred at this time, Members.

6

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

So this item is
Any objections?

No objections.

Thank you.
Let us move on, please.

Page 15, line 498.

The Chair had recommended 50,000 reduction under the

We have other considerations, so

10

E-Tech program.

11

I'll let Mr. Mateo give his comments, and then Ms.

12

Tavares.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you.

I

wil~

14

disregard my recommendation and support the Chair's.

15

Thank you.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17
18

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chair.

I had supported,

19

I guess, a deeper reduction of $89,000, and that was

20

in the operations in the E-Tech program.

21

basically leaving them the money that was -- would

22

be associated with the H/R payroll project and not

23

any of the others.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Carroll, any comments?
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Mr. Kane.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

I can support the deeper cut, Chair.

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

B

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

No comment.

Mr. Mateo.
No.

Mr. Molina.
No comment.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14
15
16

Mr. Nishiki.
No.

Mr. Pontanilla.
I'll support your

recommendation, Chair.
At this time we shall maintain a $50,000

CHAIR HOKAMA:

deduction.
Okay.

17

Let us move forward.

Page 16 under

We have line 524 under the Division of

18

Parks.

19

Aquatics.

20

of six E/P positions with no funds.

21

discussions.

22

four E/P I think with funds, but I'll allow her to

23

provide her comments.

24
25

I had -- The Chair had proposed addition
We had some

Ms. Johnson has a consideration of

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I think that because of the

discussions that we had, the money portion of mine
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1

was tdken out I think by consensus, because there

2

would be flexibility in the six E/P positions as

3

proposed by Councilmember Tavares.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5
6

Okay.

If there's no objections, we'll at this point
add six E/P positions with no funds.

7

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Thank you very much, Ms. Johnson.

No objections.

Okay.

We need to go to line 526 still

under the Division of Aquatics.

We have a

10

consideration for a proviso that a pilot Learn to

11

Swim Program be considered.

12

MS. KOLLER:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

MS. KOLLER:

15
16

Mr. Chair.

I believe we agreed to leave this in, and I

should have taken the highlighting off.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

17
18

Yes, Tamara.

Okay.

Thank you.

That means, Members, we are done with the
Division of Aquatics.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair.

Yes, ma'am.
Before we leave that part, the

22

proviso would probably be better read to be

23

implemented or something like than rather than be

24

considered, but we can fix the language later on.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I -- Tamara.
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MS. KOLLER:

Yes, Mr. Chair.

Just for clarification, on

2

all the provisos, we will be working with

3

corporation counsel --

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

MS. KOLLER:

6

-- to make sure that we have the final

wording in the final -- in the ordinances.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Oh, okay.

Okay.

Thank you.
Let us move to Recreation and

Support Services.

We are on line 549, Members.

10

I'll ask Mr. -- I'll ask Mr. Pontanilla if he still

11

wants us to take this up as a consideration.

12

before I ask Mr. Pontanilla for his comments, I

13

would just ask the Committee to look at line 546

14

that we have made earlier a consensus, and the Chair

15

is aware of ability to revise.

16

will go back to Mr. Pontanilla as in regards to line

17

549.

18
19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And

So saying that, I

Thank you, Chair.

This

includes 549, 550, and -51.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I want to retract all of those

22

since basically the

on line 546, making those 26

23

half-time positions to 13 E/Ppositions.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I can support that.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

549, .550, 551 have been deleted.

2

And we are aware that the Department has flexibility

3

to fractionalize those 13 positions.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Yes, Mr. Kane.
And, forgive me, I was not a part of

7

this discussion and -- I had to be away from the

8

the meeting for a little while.

9

just provide a very brief comment on what you just

If somebody can

10

stated, Chair, about the flexibility of

11

fractionalizing these full E/P's.

12

aware of all the other, you know, half-time, the

13

weekend warrior, that whole discussion.

14

is that going to be still provided as far as the

15

flexibility to still be able to do that?

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

And so because it's with 13 full-time

E/P, they're still able to do that breakup
CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA;

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

In essence,

Twenty-six half-time, yes.

19

24

And, again, I'm

Yes.
-- without any problem?

Yes.
Thank you very much, Chair.

Thank you for the question.
We are on line 553 under Recreation and

Support Division.

Mr. Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

2

the --

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you very much.

In

Microphone on.
Thank you, Chairman.

In the

5

discussion that we had prior, you had asked for

6

information regarding the breakdown of the

7

electrical costs for One Alii Park, and I provided

8

that information for the Committee.

9

indicated on that same sheet the cost of the tenting

I also

10

for the Kaunakakai gym that was provided to us

11

during the -- during our session with Mr. Matsui.

12

The tenting is $20,000.

13

Chairman, is 130,000.

14

the stage area because the stage is among the worst

15

of the structures in the park.

16

180,000 for line 553.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18 .
19

Okay.

The electrical cost,
And we included 30,000 for

Rounding it out to

Thank you.

The Chair will recommend that we break this
out, so let us take -- If there's no objections --

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objection.

-- I would like to take it separately.

22

First let us consider the treatment program for

23

Kaunakakai gym, which Mr. Mateo has informed us that

24

the cost estimate for the termite treatment of the

25

gym -- And I believe he also shared earlier that we
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have just paid for a reflooring

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Correct.

-- of the facility, so I can say this makes

4

quite good sense of our investment.

5

Mr. Mateo?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

For $20,000,

Correct.

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson, comments?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No.

I support all three of those

10

because they basically have to do with the safety

11

and the ability of the public to utilize the

12

facilities.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14
1~

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Question, Mr. Chair.

Would these

16

items, if they are accepted, be able to be plugged

17

into various Countywide areas so that we would at

IS

some point avoid duplication?

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I would say, generally, yes.

I do have a

20

question for the Parks Administration regarding One

21

Alii.

22

there comes a point when the project for me passes

23

the line where it's no longer maintenance, it is now

24

an improvement project.

25

Director and the Deputy to start considering whether

And I'll be very candid with the members,

And I would ask the
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or not the improvements for One Alii Park facility,

2

since it is a two-part project

3

Mateo has informed us that 130 is for electrical

4

improvements and there's another 30 for,

5

the replacement

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Of the 160, Mr.

I believe,

Stage.

of the stage.

So, you know, for the

8

Chair, it's pretty much -- I think we've possibly

9

passed the repair or the maintenance portion.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman.

And for additional

11

information, Chairman, the Council in 2003 actually

12

appropriated 200,000 for this improvement, and those

13

funds lapsed.

14

hence, you know, the request.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So with the funds being lapsed,

So it was not a priority in 2003.

Well, I

16

would say it is still not a priority, because you

17

are adding this consideration.

18

assurances that if we provide money, they'll do the

19

project.

20
21

So I hope you have

Thank you.

Mr. Molina, questions or comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yes.

Thank you, Chairman.

22

ask for a clarification from Mr. Mateo on the

23

electrical improvements?

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I'm sorry.

Could I

I know I made -- I knew

that this was going to happen.

At this time,
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Members, we are on 20,000 for the treatment of

2

Kaunakakai gym.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6
7

Oh, okay.

I made you guys confused.
Okay.

No, no questions on the

treatment, termite treatment.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

I'm sorry.

Thank you.
Okay.

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Mr. Nishiki.
No.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Pontanilla.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Nope.

Ms. Tavares.
Yes.

Thank you, Chair.

The

14

$20,000 would be something that could go under a

15

Countywide R&M thing.

16

last night, I thought it could be just taken out of

17

their operating budget as Professional Services, but

18

their operating budget is slightly more than $1,000

19

over this year's budget.

20

$1,000, one or other, so it's very close.

21

all.

22

would suggest that if we consider Mr. Kane's

23

proposal to put in Countywide Parks Improvements,

24

that this would be a candidate for that -- for

25

inclusion in that.

And, you know, as we said

Or slightly less than
So that's

So I don't think there's room there, so I

But if that doesn't happen, then
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I think we should increase Molokai Parks by the

2

20,000.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Carroll, any comments?

5

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

No.

Mr. Kane.
No.

I made my comments.

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I made my comments.

I am not sure whether to recommend to you,

12

Members, either the Molokai District or Countywide,

13

but since we have the two administrators of the

14

Department and they are listening to the comments of

15

this Committee, I can -- I would assume they

16

understand the priority we're placing within the

17

Molokai District.

18

no objections, we'll move Kaunakakai Gym Termite

19

Treatment Program and have a consideration under

20

Countywide Park Improvements.

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

So I would say at this time, with

No objections.

Any objections?

Thank you.

Now, on the $130,000 for electric

24

improvements, electrical improvements, and 30,000

25

for stage replacement at One Alii Park on Molokai, I
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1

had asked Mr. Mateo if they could -- he could assist

2

us.

3

land that this facility sits on, Mr. Mateo?

4

Are you aware of the status of the lease of the

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, the County still leases it

5

from the Kawela Plantation's homeowners, and we have

6

been since 1960 on a year-to-year a dollar a year

7

lease with -- it started off with Molokai Ranch as

8

the original owner, and then to the Kawela

9

Plantation homeowners.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So we go on a year, one-year lease?

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Yeah.

Well, it's -- I don't have a

12

drop-dead term or, you know, or an end date to the

13

lease, but I understand we just lease it for a

14

dollar a year from the homeowners.

15

Department

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Would the

I don't know if Parks Administrators have

17

an understanding of the length of the lease for One

18

Alii Park.

19

dollar a year, but it for a 99-year period.

20

Lanai we did lease the old Lanai gym, but that was a

21

dollar a year and the term was 99 years.

22

County funds was requested for improvements, County

23

Attorneys at that time viewed that the length of the

24

lease far outlasted the improvement consideration,

25

and so use of County funds was supported.

Mr. Mateo shared that it was for a
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1

tell you that I have heard from attorneys that if it

2

is going to be less -- the term of the lease is less

3

than the improvement, life of the improvement, that

4

would be an area of question.

5

So I don't know if the Deputy or the Director

6

can share any information regarding One Alii at this

7

time regarding length of lease or when the lease

8

terminates with the County of Maui.

9
10

MR. CORREA:

Need to get back to you on it.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Members, we have moved the treatment

11

for the gym forward.

12

One Alii considerations until we get some comment

13

back from Department of Parks and Recreation.

14

objections?

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The Chair will ask to defer

Any

No objections.

We have line 554, which is a consideration

17

for an environmental assessment for the Ocean

18

Recreation Activities Permit Program.

19

As part of the requirements by the Council, an

20

assessment is required.

21

pretty much a full-blown assessment.

22

discussions that there is a possibility for us to

23

consider scaling it down and, therefore, it would

24

scale down the financial requests.

25

you have heard requests to defer the assessment till

Excuse me.

I believe the 225 is for
We've had

Also, Members,
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1

later, as well as comments that the assessment must

2

be done prior to the implementation of the revised

3

program.

4

time so that we can make a determination in round

5

one.
Ms. Johnson.

6

7

So the Chair will take comments at this

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

I would support any amount

8

of money being placed in this if we're going to move

9

forward with the environmental assessment.

So it's

10

basically whatever the members would agree to.

11

think that at this point if we want to utilize

12

existing studies or help work through Planning, that

13

type of thing, then I would just say put an amount

14

of money that we believe is at least going to get

15

the parks that we are most concerned about

16

addressed.

17

Ocean Recreation Permit activities, so I would focus

18

really on those parks where those activities are

19

going to continue.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And specifically this was related to the

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

21
22

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

I

No, no comment.

Mr. Molina.
Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

Obviously this topic has been a cause for concern;
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not so much the environmental assessment, but the
whole issue of Ocean Rec. Permits.

I think it's

3

only appropriate that we do some type of

4

environmental assessments.

5

Member Johnson, select the areas where these

6

activities are taking place to do these studies.

7

whatever amount it takes, Chairman, I'm in full

8

support.

9

So

Thank you.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Mr. Nishiki.

10
11

And I can concur with

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I am also in favor of the assessment.

12

I think that until this is done, we cannot go in and

13

justify increasing fees and determining whether the

14

parks that we have will allow commercial activities

15

to occur.

16

this community as a whole when we consider whether

17

commercial activities should occur, Mr. Chairman.

18

And then if and when this study is completed, we can

19

then proceed with perhaps getting our real fair

20

share Should we allow any commercial activity to

21

occur.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

So I think it's going to be a win-win for

So I support this.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I am in full support, Chair.

Thank you.
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1
2

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, I support the environmental

3

assessment, Mr. Chair.

I just wish we had a little

4

better estimate of what this would cost based on

5

the -- if we just focus on the parks where it is not

6

prohibited, and being sure that we address the

7

concerns that are required by law.

8

understand that this assessment is a requirement of

9

State law.

Because I

And if we scale down the scope, I think

10

we need to know that we're not scaling it down so

11

much that we're not going to comply with the law.

12

So it would be very helpful to have a professional

13

opinion as to what could be or couldn't be in the

14

scope, and then an estimate based on that.

15

you.

16

Thank

So I do support it, definitely.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

17

Mr. Carroll, any comments?

18

Mr. Kane.

19

Okay.

We'll move forward the $225,000

20

assessment funds for our Ocean Recreation Program.

21

We will try and get a better number for the next

22

round for consideration.

23
24
25

Okay.

Let us move forward in the PALS

Program under Parks and Recreation.
MS. KOLLER:

Mr. Chair.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

MS. KOLLER:

Yes, Tamara.
Staff would like clarification regarding the

termite treatment.
4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

MS. KOLLER:

Yes.
If you go back to page 27 in the CIP on

6

General Fund Countywide Parks, we have 400,000 in

7

there.

8

another 20,000, or to just add the park or the gym

9

to be included in here, whether you want a proviso

10
11

Was it the intention of the Committee to add

to make sure that that gym is included?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

The Chair's intention was to add language

12

that 20,000 would be for the Kaunakakai treatment of

13

the gym.

14

MS. KOLLER:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

Thank you.
Okay.

Thank you for the question.

Members, on line 559 under the PALS Program,

17

we have a consideration for the Haaheo Program,

18

which is a youth leaders, I guess, development

19

program, a consideration.

20

comments, please.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares, your

Yes, thank you.

As we discussed

22

last night, Mr. Chair, I believe that the Department

23

would be able or would put their money into the

24

intercession program, and perhaps we can look at

25

Haaheo Program for next

yea~.

And I would like,
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1

also, to have the Department provide for us a fee

2

schedule for PALS Program -- for the PALS Program.

3

It has been the same fee for 11 years.

4

that there have been costs going up.

5

in last year's budget an increase in salary for the

6

first time in ten years for the staff that work at

7

the PALS Program.

8

this request at this time, and hopefully have them

9

come back next year along with their fee schedule

10
11

And I think
We did approve

So I would be willing to withdraw

for our consideration, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
Staff, are you clear in understanding Ms.

13

Tavares's comments?

14

deleted.

Thank you.

Line 559 shall be

Thank you.

Under the Golf Course Program at Waiehu, we

15
16

have a proviso under line 565 for a study on golf

17

course fees.

18

check with other public course programs, and so my

19

comment would be while I think we need this study,

20

don't think we need to spend a lot of money.

And I can tell you that the Chair did

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I

Zero.

So -- Gosh, you're getting like telepathic

23

on me, Ms. Tavares.

I was going to recommend that I

24

don't believe they need additional monies to do

25

this.

And I, for one, think we can raise another
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1

100 plus thousand dollars real quickly by some

2

simple adjustments and operational adjustments, as

3

you know how the Chair feels about this program.

4

Any objection to the proviso, Members?

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

MS. KOLLER:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

Seeing none, the proviso shall be

incorporated.

8

10

No objections.

Mr. Chair.

MS. KOLLER:

Yes.
Would you like a date specific for when the

study should be transmitted to Council?

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

December 1st this year.

Any objections to December 1st?

That would

14

allow by the end of the term the ability to have a

15

review, as well as referral considerations for the

16

next Council.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane.
Mr. Chair, I just again -- excuse me,

18

not again, but I do note that this is going to be

19

the end of a term.

20

in the receiving everything out of all the

21

committees for -- not disposal, but for disposition,

22

and then everything else -- it will be all

23

distributed back out in January.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So what will happen is we'll be

That is correct.
And we may be dealing with -- mayor
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may not -- new people or new positions or whatever.

2

You know, it'll -- We're going to deal with an

3

organizational issue.

4

need to make some note of that, and then show these

5

as issues that are a priority that we need to

6

prepare for our budget session next year so that we

7

have this information and we -- at least on the two

8

items that we're talking about with this mode, that

9

we hit the ground running on these particular items

So, I don't know, somehow we

10

because they are of such importance.

11

note, Chair.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

So just a

Thank you for your comment.
Any other comments?

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Seeing

Mr. Chair.

Yes, Ms. Tavares.
I guess I would say I understand

17

where Mr. Kane is coming from.

18

night that the whole purpose was to get it right at

19

the beginning of the next term.

20

our intention so that it could be processed to a

21

Committee right away and not go through the Council

22

again and have a delay of those two weeks, that that

23

was all the intention was.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

We discussed it last

So I think that was

Thank you.

Thank you for that comment.

Any other comments?

Seeing none, the due
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date for a fee study for the golf program shall be

2

due December 1, 2004.
We shall now go to page 18 under Department

3

4

of Planning.

5

to defer this till later in the day when the Chair

6

will present you with his recommendation.

7

objections?

8

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Members, the Chair is going to ask you

Any

No objections.

Okay.

Under Department of Prosecuting

10

Attorney, I have yet to meet with Mr. Fukuoka and

11

others.

12

Counsel, Prosecuting Attorneys, as well as attorneys

13

in the Office of Council Services, I would like to

14

move forward.

15

comfortable that there is sufficient amount --

16

should we move forward with any type of increase,

17

that under the Countywide adjustment for such item

18

is sufficient funds and, therefore, I would like us

19

to move forward since we have no ability to get a

20

specific"amount during the first round.

21

is sufficient funds in the Countywide account.

22

with no objections, can we move forward with this

23

area, Members?

My comment would be regarding Corporation

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I believe at this time the Chair is

But there

No objections.

Okay.

Thank you very much.
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Let us move forward.

1

I believe the -- We are

2

now on page 23 under Transportation.

3

Taguchi, I know he has made contact with Mrs. Sandi

4

Akina to get some comment, and Mr. Taguchi is not

5

here at this time.

6

that?

Okay.

Let me ask Mr.

Why don't we return to

Let's move to line 770 regarding a Proviso

7
8

That a Five-Year Bus Transit Implementation Plan be

9

submitted to the Council by December 1st, 2004.

10

Comments, Members?

I will ask Mr. Molina if he has

11

any comments at this time?

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

No comments, Chairman.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Nishiki.
Support.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Support.

Ms. Tavares.
Support.

Mr. Carroll.
Support.

Mr. Kane.

22

Ms. Johnson.

23

Mr. Mateo.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Support.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We shall include the proviso and,

Okay.
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1

again, allow Staff and Corporation Counsel to work

2

with the Chair to develop proper language.
Okay.

3

We have Mr. Taguchi back.

Lance, have

4

you been able to get some information from Mrs.

5

Akina regarding comments last night on the

6

MR. TAGUCHI:

I was able to contact Sandi Akina.

She

7

explained that the amount currently listed in the

8

Mayor's proposed budget of 321,000 was an amount

9

that was an estimate back in October.

Subsequent to

10

that, they performed a study -- they hired a

11

consultant and performed a study, and then based on

12

the study they carne up with the proposal that was

13

presented to this Council, the one that had three

14

different alternatives.
When I asked Mrs. Akina and her consultant

15

16

what

17

for the 321,000 for the upcoming fiscal year, they

18

said that they would not, that that was not a

19

sufficient amount of funds to continue the program

20

as it currently exists for an additional year.

21

still waiting for further information as to what

22

would be a reasonable amount if the County were to

23

go to try and get a proposal to continue a system

24

such as the one that is currently in place for an

25

additional year.

if they would be able to provide the service

I am

I am still waiting for a reply.
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And currently my understanding is that the

2

county subsidizes two routes with the Akinas.

There

3

are three other additional routes within the Public

4

Transit Program.

5

are not subsidized and are profitable and will

6

probably still be maintained by the Akinas whether

7

or not this Public Transit Program goes forward.

8

think one of those routes are in Kihei.

9

Kihei, in Lahaina.

I think one or two of those routes

No, not

One of the subsidized routes,

10

from my understanding, is in Kihei.

11

certain where the other route is, but I think it's

12

within Central or somewhere.

15
16

I'm not quite

And I am still waiting, once again, for

13
14

I

further information.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.
Okay.

Thank you for that, Mr. Taguchi.
In the budget, Members, we are aware

17

of the 321,756.

If you take the Akina Group

18

comments as of February 2nd, 2003, and provided that

19

this is -- has more -- the variance is within

20

reasonable limits and you look at Alternative One,

21

Minimal Service, the subsidy would be at $1.434

22

million.

23

to try and receive additional comments from Mrs.

24

Akina, who the Chair will in advance thank for her

25

cooperation and willingness to share information

And, of course, Mr. Taguchi is being asked
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2

with this Committee.
And, again, for those that may not have been

3

with us last night, the Chair would also acknowledge

4

that they have made a difference for the better to

5

this community, to this island in trying provide a

6

service.

7

8
9
10

Saying that, Members, any comments before the
Chair makes a recommendation?

Mr. Carroll.

Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair, I think that answers the

11

question that I asked last night about the context

12

of the question was if we're going to add an

13

additional $100,000 to the existing 321 to make it

14

work, and I think the response is very clear it's

15

not going to work.

16

come up with 1.4 to get somebody to put together

17

something that has -- through a study should be able

18

to work, or, in my mind, I'm going to stand on my

19

comments -- and this is a deciding thing -- on my

20

earlier comments that we have the Director of the

21

Department who took on the responsibility to engage

22

the community and figure out for Maui County not

23

only on a study, but actually going out and engaging

24

the community and seeing what's going to work, what

25

the community wants, bring it back, put forward a

And so the decision is we either
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proposal, and then come to this body to have the

2

discussion on what they feel is the best proposal

3

for us.

4

I think this Department was set up for them

5

to do the initiative.

If you read the Charter, the

6

eight sentences in there, really the only role the

7

County has -- the Council has, unless -- If we

8

follow the remarks earlier of our Budget Chair, if

9

they are looking for us to go do what I read in the

10

Charter is what they're supposed to be doing, then

11

that's something that we've got to discuss.

12

this point from what I read in the Charter, it is

13

the Director's responsibility to put forward a plan.

14

And if they want that plan funded, they need to come

15

to us as the funding body, as the legislative branch

16

to do that.

17

But at

So if their answer is supportive of the Akina

18

proposal that what they want to do is spend $1.4

19

some odd million, which is the least expensive

20

option, or one of the other options, then that's

21

what we need to hear from them.

22

Tuesday we haven't heard that, which option are they

23

going to select.

24

don't have a plan in front of us to proceed from our

25

own County Department of Transportation.

And I think till

My point being, Chair, is that we
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1

they do that, the most excruciating answer would be

2

we have to stop, we have to get that plan put

3

together, have our Director and the Deputy and the

4

Department do what they got to do to put something

5

in front of us that we all can go buy into,

6

including, most importantly, the public, the ones

7

who are going to utilize this service.

8

do that, I do not see us being prudent in throwing

9

at the minimum $1.4 million to something that hasn't

10

been tested, proven.

11

that.

12
13
14

But until we

I just can't see us doing

So those are my comments, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I would be interested in the

15

response from Mrs. Akina, because basically the

16

services or the three levels of service that they

17

were looking at plus different variations were

1~

presented, but then there's always the scenario that

19

no one has gone to yet, and that's that if the

20

Council puts out X number of dollars, what can we

21

get for that service, you know.

22

I -- I basically support what the Akinas are doing,

23

because I think it's establishing at least some

24

route, some alternative for the general public who

25

don't have automobiles, who can't afford the

So I think that
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insurance and all the other things that go along

2

with it.

3

And I think what Mr. Nishiki mentioned either

4

last night or the night before about feeling

5

terrible knowing that there's some people that have

6

no choice.

7

How are they going to find a way to work?

8

some cases, you know, that's

9

hardest thing, I think, of all, is to look at the

What are these people going to do now?
And in

it's -- that's the

10

impacts of just shutting down a program, albeit it's

11

a program that may not have had tremendous success.

12

My whole thing would be if we picked an

13

amount that would set some kind of policy direction,

14

if we said, okay, we are willing to spend X number

15

of dollars, and then give that to whether it's our

16

Department or put something together in a request

17

for proposal that might work within that framework.

18

Maybe do modified routes.

19

don't think we have really talked about yet, and so

20

that option is still out there.

21

everything down, just, I guess, regroup and say,

22

okay, what we're doing right now, we're going to

23

have to pull back, maybe make a few less stops, pick

24

the most lucrative routes, maybe bump up fees a

25

little bit.

That's a thing that I

Rather than shut

But where there is a will, there is a
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way, that's my philosophy.
And I support what the Akinas are doing.

2

I

3

also support what MEO has been trying to do in

4

partnering with them.

5

tough challenge even in their special needs

6

transportation, but I think that they have done a

7

really good job in picking up the slack.

8

have done it pretty much on a shoestring budget from

9

this County.

And I know that they've got a

And they

So some of the success that we have

10

not experienced is also due, in part, to the fact

11

that we haven't put those kind of resources in.
So at this point I'm willing to go along with

12
13

whatever the body is willing to go along with.

14

willing to put more money into it and put some

15

caveats and restrictions.

16

in seeing what the -- what the counterproposal would

17

be.

18

okay, we're going to put $750,000 into this right

19

now, because that's all we can afford after

20

everything is said and done, and then have them come

21

back.

22

throw the baby out with the bath water.

23

I'm

And I'm also interested

If we said to the Akinas or anyone out there,

And at least engage in a dialogue rather than

Because, as Ms. Tavares said, I think, also,

24

when MEO first started, it wasn't easy.

25

that starts is going to have its growing pains, and

Any program
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1

I think that's what we're going through right now.

2

But I don't think we should regress.

3

going to change if we keep on doing the same old

4

thing, which is nothing.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

So thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

10

Nothing is

No comment.

Mr. Molina.
No, Chairman, I await further

response from the Akinas.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Thank you.

Mr. Nishiki.
Yeah.

Judging from what Lance said,

13

I really can't make a decision, Mr. Chairman.

14

Because if the money that we allocate -- And we have

15

not even addressed buses yet, I think was one of the

16

questions Danny mentioned equipment.

17

but, like I said, without even going into much

18

detail, I think we need to what the routes are.

19

even, you know, Danny made a good point on the point

20

that we don't have any information from the

21

community.

22

I don't know,

But

And I don't know if the Akina study -- The

23

one you saw and the one I've seen is not -- like he

24

said, doesn't have the meat in it, you know.

25

impossible to make any reasonable determination.
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1

All you stated, Mr. Chairman, on the low end was

2

1.43.

3

(inaudible) .

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I don't know if that was based on

I will just add at this point, Mr. Nishiki,

5

that that is what we got from an Executive Summary.

6

We have no way how they arrived at this number --

7

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Right.

-- and what factors were involved.

I'll just share that.

You know, of course I have my

10

comments, but I will allow you to share yours

11

without interruptions.

12

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah.

And so

Okay.

So, anyway, that's the

13

reason why I had asked that we get the information

14

from the Akinas, be that you were going to ask them

15

some questions about what routes they were going to

16

show that they were going to run with the frequency

17

and the money that they need in operations.

18

also, I think we need the breakouts in the

19

equipment, because that's surely, as I said last

20

night, a number that we need to also input in.

21

Then,

And personally I don't know how -- unless

22

we've got some history from Administration or the

23

Akinas, how much money we have given them for

24

purchase of buses.

25

the last grant, but I'd truly like to know that,

I don't know if we did that in
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1

also.

The entire cost package that they would need

2

to run their route that they say they're going to

3

and the equipment.

4

necessary.

So I think all of that is

Now, my last take on this is that a route, as

5
6

Dane had mentioned, that the community says that

7

this is something that they want.

8

any decision right now with the information that we

9

have.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

So I can't make

Thank you for your comments.
Mr. Pontanilla.

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

No comments at this time.

Ms. Tavares.
Yes, thank you.

That was

15

interesting information.

And, you know, I handed

16

out a copy this morning of the memo that was

17

attached to the KAKU study that was given to us

18

December 16th, I think, 2003 or around there, I

19

think December 19th it was transmitted to us.

20

contained the KAKU Associates study and the

21

Executive Summary.

22

Summary, point No.6, the action item is to develop

23

a five-year transportation program for bus services

24

that includes routes, services, et cetera.

25

to be done before we put any more money into it,

That

And reading off the Executive
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1

into a system when we're talking about buying

2

equipment.

3

We also -- As much as we would like to think

4

that we can just say, we have $750,000, what can you

5

give us for that; you can't do it like that.

6

bus business is very competitive and we all know it

7

here on Maui because we for eons have had

8

contentiousness arising between and among all of the

9

bus companies on this island.

The

So we can't do that.

10

The information has to be very specific.

11

specifications have to be written very tightly.

12

Those specifications depend on the results of this

13

study so that we identify the routes, we identify

14

the headways and the frequency and all of that stuff

15

so that everybody is bidding on the same thing.

16

need this study to be completed before we can really

17

get any further into it.

18

The

We

I was pleased to hear that the Akina

19

operation has two profitable bus routes and they

20

will probably continue that with or without us.

21

That's what I heard.

22

of gone where I don't want to see this stop totally,

23

but I didn't want everything to stop totally.

24

if they are finding out that they have -- they can

25

do these other two routes that they've been -- and I

So I have now, you know,
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1

suspect it's the one Kihei to Lahaina, that's one of

2

the routes, and I don't know if the other one is

3

from Central Maui to Lahaina or not, but at least

4

we've got some semblance of some kind of shuttle.

5

And at this time, Chair, I would recommend

6

that we not fund any more transit of this nature and

7

focus on -- the Department has to focus on getting

8

this plan accomplished, and then we can go from

9

there, see what happens.

And, Chair, we need to get

10

the results from this Department.

11

able to get the kind of results we think we should

12

have, we may want to think next term about a Charter

13

amendment that dissolves this Department.

14

we cannot spend this kind of money to operate a

15

Department that does not produce the kind of result

16

we need in order to get the services to the

17

community.

18

Councilmembers.

19

And if we aren't

Because

That's our responsibility as

The people want something to happen.

In

20

order for that to happen, we need to have this kind

21

of information.

22

responsibility right now through the Charter,

23

through our discussions here on the floor to the

24

Department of Transportation in the County of Maui.

25

So they have got to step to the plate and do this.

And we are entrusting that
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You know, I'm willing to work with them very much

2

because I'm a big proponent of transit, I know Mr.

3

Molina is, we all are.

4

conferences to learn about transportation in rural

5

areas.

6

with them.

7

and we've got to work on it together, that's all.

8

We need to get focused and get going.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10
11

And we spent money going to

You know, we would be very willing to work
And we've got -- we're in this together

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Thank you, Chair.

On April 8th

12

when we had the meeting with Department of

13

Transportation, I went and asked -- sent 12

14

questions that I never got a reply to.

15

them were replied to, they weren't replied to either

16

in order or in the context that I asked them.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

If any of

Was it through this Committee, Mr. Carroll?
Yes.

And as far as we know, I

19

have checked with Staff, and we can't find any

20

answer to them.

21

was things that we discussed.

22

marked?

23

identified?

24

at the bus stops.

25

locations nearby, shopping malls?

And they were very simple.

There

How are the bus stops

How will they be marked?

Are the buses

How are they identified?

Bus schedules

Are they available in other
What program is
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1

in place to encourage ridership?

Duration of pilot

2

program.

Administration's commitment to the

3

service.

How large a bus system do you foresee in

4

the future?

5

ADA accessible, if any?

6

obvious and who would be handling the complaints?

7

And progress reports, would they be sent to the

8

Council?

What percentage of the buses would be
And a complaint line, is it

And a few more, but the point is that these

9

10

were all very simple, common sense things that

11

should have been initiated during the first program

12

when we did the first -- they first initiated the

13

transportation program.

14

had, most of this wasn't

15

So unless I have answers to these questions,

16

couldn't support the program because even the very

17

basic things are not in place.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

And from the testimony we
still isn't being done.
I

Thank you.

Thank you for your comments, Mr. Carroll.
I would also ask you to take note, Members,

20

that in the copy of a transmittal dated December 16,

21

2003, regarding the transportation plan, it is

22

specific that it is transmitting a draft.

23

a plan.

24

being revised totally, partially, or not at all.

25

And while I can appreciate a draft,

It is not

It is a working document that is capable of

I wouldn't know
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how to ask you to set policy on something that is

2

not a final ver.sion.

3

So saying that, I think at this time,

4

Members, the Chair would recommend until we receive

5

some additional information from the Akinas, who

6

have notified Mr. Taguchi that they will try and

7

provide additional comments, until such time the

8

Chair is going to say that we put an amount of zero

9

in the column.

10

Okay.

Any objections?

move forward.

11

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Okay.

Tamara, can you look at, please,

13

page 23 under line 798?

14

something we need to deal with?

15

We shall

MS. KOLLER:

There's this -- Is that

Let me check, Mr. Chair.

I think there was a

16

question whether -- I think we had talked about

17

this, but I'm not sure that we had consensus on it,

18

and maybe this one should have been highlighted.

19

Perhaps Councilmember Tavares can help me out on

20

that one.

21

the Learn to Swim Program, and was an estimate of

This is the MEO youth transportation for

50,000.
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Oh, I don't think we ever really

discussed it.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah.

That--
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

While we were moving things

2

around, it kind of was lost in the shuffle.

But I

3

don't -- This is another case where I do not know

4

what it will cost to do the pilot _program, but I

5

think if the Aquatics Division knew about how much

6

money they had to work with as far as

7

transportation, that would give them a starting

8

point.

9

I'm judging from what it costs the PALS Program to

It will cost much more than this, I'm sure.

10

provide bus transportation for excursions.

But I

11

think that having that -- a number in here under

12

youth transportation, that it could be encompassed

13

in the MEO's youth transportation services.

14

And this would be to transport fifth graders

15

from the various public and private high schools --

16

private and public schools.

17

graders in high school.

18

guess there could be.

19

coordinated.

20

MEO about this at all.

21

comfortable leaving it as a blank and just say for

22

transportation of the Learn to Swim Program, then

23

the Department could decide what kind of route they

24

want to go to, like they do with the PALS Program or

25

something else.

I hope there's no fifth

Unless they're geniuses, I
The -- It possibly could be

Now, I never even -- I didn't talk to
So if the body feels more

But to give them the most
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flexibility, maybe that's what it should say.

2

perhaps if we're not going to be specific to MEO, it

3

should be in the Parks budget.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla.

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

9

And

No comment.

Mr. Nishiki.

headed towards.

I support this direction that we're
This Learn to Swim Program with the

10

bus transportation could make use of our swimming

11

pools up in Pukalani, but, more importantly, I think

12

to give youth everywhere the opportunity to learn to

13

swim.

14

remember school as being something for also

15

athletics.

16

earlier, the need for all of us as a community

17

living on an island surrounded by an ocean, I think

18

that component is so important.

19

As much,as school is for scholastics, I

And as has been stated by many of us

We spend millions of dollars to create these

20

swimming pools, and I know Mr. Kane can attribute

21

even his children participating in swimming.

22

who knows what just this small opportunity of a job

23

learning to swim can create in the ocean a famous

24

surfer, a famous swimmer, a famous who knows what.

25

And, most importantly, even someone that may pluck
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some visitor or resident out of the water just

2

because he or she had the ability to learn to swim.

3

So to me a most important component, and I am in

4

favor of allowing the swimming pools and our youths

5

to have the opportunity to get out of school -- not

6

out of school, to get to swim during going to school

7

to have some physical exercise and to learn

8

something that is so important in this community.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

12

as well.

13

have -- you will have the prospect of swimming, one

14

way or another.

15

that everyone should have no matter where you're

16

from.

17

process.

18

only just about academics, but it's also about

19

learning life skills.

20

transportation in conjunction with a program like

21

this I think is a great utilization of funds and

22

serves a great purpose as it relates to public

23

transportation as well.

24

Chairman.

25

Yes, Chairman.

I'll support this

In every child adult's life you will

I think it's a basic life skill

And it ties in real well to the educational

CHAIR HOKAMA:

As Mr. Nishiki said, it's

school is not

This opportunity to use MEO

So I'll support this,

Thank you.
Thank you.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.

(808) 524-2090

BF 04/29/04

1

159

Mr. Mateo.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, I can support.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Ms. Johnson.
Support.

Mr. Kane.
Mr. Chair, just briefly, whether it's

7

MEO or I would think any other type of

8

transportation, as long as we can figure out routes

9

and frequencies as well as the, you know, amount of

10

kids that are going to be utilizing, I think that's

11

what's going to help us finalize the actual dollar

12

amount figure.

13

out and, I guess, that's communicating between Parks

14

and whoever the bus transportation would be, we may

15

be able to get a more accurate figure to work with.

16

And then -- And although Member Tavares has already

17

mentioned

18

less than what it's going to cost, anyway -- I think

19

that's what you said, Member Tavares.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER

th~t

So once that information is figured

what we're talking about is actually

TAVA~ES:

as -- decide? to use as the pilot.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24
25

It would depend on what she uses

Yeah.
Because we're -- I'm sorry, Mr.

Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

The proviso is for them to

2

implement a pilot program.

3

chooses and then tries to work the schedule out.

4

think they have from now till September to work on a

5

program, but I feel that it -- you know, part of

6

this is sufficient.

7

all they have to work with, they might come up with

8

some sponsors, they might ask the parents to pay for

9

part of it.

10

So whatever area she
I

Or if it's 50,000 and that's

There's all kinds of options they could

do to leverage that, that amount of money, also.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

Chair.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

And forgive me, Mr.

Mr. Kane.
Other than that, Mr. Chair, I can

15

completely support something like this.

16

like Mr. Nishiki, a swimming pool is the first step

17

for a lot of kids, because the ocean is a very

18

intimidating place.

19

one-inchers that roll on the shore on those sands, a

20

lot of kids get frightened.

21

water, you get them going, you'd be surprised at

22

what they do when they get into the ocean.

23

totally supportive.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

I, too,

Even with those little

But you put them in the

So I am

Thank you.

Mr. Carroll.
Thank you, Chair.

I also support
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this program strongly because it not only teaches

2

them how to use -- to approach the water and be in

3

the water, but it teaches them to be smart, and that

4

saves lives.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

Okay.

Thank you.

Ms. Tavares, the Chair was not clear if there

7

is to be an amount, or we are just leaving the

8

program?

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

the amount of 50,000 forward.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So shall it just be for youth

transportation?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah.

I believe that would give

them the best flexibility.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Members, any objections, $50,000 for

youth transportation for a Learn to Swim Program?

17

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Mr. Chairman, I put -- I would put

No objections.

Okay.

We shall add that to the first round

consideration.

20

Okay.

Members, before we continue, let us

21

take a short break, please.

22

(Gavel.)

23

RECESS:

24

RECONVENE:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Please return by 3;45.

3:32 p.m.
3:59 p.m.

(Gavel.)

Okay.

Thank you.

The Chair
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apologizes for the delayed start of the reconvening

2

of this meeting, Members.

3

your attention to page 24.

4

will see the line 810 has been highlighted.

5

believe that during last night the Committee made a

6

consensus agreement to move the full amount forward,

7

up to 102,000.

8

please delete line 810.

9

Okay.

I will ask you to direct
On page 24, Members, you
I

So as information at this time,

Now, as you see, line 814, I would say

10

at this time -- and I know we talked about it on

11

line 767 -- I would say that this line needs to be

12

zero at this time.

13

MR. TAGUCHI:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

MR. TAGUCHI:

Chair Hokama.
Mr. Taguchi.
I received a voice message that the

16

accountant for Akina will be submitting some

17

information to us tomorrow morning.

18

to let the members know.

19

information on what the requirements would be to

20

continue the current system for another year.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I just wanted

So we should have some

If you can contact them, we want it

22

broken down by routes.

I believe some of the other

23

comments from the Committee was frequency, amount of

24

stops.

25

Oh, schedule -- the schedule, the amount of stops,

Mr. Nishiki, I remember you mentioned what?
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what were some of the other concerns you brought up

2

regarding the route?

3

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

MR. TAGUCHI:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The schedule or the frequency.
Yeah.

And how often.

Okay.
I'll call them and let them know.
Thank you.
Okay.

9

Route, stops.

Hearing that, it doesn't hurt to leave

10

the number there at this point, so we shall move on.

11

I think that -- Is there anything else, Staff?

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Excuse me, Mr. Chair, I'm sorry.

13

you're going to leave the number there, then?

14

You're not going to zero it out?

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So

I would say if we do zero it out, it

16

assists the members more than if you had to add it

17

back in, just from your Chair's perspective.

18

would be a lot easier to remove than reinstate, Mr.

19

Kane, in my opinion.

20

support the Chair at this time to leave the number

21

in until we get the information from the Akina

22

Group.

So I hope the members would

Any objections?

23

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

This

No

objections~

Excuse me.
Okay.

I do have a request from Mr. Mateo,
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and I believe that would be under -- I'll ask him to

2

give his suggestion.

3

Department of Public Works.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Now, this is regarding
Mr. Mateo.

Chairman, thank you.

Chairman, the

5

other day I provided a handout to all of the members

6

regarding the Molokai portable toilets and pumping

7

service.

8

proposal -- (Disturbance in the background.)

9
10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And this was a recommendation -- a

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Staff will check.
Thank you, Chairman.

I'm sorry.

11

This was a proposal submitted by the individual who

12

will be doing the grease remove -- grease pumping

13

from our businesses on Molokai.

14

time, Chairman, Mr. Crabbe also offers a cesspool

15

pumping services, since the County is phasing out

16

of this service.

17

capabilities, his business does not have the

18

appropriate equipment to do the grease trap pumping.

19

He's tried to do it, but it's not successful.

20

Therefore, he contacted the Solid Waste Recycling

21

he handles steel with the recycling grant program,

22

and was advised that there was -- the Department did

23

not apply for this fiscal year for any funds.

24

Therefore, she routed Mr. Crabbe to my office,

25

advising him that we can put items like this into

At this particular

And in light of his pumping
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our budget request.
What Mr. Crabbe is asking for is assistance

2
3

in purchasing a 500-gallon portable vacuum system

4

and a flatbed conversion for his 1989 Ford pickup

5

that he uses.

6

Mr. Chair, yesterday, you recommended that I touch

7

bases with Public Works and get their opinion as

8

well and their comments on this particular request.

9

I received from the -- from Deputy Director Arakawa

in my discussion with you,

In our

10

his comments supporting the grease trap needs for

11

Mr. Crabbe.

12

Harder as well, who also indicate that the requested

13

equipment is also appropriate to do the job for

14

Molokai, which includes servicing the 27 grease

15

traps on that island.

And, also, he touched bases with Mr.

And at this particular point we need to

16
17

understand that once the grease is captured, they

18

ship it to Honolulu for processing, and he lacks the

19

appropriate equipment to do the job.

20

Thank you, Chairman.

21

Oh, Chairman, can I just -- I'm sorry,

22

Chairman.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

25

Please, Mr. Mateo.
The initial request for Mr. Crabbe,

he's requesting 16,500.

This -- I would like to
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revise that total to be -- to identify only those

2

two equipment purchases that he has requested; the

3

500-gallon portable vacuum system at $10,000, and

4

the flatbed conversion, 4,400, for a total of

5

14,400.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7
8
9

Thank you, Chair.
Thank you.
Mr. Molina, any comments?

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

This is

something that I can support because Molokai, they

10

have some special needs as it relates to cesspools.

11

And Mr. Crabbe, I know, in terms of coming down

12

to charging, I should say, he has been very fair to

13

the people of Molokai, trying to keep costs down.

14

And I believe this equipment request will augment

15

his services and help out a lot of people who are

16

having some difficult concerns as it relates to

17

cesspools.

18

needed for the island, Chairman.

So this is something that I believe is

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Mr. Nishiki.
Support.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Support.

Ms. Tavares.
Support.

Mr. Carroll.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Thank you, Chair.

It seems that

2

there's only one person on the island that is able

3

to do this, so it's not a matter of favoritism,

4

would assume.

5

there that's going to come forward afterwards.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

10
11

I certainly hope there's nobody out

Chairman.

Mr. Mateo.
Thank you, Chairman.

Mr. Carroll, thank you very much.

9

I

Mr. Crabbe

is the only pumper on our island, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

And the other concern I have is we

12

are giving him a $16,500 grant and, well, he does

13

have a monopoly over there.

14

is anything we can do to make sure that -- I'm sure

15

he's a very fine person, but when you do have the

16

sole business and everybody is totally dependent on

17

you for this service, I would hope there would be

18

some guarantees we can have inside there as for the

19

charges of the disposal.

20

idea how to put something in there at this moment of

21

time, but I would hope that maybe Mr. Arakawa with

22

Public Works could between now and then look at the

23

wording, some conditions on this grant to make sure

24

that there are not any abuses.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I wonder if there

And I'm not

I have no

Thank you.

Thank you.
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Mr. Kane.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Is this a for profit business?
Yes, it is.
So the grease trap operators are at

5

the mercy of one operator, who is dictated by the

6

market economy on what prices he charges and his

7

responses.

8

make me feel uncomfortable.

9

point, I'll support with reservations.

There's some circumstances here that
My -- To get to the
And I hope

10

the message is made clear to Mr. Crabbe that I hope

11

he responds to his -- the people that he's going to

12

be serving with what the people deserve.

13

leave it at that.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

And I'll

Thank you.

Thank you.

Ms.

Chair.

Oh, I'm sorry.

Ms. Johnson.
I'll defer to Councilmember

Tavares.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I was going to ask Ms. Traci

21

Villarosa if when we do these kind of grant

22

agreements for equipment like this to a for profit

23

organization, doesn't the County of Maui retain

24

ownership of the equipment should the business stop?

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Corporation Counsel.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

169

BF 04/29/04

1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And aren't they required to then

2

provide periodic reports to whatever department they

3

might come under?

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Corporation Counsel.

5

MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

Mr. Chair.

Well, of course the

6

grant agreement can be tailored, you know,

7

specifically for the needs of the particular grant

8

or grantee, but in general our grant agreements are

9

worded such that I think they have to do -- the

10

grantees have to submit quarterly reports to the

11

managing department.

12

equipment, the County doesn't retain ownership or

13

title to the equipment, but there is a provision in

14

the grant agreement where if the equipment -- if the

15

equipment is not used for the purpose for which it

16

was granted, then the property is supposed to come

17

back to the County.

18
19
20
21
22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
that.

And as far as purchase of

Reverts.

Yeah, something like

So, in effect, it's still ours if he quits.

MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

If it's no longer used for the

purpose of the grant, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Right.

Can it also be written

23

into a grant like this that the fees are subject to

24

the -- you know, to review and approval by the

25

Department of Public Works and Waste Management as
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2

part of the deal?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

Mr. Chair, that could be written in

3

as part of the grant proposal, as part of the

4

program.

5

include the fees that the grantee would be charging.

6

They could include -- The grantee could

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Because I recall I think the cart

7

concession at the golf course, as part of their

8

contract they had to stay within a certain range

9

when they got the contract for what they charged the

10

public for use of the carts, even though it's a

11

private business.

12

help to, you know, allay some of the concerns I

13

have, also, with a private entity that Mr. Carroll

14

and Mr. Kane and I'm sure Ms. Johnson, all of us

15

might have had that same thought.

16

assure that we can tailor the contract that way, I

17

would have no problem supporting this.

18
19
20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I think something like that might

But if you can

Thank you.

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I think that's prudent.

And I

21

think, also, that because this is a first-time

22

project where both the County is seeing how this is

23

going to work, as well as the person who is

24

providing the service, I think it would also qualify

25

as a pilot program because it's not been done
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before.

2

situation.

3

need.

4

providing that service or willing to do it at a, you

5

know, particular cost, as Ms. Tavares has suggested,

6

I think it's worth it to go forward and just provide

7

the service because it is for a public purpose.

8

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

So I don't feel as uncomfortable about the
I feel that you just have to fill a

And if there is only one individual that's

Okay.

Thank you.

We shall create a line under Department of

11

Public Works.

12

where's the most appropriate part for this grant, as

13

I guess we will consider it at this time.

14

MS. KOLLER:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

MS. KOLLER:

The Staff and I will need to decide

Mr. Chair.
Yes, Tamara.
In looking at the details for the Landfill

17

Diversion Program on 18-104 of the details, there is

18

a -- under Other Costs they have a -- on the County

19

grant subsidy of 25,000.

20

this, it's possible we could put a proviso for those

21

funds to be used for this equipment.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

It's -- We can look into

With no objections, we will pursue

23

that option to see if it's a viable one to address

24

the needs of Mr. Mateo and Molokai.

25

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Any objections?

No objections.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Is there

2

So ordered.

Regarding One Alii, Members, Mr.

3

Mateo and I need a few more -- a little more time to

4

work on this consideration.

5

that what is presented to the Committee is a very

6

viable and workable consideration.

7

the Chair will ask that that be deferred further.

8

Any objections?

9

10
11
12

COUNCIL MEMBERS:
CHAIR HOKAMA:

We want to make sure

So at this time

No objections.

Okay.

Is there anything that the Chair has

at this point missed regarding round one, Staff?
MS. KOLLER:

I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, I'm just looking.

I

13

think -- I think we're okay.

14

wanted the Committee to -- on page 31, this was for

15

Bridge Repair and Maintenance, and last night I have

16

this still under bond fund, but that will be moved

17

to cash under Countywide.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

MS. KOLLER:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

MS. KOLLER:

22
23

Yes.

There was one note I

We shall create a line for Bridge.

Right.
And
And I think that's the only one other than to

start back at the beginning.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Under Countywide Facilities, let us

24

create a line for Countywide Repair and Maintenance

25

of Bridges.

The Chair would recommend at this time
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$100,000.

2

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

No objections.

Any objections?
No objections.

Okay.

We shall include one for -- under

Countywide Repair and Maintenance of Bridges.

7

Anything else, Staff?

8

MS. KOLLER:

No, Mr. Chair.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Before we go back to the beginning,

10

the Chair is going to take another recess so we can

11

get an accurate assessment of where we are with the

12

revisions that the Committee has made through the

13

first round.

14

what do you think we'll need?

15

4:45.

And so we shall return at -- Staff,

Recess till 4:45.

16

RECESS:

17

RECONVENE:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We shall return at

(Gavel.)

4:18 p.m.
4:54 p.m.

(Gavel.)

We shall bring the Committee back

19

to order.

Thank you, Members.

The Staff has

20

calculated the difference after the end of round one

21

from the Chair's proposal to you that we started to

22

work from.

23

short of revenue with all of the adjustments that

24

have been made by the members of this Committee for

25

round one.

At this point we are $7.554 million
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Now, of course, the two extremes is, one, we

2

cut 7.554 in the budget after round one, or we raise

3

taxes at the other end of the extreme to generate

4

another $7.554 million to pay for all of the

5

additions, or a combination of taxation and cuts to

6

balance the budget.

7

lot to think about as a Committee and individually

8

before we start round two.

9

I would say, Members, we have a

I will tell you that the Finance Director has

10

already been contacted -- had preliminary contact

11

with bond agencies regarding any comments if they

12

had, and unofficially Mr. Regan was able to report

13

that the agencies are hoping for Council to consider

14

later a more formal policy regarding savings as well

15

as carryover, because we have discussed the

16

differences between carryover and savings.

17

they were quite pleased with the direction this

18

Committee is moving forward to address some of the

19

concerns that they have brought forward.

20

that's the good news.

21

That

And so

You have heard already in my opening comments

22

of where we are in regards to revenues and at this

23

time the required expenditures.

24

use this very long recess I'm going to provide

25

you -- or an extra long, it's not going to be real,

I will ask you to
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real long, but an extra long recess so that you may

2

think of how you may want to approach it.
The Chair, of course, will do what I can to

3

4

assist the Committee by also trying to provide a

5

consideration of how to approach this difference,

6

but I would ask that you either talk among

7

yourselves or as individuals see how you would like

8

to approach the $7.5 million difference.
Any questions, please?

9

10

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We'll start

Chair.

Everyone will have your opportunity,

12

Members.

Everyone will have your chance.

13

Mr. Molina, you caught the Chair's attention first,

14

please, your comment.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

question.

17

now, if we were to look at taxation, what kind of

18

increases are we looking at?

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, thank you, Chair.

So since

One

With us being $7.5 million short right

To be honest, Mr. Molina, I'm not -- I have

20

not really started calculation, because I would

21

prefer that all members look at reductions first

22

before even thinking about raising taxes.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I was just asking about it, not

really suggesting anything.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

I will -- As your Chairman, I will provide
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that information

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Sure.

Sure.

-- to the members, but at this point I have

4

no adjustments to taxes or fees or a combination of

5

taxes and fees to how to address this.

6

I'm giving you is what Staff gave to me minutes

7

before the reconvening of this meeting.

8

share this $7.5 million shortfall, I am dealing with

9

it like you right now.

Again, what

So as I

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

information.

16

our pencil and really take a look at things that we

17

need to do, and the things that we can live without

18

for a while, just got to remove it.

19

going to be unpleasant, it's going to be hard for

20

most of us, but we need to -- we need to do what we

21

need to do to make this budget balance.

22

Thank you, Chairman.

Mr. Nishiki.
No.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you for that shocking

I guess we've got to really sharpen

Okay.

It's

And in your opening statement in regards to

23

property tax, we're looking at providing additional

24

homeowners exemption, and that's a big challenge.

25

So at this time raising taxes and a commitment that

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

177

BF 04/29/04

1

we made earlier, we've got to be darn sure as far as

2

what we're heading for.

3

of a property tax increase, and I leave it at that,

4

Chair.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6
7
8
9
10
11
12

Right now I'm not in favor

Thank you.
Any comments, Ms. Tavares?

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

I'd like some clarification

on your number.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7.5, does that include all of the

funds and the bonds?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Lance, can you help the Committee?

Ms.

13

Tavares's question was:

14

everything including the bonds and the other areas

15

besides just general funds?

16

special accounts, highway fees --

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

paper.

19

MR. TAGUCHI:

20

So this would be

Everything that's in this

It considers all of the funds.

The shortage

is based upon the initial Chair's budget --

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

MR. TAGUCHI:

Okay.

right, which had reductions anticipated

23

in bonds.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

Uh-huh.

Does that include

Yeah, Mr. Chair.

Sometime during

our break if we could get a breakout by fund and by
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CIP of what the shortage is, or just general fund,

2

special funds, and CIP, because we have some

3

options.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's right.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Would we want to raise the ceiling

6

for the CIP bonds, if we want to eliminate our

7

rebate back for the homeowner exemption, and if we

8

want to eliminate the emergency fund of 4 million,

9

we can go home right now.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So I don't want to do that.

I

12

want to give it the best possible shot we can.

13

we only finished the first round today, which was

14

kind of to my surprise.

15

last night, but I guess we had a few items left

16

over.

17

discussions about, you know, seriously looking at it

18

to cut or to suggest cutting certain things out.

19

has been kind of a frenzy, you know, feeding frenzy

20

for a while.

21

tried to cut as we went along.

22

myself that I retracted or withdrew some of the adds

23

that I had proposed, knowing that we're not heading

24

in the right direction.

25

And

I thought we finished it

But we really haven't gotten into Some

It

And I know that a number of us have
And I know for

But I think let us go through one round of
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cuts or adjustments, and then see where we are by

2

those different funds.

3

us a truer picture of where we need to go, because

4

right now it looks really hopeless.

5

to leave us with a hopeless feeling that this is

6

something we cannot ever accomplish.

7

here and 20,000 there, it's going to take us forever

8

to get to the 7 million.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10
11

Okay.

And I think that will give

So I don't want

Cutting 10,000

Thank you.

Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Mine was going to be the same like

12

Ms. Tavares.

13

much more difficult, and I would hope to have that.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15
16
17
18

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
Ready to go.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

19
20

Without that breakdown, it makes it

See you after the recess, Chair.
Let's get to work.

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

I look forward to the

21

breakdown so that we can not have a nervous

22

breakdown.

23
24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

They've said it all, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Before we do take the recess, I

2

think the request by Ms. Tavares on behalf of all

3

the members is very reasonable.

4

will do our best.

5

challenging first round.

6

worked very hard and we have not had as much as we

~

I

wanted to in time to do the type of analysis that I

8

think is required in a challenging environment such

9

as this.

The Staff and I

I can tell you that it's been a
As you know, the Staff has

And, you know, I think when what Ms. Tavares

10
11

said is true.

You know, we can be very aggressive,

12

eliminate some tax relief to homeowners.

13

aggressive borrowing to balance the budget.

14

if -- I would maybe make it in a different way,

15

because, you know, not

16

complexities of government.

17

look at it as your personal budget and you look at

18

the things such as CIP like a mortgage, of course,

19

the aggressive way is to put no down payment, charge

20

forward.

21

rate.

22

insurance, because there's no confidence by the

23

lender that you would be able to pay back the loan,

24

and, therefore, you will affect your cash

25

Then you could be on the conservative side, whereby

ev~rybody

We can do
But

understands the

So I will say if you

You will pay a higher monthly mortgage

You would need to buy insurance, mortgage
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you would save some money, put your 20 percent down

2

to avoid the monthly -- not the monthly, but the

3

need for a mortgage insurance, and then, of course,

4

you would have the lower monthly payment.

5

other additional advantage is we should havt. or you

6

should have at least a better ability to adjress the

7

unforeseen emergency.
And I say that because while, of cou se, to

8
9

But the

address this budget's shortfall, please, a g lin, I

10

just ask you to think about that this is, a lain,

11

part of a step to next year's budget and th

12

following year's budget and the following y

13

budget.

14

time and say that's it and not worry about any

15

impacts next year.

16

Members, it will have either an advantageous or

17

disadvantageous impact on next year's consid ration.

18

So, please, think about it.

It's so easy if you can just look at it one

But whatever we do this

It's a difficult position, but it is

19

ear,

ot a

20

position that we cannot overcome.

I believe in the

21

collective group, as a group, the nine of us can

22

come up with a reasonable and responsible bu get
that can address the Countywide needs as besf we

24

can.

And as I have stated at every district, we

25

will not satisfy every need, but we will do the best
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to address most of the needs.
So saying that, Members, I'm looking at

2
3

asking you to return at 7:00 p.m.

4

that?

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

evening.

8

RECESS:

9

RECONVENE:

10

Any objections to

No objections.

We shall be in recess until 7:00 p.m. this
(Gavel.)

5:07 p.m.
7:07 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel.)

We shall bring this meeting back

11

to order.

12

beginning, prior to the beginning of the evening

13

break, there was a request by the Committee to

14

provide you as best we can a breakdown by funds

15

including general funds, special funds, and bond

16

funds considerations.

17

have not been able to complete it and provide you

18

that information.

19

shall take another recess and reconvene at 7:30.

20

Recess till 7:30.

21

RECESS:

22

RECONVENE:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Members, at the end of

at the

And that we are close, but we

So at this time, Members, we

(Gavel.)

7:08 p.m.
7:38 p.m.
(Gavel.)

We shall bring the Budget and

24

Finance Committee back to order.

Thank you,

25

Members, for allowing the Staff and the Chair to
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work on some numbers.

As you can tell, we, in a

2

rough version, broke out the areas of funds by

3

general fund; special fund such as Highway, Waste

4

Water; bond to show you the areas that I need for us

5

to focus and consider how we -- each of us would

6

like to approach it, and then have the Committee

7

decide what we will keep and what we will either

8

reduce or cut, as well as any other options that you

9

can present to the Chair.
One thing I will add before I will ask Mr.

10
11

Taguchi to provide some comment on this rough

12

handout to you, is that hopefully we don't focus so

13

much on that specific dollar, because things will

14

continue to be moving along as each time we make an

15

adjustment or whatnot.

16

of the progress that we will make together, but,

17

again, it's a moving target as we go through each

18

item.

So we will keep you abreast

19

Mr. Taguchi, if you would share some comments

20

so that the members can have a general understanding

21

of what we presented to them, please.

22
23

MR. TAGUCHI:

Thank you, Chair Hokama.
Please keep in mind that this is a working

24

document and the numbers are not -- you know, we

25

still need to do a lot of adjustments to these
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2

numbers.
Basically what you have before you is a

3

summary of the incremental changes that was done as

4

we went through this first round.

5

is short by $3,435,235.

6

short by 2 million 625 dollars and -- no,

7

$2,625,036.

8

of $1,217,302, but please keep in mind that the

9

reason why is this is an incremental amount and we

The General Fund

The Highway Fund would be

The Waste Water Fund shows an overage

10

needed to have this amount over so we could

11

eliminate the supplemental transfer that is

12

currently in the Mayor's budget.

13

Waste Water Fund balance is in balance because

14

that's representing the amount that we needed to

15

eliminate the supplemental transfer that was in the

16

Mayor's budget.

17

So right now the

The Solid Waste amount is an overage of

18

$249,592.

19

supplemental transfer, so we needed to have that

20

over by that amount so we could balance the Solid

21

Waste Fund.

22

and Solid Waste Fund are currently in balance.

23

Once again, the goal was to eliminate the

So, once again, both the Waste Water

Now, going down to the bond, initially the

24

Chair's goal was to reduce bond by $4,041,000.

25

Currently we have actually exceeded that goal in the
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General Fund by 130,000.

So we have decreased

2

General Fund Bond by $4,171,000.

3

increased bonds in the Highway Fund by $2,480,000.

However, we have

We have also increased bonds in the Sewer Fund by
5

6

7

$770,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you, Lance.

For those that are participating with us in

8

the gallery, if you're an accountant, you would

9

pretty much understand what Mr. Taguchi is trying to

10

explain as best he can regarding particularly the

11

Waste Water and Solid Waste overages.

12

the intent of the Committee, as the Chair understood

13

it, was to eliminate the need to use general funds

14

to balance or supplement the needs of those two

15

divisions, which run on special funds based on one

16

for sewer fees for waste water.

17

have heard from the Chair and the Department, Waste

18

Water should be a self-sufficient program run on

19

fees which is based on the amount of users divided

20

into the cost of the requirements of that program.

21

Same way with Solid Waste, the intention was that it

22

would pay for itself by the various fees we collect.

23

Whether it be tipping fees, refuse fees, that the

24

program pay for itself.

25

And, again,

And, again, as we

What the Chair would like to do -- And if
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there's other suggestions by the members, the Chair

2

is very open.

3

to work at, I was going to ask the members if they

4

would like to go through the expenses side one round

5

and see if we can have some general consensus on

6

what we might want to consider revising the number.

7

I say that in context of, one, this is not asking

8

you for a final decision, that debate and discussion

9

will occur possibly tomorrow evening, but I was

While this handout gives you a target

10

hoping that if there was some areas that we could

11

get some general consensus on, at least that will

12

help us for the remainder of the night and in

13

preparation for tomorrow for us to analyze and make

14

some adjustments for the Committee.

15

At the end of that initial rough second

16

round, then the intent of the Chair is to end the

17

meeting when we reach that point and ask you to

18

rest, think about it overnight, and be prepared to

19

return tomorrow for some additional comments and
suggestions to the Chair and your fellow members.

21

And it would also allow the Staff and I to do what

22

we can to properly analyze and give you as true a

23

picture as possible of exactly how we stand.

24
25

Again, in the short break we had in general
terms I would say what you have is the unaudited
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numbers.

2

had to work.

3

you a good sense of where we are in general.

4
5
6

This is the best we have with the time we
It might be slightly off, but it gives

Any comments to the Chair's suggestion for
the rest of the evening?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares.

Yeah, Mr. Chair.

Thank you.

I

7

think that if we can make that first pass as you're

8

suggesting, that would be great.

9

need to think about some of the things that we --

I believe that we

10

the challenge, I guess, ahead of us.

11

going at it and I know the Staff has been working

12

extremely hard on it.

13

and have a break and eat dinner, you and the Staff

14

don't have that same amount of time off to kind of

15

collect your thoughts and put eye drops in your eyes

16

and things like that.

17

And we've been

And while we get to run away

So I would suggest that we try to just do one

18

cursory first pass through with cuts that we may

19

think of at the time, and then allow us more time to

20

look at it and perhaps come back tomorrow.

21

meeting posted for 9:00 tomorrow?

22

posted?

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is the

They're always

Yes, it is posted, but, again, as the

24

Committee did this morning, you know, we can convene

25

and then we can adjust with a recess to allow the
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members ample time to prepare and get into the more,

2

I guess

3

revisions.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

the harder portion of the cuts or

Thank you, Chair.

I think --

5

Well, I know I would appreciate it if we ended a

6

little earlier tonight, give me some time to go back

7

through these -- through these documents and prepare

8

the cuts and the justifications for them.

9

you.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Any other comments?

11
12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

23

Thank

Mr. Pontanilla.

No.

Mr. Nishiki.
No.

Mr. Molina.
No.

Mr. Mateo.
No.

Ms. Johnson.
I just had a question.

Yes.
Because on, let's say, the revenue

side, for example, I note

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Use your microphone, Jo Anne.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Oh, I'm sorry.

We didn't include

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

189

BF 04/29/04

1

anything for ORAP as far as revenue and I know that

2

we adjusted the TAT.

3

in that area at this time

4

we deal with that at the end?

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Do you also want suggestions
or would you prefer that

l

I will -- At this time, Ms. Johnson, while

6

I appreciate your consideration, I would like for us

7

to first look at the expenses side.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

And I'm aware of those two areas that you

10

did mention, so, yeah, the Chair will ask the

11

members to consider that at a more appropriate time.

12

Mr. Kane.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15
16

17

Ready to go, Chair.

Mr. Carroll.
Okay.

Thank you, Members.

I appreciate the

cooperation of the Committee.
Members, if we can start on page 2, line 64,

18

states Operating Budget.

19

Office of Council Services.

20

the Council Services Program.

21

course, we do have one-time cost increases.

22

there any suggestions or considerations from the

23

members?

24
25

Let us take first the
The first Division is
At this point, of
Is

Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Chair.

And I apologize.

For No. 70, the NaCo conference in Honolulu fund --

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

190

BF 04/29/04

1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I think I mentioned last time that

3

that number is

4

agreed upon by the various -- or the respective

5

members of the HSAC Committee, Maui's share in that

6

is 85,000 and some change.

7

to put a number of 85,000 there, so that's a

8

reduction of 15,000.

9
10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for that initial

Members, any objections to reducing line
70 --

13

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

by 15,000?

15

15,000.

16

And so I think it's safe

consideration.

11
12

Okay.

which was a discussed number and

Thank you.

A reduction of

Net revision is 85,000.
Anyone else on this page, page 2 under

17

Council Services?

I will tell you, Members, as

18

regarding line 67, I will ask that at this time we

19

leave that there.

20

meet with Corporation Counsel Moto, Mr. Fukuoka

21

was unable to get Prosecuting Attorney Davelyn

22

Tengan for her comments, but the Chair is working

23

with the three, as soon as I can get Ms. Tengan

24

informed.

25

adjustments of how to have a periodic review of the

During the break the Chair did

That the Chair will be proposing some
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pay scales for the attorneys and to bring some sort

2

of fairness in a review program and to be able to

3

make appropriate adjustments that the Council will

4

need to participate in and, of course, make the

5

final decision.

6

that is something as your Chair I had promised to

7

work on, and at this time we will be preparing a

8

draft ordinance for the Committee's consideration in

9

the very near future.

So I just share that with you that

10

Page 3, Members, at this time are there any

11

other suggestions in the area of Council Services?

12

Mr. Kane.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I ask for the

14

body's consideration and I ask for your comment,

15

Chair, because I know this was something that you

16

asked us to consider, the revised line 71 by an

17

additional -- or revise it by $50,000.

18

that on details 5-6 under Audit and Professional

19

Services that right now we have budgeted in. that

20

account a total of 500,000; 300 for audit services,

21

200 for professional services.

22

addition to that.

23

starting off -- I'm hoping to start off on the right

24

foot by if we're going to do some reductions, let's

25

look in the mirror first, do some reductions, show

And I note

This would be an

And so I think -- I think we're
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that we want to work with this.

2

consideration, Chair.

3

auditory services, which I know is very important

4

for us, it's a primary function of the Office of

5

Council Services and this body, and we will still

6

have the $350,000 available for that function.

7

Thank you, Chair.

8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

And I ask for that

And that way we'll still for

That -- The Chair had

originally intended that it would also help be a

10

consideration of where we would look at for payment

11

for a -- what I had proposed earlier, Members, if

12

you recall, regarding a managed contract

13

consideration to address the needs of our total high

14

tech computer requirements for the whole County,

15

whether it be for Police, Department of Management,

16

the MIS/GIS programs, the KIVA in Public Works,

17

SCADA in Water Department, the IFAS with Finance and

18

the Budget Office.

But to -- I take your comments

19

at heart, Mr. Kane.

I think we need to look home

20

and take a fair responsibility in also looking at

21

reducing ours.
So I would say, Members, on page 70 -- line

22

23

71, page 2.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Page 3, Chair.

Excuse me, page 3.

Thank you.

The Chair
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will be happy to ask, Members, if there's no

2

objection to revise this by a reduction of $50,000.

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objection.

Okay.

Let us reduce this by $50,000

5

whereby the net now is 50,000 for Professional

6

Services.

7
8

Are there any other considerations under the
area of Council Services at this time?
Okay.

9

Seeing none, let us move forward to

10

the Office of the County Clerk.

11

consideration at this time to make adjustments in

12

the Office of County Clerk?

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is there any

No.

I do have one, Members.

I did ask you to

15

support and allow the Clerk the ability to attend

16

conferences that could expand the ability of the

17

office to perform better, but I would ask that we

18

decrease line 79 at this time by $5,000, which is

19

the airfare portion.

20

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22
23
24
25

Any objections?

No objections.

Okay.

Let us decrease it by $5,000.

And

that revision is now at 5,000.
Is there anything else as in regards to the
Office of the County Clerk at this time?
Seeing none, let us move forward to the
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Department of Civil Defense.

Is there any

2

consideration now in this area at this time?
Seeing none, let us move forward to the

3

4

Department of Corporation Counsel.

5

considerations at this time?

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Is there any

Ms. Tavares.

Yes, Mr. Chair, I had some

7

conversation with the -- our Corporation Counsel,

8

and the feeling is because of the cramped quarters

9

and the tandem of a Deputy Corp Counsel addition and

10

a support staff, that he would be willing to wait

11

until next year, until their plans are firmer as to

12

what they will do with their space requirements.

13

I believe I would offer the deletion of the 75,000

14

for the Deputy position.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So

Thank you very much, Ms. Tavares.

16

Members, the consideration is the deletion of

17

$75,000 for an additional 1.0 E/P count for a Deputy

18

Corporation Counsel.

19

time?

20

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Any objections to that at this

No objections
Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
Thank you.

And just to dovetail very

24

briefly, after listening to last night's discussion

25

on the bigger picture of the move or the
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consideration of the move, I think it would be more

2

prudent for us to look at the bigger picture of what

3

Department in this building would be the best

4

Department to move, not let's look at Corp Counsel

5

to move.

6

doing some analysis would be the better Department

7

to move out of this building, then Corp Counsel can

8

make a move into a space hopefully that is more

9

accommodating to their situation.

Because if we move somebody who may after

But I say that

Let me take that back.

It

10

may be the best way or

11

may be a more prudent way to approach our space

12

issues with this building and what's available to us

13

in the immediate area.

14

Until we get our electronics down, set, I

15

think if we do move Corp Counsel away before that is

16

set up, I think we're going to have some issues that

17

we're going to -- maybe that hasn't been discussed

18

yet that will create some logistical problems.

19

Understanding that it's good to separate them away

20

from both branches, you know, legislative as well as

21

administrative, we don't want them too far where it

22

logistically creates problems that perhaps are

23

unintended.

24
25

So I just wanted to share that comment,
Chair, with you and the Members.

And thank you for
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2

allowing me to make those comments.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

3
4

Thank you for that, Mr. Kane.
Okay.

please, to deletion of line 92, $75,000?

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

10

No objections.

Thank you very much, Members.

That

revision is zero.

8
9

Any objections, Members, once more,

Any other considerations for Department of
Corporation Counsel at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson.

On the next line, 93, Equipment

11

for new E/P, that's 2,500.

12

that amount as well as the 95, which is the $25,000

13

for -- I guess for the litigation section.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I would propose reducing

Why don't we just at this time take

15

the equipment for the new E/P first, Ms. Johnson, if

16

you don't mind?

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Members, the consideration is the reduction

19
20

of 2,500 from line 93.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA;

23

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

No, not at all.

No objection.

Any objections?
No objections.

Okay.

Thank you.

Reduction of 2,500.

The -- That amount is 3,000 as the revision.
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Okay.

The

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Chair.

Yes, Ms. Tavares.
Just a small detail.

The Freight

5

and Hauling was 2,540, so that would make the total

6

3,040.

7

in the notes, I think that's fine.

8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

But if you wanted to round it off to 2,500

Members, at this time -- Thank you for that

comment, Ms. Tavares, I missed it.

Members, I would

10

prefer at this time we just round it off to 2,500,

11

use 500, and thereby we arrive at the 3.

12

okay?

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

Thank you.

Thank you.

And if I misunderstood it, I'm

sorry.

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

That's fine.

Is that

No.

I'm sorry.
On line 95

Okay.

Thank you.

Did Mr. Moto, by chance, have

19

an opportunity to share any comments with the staff

20

regarding the ADA litigation, corporation Counsel?

21

Deputy Corporation Counsel, did Mr. Moto provide

22

have an opportunity to provide any comments?

23

MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

Mr. Chair, I don't believe he did.

24

I had asked the Budget Director to check with the

25

Managing Director, and he just told me that he
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hasn't heard back from the Managing Director,

2

either.

3

updated information at this time.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So, unfortunately, we don't have any

Okay.

Upon hearing that, Members, it is

5

the consideration is still there, and is there any

6

objection at this time to deleting line 95?

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair.

Yes, ma'am.
I would rather delete it from the

10

MD's Office, because I think even though the

11

function of ADA is in the Managing Director's

12

Office, this sort of funding should be under the

13

direction of the Corporation Counsel.

14

you know, if I were to say corrrrnon sense rule, as

15

long as it's someplace in the budget, I think it

16

would satisfy anyone looking at it to say, you know,

17

welre not doing it, we're not preparing for it.

18

I think it more appropriately fits in the Department

19

of Corporation Counsel rather than the Managing

20

Director's Office.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23
24

25

I believe,

And

Okay.
So I would prefer that it stayed

here.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Any objections to maintaining line 95 at this
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time, Members?

1

2

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Okay.

Thank you.

That will be left there

at this time.

4

5

Anything else for CQrporation Counsel?

6

Let us move to the Department of Finance.

7

there any adjustments regarding page 3 for

8

Department of Finance?

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

No.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA;

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Is

No objections.

Let us move to page 4.

Under the

12

Department of Finance, anything under Purchasing

13

Division?

14

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

?:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

?:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

?:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Nope.

Financial Services Division?

Nope.
Countywide Service Center?

Nope.
Countywide costs?

Nope.
Skip over it.

I think, Members, I would ask that

23

everything on page 4 regarding the Department of

24

Finance I would recommend no revisions at this time.

25

Any objections?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

No objections.

Thank you.
Page 5.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

S

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

No.
I would say, Members, regarding

6

Department of Finance, page 5, the Chair would

7

recommend no revisions at this point.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

Mr. Chair.
No objections.

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
I'd like to -- I'd like to maybe just

touch on very briefly the emergency fund.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Maybe if -- Chair, if you could

16

perhaps just provide a reiteration of this fund and

17

its function, its intent, it would help me as one

18

member to just feel more comfortable with this one

19

right here.

20

clear, you know, based on Charter, Chair.

21

assuming to reference, you know, seven votes to get

22

there and utilize the funds for things that are

23

declared.

24

far as creating this?

25

misspeaking on this one.

The access portions I think we made
And I'm

But this is what we're talking about as
And forgive me if I'm

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

201

BF 04/29/04

1

2
3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No, no, no.

I think it's a very valid

question.
In the past, Members, although the ability to

4

have such a fund as the Charter provides Council to

5

enact through an ordinance has been provided for,

6

previous councils have not chosen to develop and

7

enact an ordinance to create such a fund.

8

purpose at this point of having us consider the

9

creation is to address the concerns as brought

The

10

forward by our bonding agencies.

11

well-known names to most people, such as Standard

12

and Poors, Moody's, Fitch's, whereby they rate the

13

County on its ability of many factors, including

14

potential increase of valuation of real property,

15

fiscal policy and disciplines, the ratio of revenue

16

to debt.

17

look at general plan considerations.

18

at policy comments regarding how an entity such as

19

ours prepares for unexpected

20

address unexpected situations.

21

And those are

They look at zoning considerations.

They

They also look

or how we would

One of the ways that they look at entities

22

such as us is the ability to have a reasonable

23

unreserved general fund balances.

24

they have proposed that entities such as ours, and

25

this would also be the same for our sister counties

And normally a --
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in Hawaii as well as some of our colleagues on the

2

mainland, that a percentage of 5 to 10 percent is

3

reasonable and recommended in an annual budget such

4

as ours.

5

approximately $9 million of unreserved general fund

6

to an approximate high of 25 to $27 million of

7

unreserved general fund.

8
9

For us, that would mean at a minimum

In the past councils have approached it and
the Administration used their discretion to

10

administer the budget to provide those balances.

11

But every year it becomes a battle of where are you

12

going to put it and, again, how to utilize what is

13

appropriated by Council.

14

Committee this year to create a bit more

15

transparency to show the people that we are aware of

16

some of the needs to address the bonding agencies'

17

comments, ensure that the County has a reasonable

18

resource to address unforeseen circumstances.

19

And I will again use the recent tragic

This is an attempt by this

20

example of 9/11.

Because the previous councils,

21

which many of you were participating; sitting

22

members, had supported a conservative approach, that

23

when 9/11 came, this Council had resources available

24

for quick enactment of an ordinance that through the

25

leadership of the Administration and through our
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nonprofits created I believe it was called the HELP

2

Program that responded to a lot of our communities

3

residents needs that had shortfalls in income,

4

inability for medical payments, inability for food,

5

fuel, and that we were able to respond on a

6

Countywide basis.

7

If that was not available, we would have to

8

go into emergency borrowing mode, because that's the

9

only way we would be able to address it.

And,

10

again, it would -- the impact would be, of course,

11

we would pay a higher insurance -- not insurance,

12

but interest rate, since more than likely our bond

13

rating would be much different than what it is

14

currently.

15

And so I know I've been chatting for a long

16

while, but I hope this presents to you and those

17

that are watching that if this -- when they see

18

this, this is a special fund that will not lapse

19

like other funds.

20

will continually be there every year unless Council

21

by vote of seven members, minimum, authorizes

22

expenses or expenditures from the fund for the

23

specific reasons that will be listed in the enabling

24

legislation of what is a life-threatening

25

predicament, what is a danger that will qualify for

Such as our open space fund,
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use.

2

And once this is established, Members,

3

because it will not lapse, if this 4 million is not

4

used next year, it will be already there.

5

is another way to ensure our community that what

6

they see in the budget accurately reflects what we

7

need for them to have the program services and

8

facilities that this County requires.

9

would still ask that you will consider to leave this

And this

And so I

10

there at this time for the purposes that the Chair

11

has just stated.

12

And I'll be happy to do my best to answer

13

questions if there are any by the members.

14

Kane.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr.

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for

16

your comments.

I think it's important, what you

17

just said and made clear to those who are listening

18

out there and for the record so people down the line

19

when they have an opportunity or take the

20

opportunity to either review the minutes of this

21

meeting or even the Committee report that will be

22

generated out of this Committee, because this is

23

something that was created out of this Committee for

24

the purposes that you have stated.

25

is very important for a number of reasons, and you

And I think this
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have listed those.

So I felt it was important for

2

you to, as our Chair, point out the important

3

factors of this fund.

4

important one that you pointed out is that it

5

doesn't lapse and it's not something that we have to

6

go find next year and the years to follow.

And I think the most

This is, I think, taking a step towards

7

8

securing the availability of money for what this

9

County could at some point in time in the future

10

deal with as far as an emergency is concerned.

11

just wanted to take the opportunity, Mr. Chair, to

12

have you provide some comments on this, and I want

13

to thank you for that.

14

chatting and allow us to proceed with this, this

15

process.

16
17
18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So I

And so I will also stop

Thank you.
Okay.

Thank you very much.

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

In this particular area, there is

19

two thoughts I had.

One would be because this is

20

the first year that we have established this

21

particular fund, do the bond rating agencies look at

22

it -- Like, let's say, if we were to reduce the

23

amount by either one to one and a half million

24

dollars, because, obviously, this is not going to

25

lapse unless we expend the money, you know, I mean,
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unless we expend money in that fund.

And if the

2

answer is anything that we put in -- Number one,

3

establishing the fund is really critical.

4

that.

5

we have to look at deferred maintenance or we have

6

to look at some of the things that we actually need

7

to do that we have been putting off for a long time

8

so our physical infrastructure is crumbling, is

9

there the ability for the bond rating agencies to

I believe

But if it would be looked at that, let's say,

10

also see that, yes, maybe we couldn't put quite as

11

much as we wished that we could have put into this

12

fund, but we have established it and we will

13

continue to add to that fund in future years?

14

you believe that that would also be perceived as

15

something that would be positive?

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Do

In my experience dealing with the bond

17

agencies and having an opportunity to speak directly

18

with the -- with representatives such as Standard

19

and Poorsi interestingly enough, one of the key

20

factors that helped change and improve our bond

21

rating was the action of the Council in raising

22

taxes to create the revenue required to pay for the

23

services.

24

or the carryover that gave him the confidence.

25

can tell you in my opinion that in talking to them,

Not the reduction of unreserved balances
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as they put it, the courage of the Council in the

2

last six years to raise taxes twice to provide the

3

revenue necessary that we believe to -- for the

4

programs that this County needed was a very big,

5

positive influence in increasing or improving the

6

bond rating.
To deplete the unreserved general fund below

7
8

their recommended levels I can tell you right now is

9

not viewed positively.

And we already have a

10

comment by a bond agency that unless we improve the

11

current projection, this County will receive a down

12

rating.

13

does that mean?

14

points to the interest rate, it will cost this

15

County more money to do the Sqme thing over the same

16

length of time if we borrow the money, because our

17

interest rate will rise up.

18

exactly what the amount will be, but it does affect

19

the interest rate by going up.

20

Now, for some of you, you will ask what
By changing the amount of base

I cannot tell you

And I would say, Members, it also gives those

21

that buy the bonds on the market

22

viewed, from what I have seen happen to others, a

23

loss of investor confidence not only on the bond,

21

but on the potential of the ability of real property

25

to have a reasonable annual inflation assessment

it will be
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growth.

2

with the big spikes because as the big spikes go up,

3

you can also have the spikes go down.

4

long-range radar that they look at, any impact on

5

the ability of property value to go up is viewed as

6

negative.

7

Now, I can tell you that they have concerns

But on the

And that is why the County of Maui, when we

8

have offered bonds for projects, you will notice

9

that the County does not have a problem of having

10

those bonds purchased.

11

purchased bonds of any government entity,

12

particularly in this state, because of our

13

performance, Members.

14

It is one of the quickest

And, again, you know, I would -- I'm -- I

15

wish I could simplify what -- you know, like

16

government has matured, financing has become that

17

much more complex.

18

involving an agency's rating considerations.

19

first interview with them, they didn't want to talk

20

about money.

21

about long range and community general plans.

22

talked about property valuation opportunities.

23

was waiting and prepared to answer revenues,

24

expenditures, debt payment schedule.

25

want to talk about that, interesting -- at the

And there is so many factors

They talked about zoning.

They talked
They
I

They didn't
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beginning.

2

was interesting the areas that they look at before

3

they looked at the numbers.

-.1

11

thing that gave him the confidence was that the

5

Council chose to maintain a reasonable unreserved

6

balance and raise the taxes to crea1e the revenue.

7

That is one of the biggest things I Ican tell you

8

that continues to give investor con1idence and bond

9

agency confidence in the County of

10
11

Of course, at the end we did.

I can tell you the key

~aui.

J

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But it

I'm not sure if t at answered my

12

question, but, you know, I can unde stand why they

13

would look at anything that we were able to reserve

14

as something positive because it ge

15

threshold that they feel is acceptable.

16

gather, you know, what you're saying is that if we

17

reduce this level, then that would put us below that

18

threshold in terms of looking at the total amount of

19

carryover plus any unallocated funds.

20

correct?

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

IS

it closer to a
But I

Is that

Yes.
Okay.

My suggestion, also, then,

23

would be based on what you have said, when we look

24

at other areas under insurance programs and

25

self-insurance, that has been one of the areas which
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we have used to park money, if you will.

My

2

suggestion would be, because that area we never

3

know, you know, what we're going to be paying out,

4

to also look in that area to reduce revenues.

5

if we made it a flat $3 million or reduced it by,

6

let's say, 1 million.

7

we'll still have the capability to pay for any

8

claims that do come in, but I think it's one of the

9

areas that we have parked money.

Even

I think that if we do that,

So I say, well, if we're doing all this

10
11

parking of money and then we really can't provide

12

tax relief, it concerns me a little bit because, as

13

Mr. Kane has said in the past, what we're looking at

14

is trying to match up the amount of revenues that we

15

have coming in, what we charge in taxes, and

16

matching that up with our expenditures because we're

17

not a profit-making corporation.

18

to have, in my estimation, huge reserves.

So we don't want

But I would ask if there's any way that we

19
20

could also consider that without it adversely

21

impacting our bond rating.

22

comments on the fact that we might reduce the

23

self-insurance?

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So do you have any

I would say we need to review that fund,

but I would also caution that while we just -- we
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show 4 million in the emergency fund, we are already

2

on a negative credit watch.

3

today, we are already on a negative credit watch.

4

And so I would hope that we would utilize this

~

opportunity through this budget to make a financial

6

statement not only to our community, but to those

7

agencies that this Council is willing to do what it

8

needs to insure financial stability.

And that is the status

And that while there is no guarantee that

9

10

this will maintain the credit rating of this County,

11

I think the efforts to show that we are trying to do

12

more than maintain or do with less is still the

13

proper direction to go.

14

I would say that your questions to the Chair is

15

valid, I would ask that -- I'm more than happy to

16

provide additional comment at another opportunity,

17

but I would ask the members if we can move forward

18

with additional cursory review of this expense area

19

to see where we can have consensus of reduction.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

And so as your Chair, while

No objection.

Okay, Members.

Mr. Nishiki.

I know we started the ball rolling on

23

different departments, but for all expansion

24

positions, including benefits, I would ask that the

25

Staff or that this Committee look at any expansion
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positions, Mr. Chairman, that we fund only eight

2

months.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

6
7

It is already that way.

I would say that -And I don't know how many are and how

many are not, but (inaudible)
CHAIR HOKAMA:

That is the standard practice, Mr. Nishiki,

8

because the departments may not initiate any type of

a

recruiting or procedural processing until it becomes

10

available, which does not start until July 1st, for

11

the recruitment of personnel positions.

12

normally through the normal process of Personnel

13

Services, as well as examination, evaluation, and

14

the preparation of a list of qualified applicants, I

15

don't think they can do it faster than four months.

16

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And then

(Inaudible) .

So an eight-month consideration is

18

reasonable and has been the practice of not only

19

Administration in their requests, but as Council has

20

provided funding.

21

funding for any expansion position from the start.

22

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

We have never provided full

So in all the expansion positions

23

that we have calculated so far, we've not given them

24

full funding?

25

months?

Everyone is calculated at eight
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

6

Yes.

And--

Some is at six.

I think that's correct,

Ms. Johnson, some is at six months funding.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

7

8

Yes.

And do we include all the benefits,

also, that we eliminate?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Proportionately.

So if it's only six

months funding, they'll only have benefit funding
for six months.

10
11

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you for that question.

If we may move forward, Members, to

14

Department of Fire and Public Safety.

Are there any

15

questions or considerations for reduction at this

16

time?

17

Anything under the Administrative Division?

18

Training Division?

19

Fire Rescue Operations?

20

?:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

No.
Page 6, anything under Fire Prevention

Division?

23

Department of Housing and Human Concerns?

24

Anything under the area of Administrative

25

Division?

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,

(808)

524~2090

INC.

BF 04/29/04

214

1

Housing Division?

2

Human Concerns Division?
Human Concerns Program right now.

3

Under the area of Community Partnership

4

Grants?

5

Okay.

6

Let us move to page 7.

Seeing none, let us move to page 8.

8

No. 13 to 21?

10
11

?:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

Nope.
Okay.

Let us move to page 9.

Any

consideration from grant No. 22 to grant No. 29?

14

?:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

Nope.
Okay.

Let us move to page 10.

Any

consideration from grant 30 to grant 32?

17

?:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Nope.
Okay.

Seeing none, let us move to the

19

Animal Management Division.

20

this program at this time?

21

?:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Any

consideration for grants listed on page 8 from grant

9

24

Any areas of

consideration from grants listed on page 7?

7

23

Let's just take the

Any considerations in

Nope.
Okay.

Seeing none, let us move to the

Department of Liquor Control.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Any--

Mr. Chair, before we get there, I

apologize.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yes, Mr. Kane.
Just, again, for clarification,

3

because we're getting or recognizing 100,000 from

4

Animal Management Revolving Fund, thatis where the

5

balance comes out, because we're adding 25,000 plus

6

38,000 plus 37,000 and the difference is only that

7

revision, it's because of that 100,000 and plus the

8

15,000 for the Humane Society, Mr. Chair -- Well,

9

take that out.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I apologize for stuttering on this.

No, no.
$100,000 is being recognized from the

12

Management -- Animal Management Revolving Fund, and

13

that's what covers the increase in salaries as well

14

as the truck and the ACO as well as the increase in

15

salaries for ACO's; is that correct?

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I believe so.

Let me ask Staff if your

17

understanding is accurate.

That is 60, 75, yep,

18

that's the 100 right there, Mr. --

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And then the balance of the 35 is

21

Yes.

Thank you.

from the general fund.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

24

Liquor Control.

25

this time?

Thank you, sir.
Let us move to the Department of
Are there any considerations at
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?:

Nope.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Let us move to the Department of

3

Management.

Any considerations as in regards to

4

page 10 for the Department of Management?

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10
11

Next page.

Are there -I'm sorry.

Next page.

Okay.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I'm getting ahead of you.
Thank you.

Okay.

We are on page 11

of the Department of Management.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Line 351.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

351.

Line 351, Mr. Chair.

Thank you very much.

15

Members, deletion of line 351, 25,000.

16

have placed 25,000 in the Department of Corporation

17

Counsel.

Any objections to this deletion?

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20
21
22
23
24
25

We

Okay.

No objection.
We shall delete 25,000 from line

351.
Is there any other considerations in this
area at this time?
Any considerations in the Energy Division or
program?
Seeing none, under Management Information

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

217

BF 04/29/04

1

Systems program or MIS, any considerations?

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5
6

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
If we can just provide clarity on the

shaded areas, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

7

I believe of the original, I think, request

8

of seven, Mr. Pontani1la had proposed at one point

9

reducing four expansion positions.

And I forgot to

10

share that Mr. Pontanilla did have a talk with the

11

Chair during a break and my understanding -- Well,

12

instead of speaking for Mr. Pontanilla, I will ask

13

Mr. Pontanilla to share his comments with the

14

members, please.

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

I had a

16

conversation with the MIS manager, and in regards to

17

the four expansion positions that I had deleted, he

18

had some grave concern in regards to the workload in

19

that Department and the possibility of burnout as

20

far as employee goes.

21

delete two expansion only at this time in place of

22

that four.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

At this time I would like to

We have done that, Members, through

24

line 361.

25

recommend deletion of line 363, if Mr. Pontanilla

So the Chair would just at this time
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will have no objections.

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

Eliminate just line 363.

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
On the next line, have you had a

discussion and made a determination on the printers?
I'm sorry, Member Tavares, I know that was

8
9

Okay.

yours.

I apologize.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

No objections.

No, no, no.

To be honest, Members, I just ran out of

time to do everything.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
Yeah.

Mr. Chair, I had a

16

conversation with Jacob and he was trying to explain

17

to me that these printers were group printers.

18

while I still have a little concern for that, I had

19

been asking to reduce these printers to $500 each,

20

so -- It comes out here at 1,000, so I believe

21

ask Mr. Verkerke to talk with the Staff there, so I

22

guess I see it's gone up to 1,000 each instead of

23

2,000 each.

24

allotted to 1,000.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I mean, went up from the 500 that I
And this is for 25 printers.

Mr. Chair.

And I'm sorry for
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injecting.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Kane.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

This $1,000 figure was placed there

4

by you because you were going to have a discussion.

5

And so I don't know if Staff has had that

6

discussion, but that's where that number came from,

7

yeah.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Tamara, if you can share any comments.

9

10

Thank you.

MS. KOLLER:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I did talk with Mr.

11

Verkerke and he explained a little bit more about

12

the printers.

13

not the type that you would

~uy

14

for your computer at home.

They are used in a

15

shared environment.

16

be able to handle 150,000 copies.

17

duplex shared by a work group, would be similar to

18

some of the printers that we have in our own office

19

and that the secretaries use.

20

He indicated that the printers are
for your machine,

They're printers that need to
It's used as a

Some of these printers he had used a figure

21

of 2,000.

They range from 1,500 to $1,700 and there

22

are also ones that go as high as 5,000.

23

replace printers at the 5,000 level this last year.

24

So under that consideration with the Committee, you

25

may want to increase the amount.

He had to

I did not check
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with him, I could, to see if that 25 could be

2

reduced.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
Yes, Mr. Chair.

I would prefer to

7

leave it at the 25,000.

I think like the vehicles

8

in the County of Maui, we're about to embark on, if

9

we don't already have, is equipment replacement

10

plan, especially in the area of computers.

11

that our staff or our offices have a plan for

12

replacement upgrades.

13

this because maybe it's more economical to buy three

14

$300 computer printers than to buy one $1,000

15

printer.

16

into that right now.

17

replace printers that are more expensive than what

18

is allowed here, that they'll somehow either buy

19

less this year, come back with a plan next year and

20

show it to us, share it with us, and so we can make

21

some decisions based on some real good information

22

at this point.

23

25,000.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

I know

And we need to take a look at

So I think we don't have the time to get

Okay.

And if he happens to have to

So I would suggest leaving it at the

Thank you.

This means that if we

look at the -- part of the range that Mr. Verkerke
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shared with Staff, instead of 25, they might have to

2

settle for 17 replacements within the limitations of

3

the financial request.

4

this time recommend maintaining the level.

5

objections?

6

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

10
11

Any

No objections.

Thank you.
Let's see.

8

Members, the Chair would at

Everything else seems okay.

There is still a highlight of line 367.

Ms.

Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, Mr. Chair.

Their request was

12

for five expansion positions, and what we've done so

13

far is reduce it by two, so we still have three.

14

And some of those, because my furniture was for

15

five, we would have to adjust that accordingly.

16

if there's just three people, I would say we can

17

leave 3,000.

18
19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'm sorry.

So

Just for clarification,

Mr. Chair, I'm sorry, point.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Kane.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

On page 11-9 of details it's showing

22

seven expansions total, so I just wanted to get

23

clear how many expansions are being proposed and

24

then what the number do we have as far as are going

25

to remain.

And so that way this number can be --
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can correlate with what we ended up keeping.

2

MS. KOLLER:

Mr. Chair.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

MS: KOLLER:

Tamara.
There were seven expansion positions

5

proposed, and at this point in time, the Committee

6

has removed two of those.

7

remainder of five.

8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

That would have a

If there's no objections at this

time, so that we may move forward, we'll subtract an

10

appropriate amount that we shall report to the

11

Committee of two position -- furniture for two

12

positions.

13
14

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah.

Also, Mr. Chair, I think

15

that we may come back because of the IT program and

16

the Police Department, which had been supported by

17

MIS with two positions.

18

and those two positions come back, it's like having

19

two positions additional.

20

back and revisit this after we go through the IT

21

program for the Police Department.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

So they go off on their own

So we may want to come

Thank you.
Any objections, Members?

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Let us move forward.

Any considerations
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under the GIS or Geographic Information System area?

2

Okay.

Seeing none, under the --

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA: . Yes, Mr. Kane.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I thought earlier we -- Did we

6

acknowledge the reduction?

7

discussion of keeping the one.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

I thought there was some

That is correct.

Keeping the expansion position there,

10

not having the reduction.

11

Tavares, you made that comment about keeping it.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

And I think, Member

Mr. Chair, if I may.

Ms. Tavares.
I had an opportunity to speak to

15

the program manager on this, and, you know, I was

16

giving him the sad story about my dinner was ruined

17

because I have to face $7 million worth of cuts.

18

But he had said that they really wanted the two

19

positions, but he said if they had one, they would

20

be grateful and knowing that they would come back

21

and request the other one in the next budget.

22

would be happy to have at least the one.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So he

So at this point in time, Ms. Tavares, the

24

reduction of one expansion as regards to Analyst V

25

is --
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

Thank you very much for your hard work

during your dinner break.

4
5

Members, hearing the comments, any objections
to this reduction?

6

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

Yes, that's fine.

No objection.

Okay.

Thank you very much.

becomes 307,140.

9

The net now

Thank you.

Under the Office of the Mayor, is there any

10

considerations at this time as in regards to page

11

II?

Okay.
Let us move to page 12.

12

Any revisions on

13

this page and as regards to grant No. 2 to grant No.

14

9?

15

Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Chair, I had an opportunity to

16

visit with Monnie Gay from Economic Development, and

17

she had made a suggestion, it's not going to

18

completely be transferred from one area to another,

19

but on line 406 under Grants and Disbursements for

20

Cultural Arts and Events, she asked that $20,000 be

21

removed from that, but that it be transferred to

22

Small Business Promotion, which is line 469, where

23

we had cut the 20.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

May I have that once more, please,

Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

It would be moving

2

reducing line 406 by $20,000, which would be Grants

3

and Disbursements For Culture and Arts Events, and

4

moving that 20,000 over to the Small Business

5

Promotions, which is on line --

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

469.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

469.

So reduce, restore, Chair.
It's a wash, but they can try to

10

find other monies for Culture and Arts Events, but

11

they had some plans for their Small Business

12

Promotion.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you for that consideration.

Members, we'll take it as it appears on the

14

So page 12, a reduction of 20,000 from grant

15

pages.

16

No. 7, leaving a net revised number of $30,000.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
Sorry to interrupt you, but

actually I wanted to talk about this area.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And if the members are aware that

23

last year we removed the allotment in this area and

24

there was zero for this program.

25

Human Concerns Cultural Programs.

And we moved it to
And it has
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reappeared in the Mayor's budget at 50,000.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

That's right.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So I would suggest that we remove

4

the 50,000 from here again, and move the 20,000

5

restore the 20,000 back in the Small Business

6

Promotion, and leave it at that.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Zero it out.

Okay.

We've heard the considerations.

10

this point the Chair will ask, is there any

11

objections to the deletion of grant 7?

12

Okay.

13

Anything else on page 12, Members?

14

Let us move forward.

At

We shall put zero on --

Page 13, any

15

considerations at this time to grants No. 10 through

16

17?

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Johnson.
I'm sorry.

I'm sorry.

Ms. Johnson.

I was looking at the Grant and

22

Disbursement for Maui Nui Botanical Garden.

23

get a response in regard to the Department of Water

24

Supply, which is just a project, one single project

25

that is being worked on, and we did receive a
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1

transmittal of information with regard to No. --

2

well, it's line 445 of the consideration for the

3

additional 25,000 for operating expense.

4

just ask that the members consider that at that

5

point in time.

6

would be -- Well, we removed the whole 50,000, but

7

there's only 30 extra, so that would still put us

8

5,000 ahead if we were to use that money that came

9

out of line 406.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11
12

We did just remove 30 -- I guess it

Okay.

Thank you for that comment.

13?
Okay.

Seeing none, let us go to page 14.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Oh, Mr. Chair, I'm sorry.

Yes, Ms. Tavares.
I thought we were just talking

about that grant.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

Just for the consideration.

Any other considerations to reduce on page

13

17

So I would

No.

Anything on page 13.
Okay.

On page 13 on the Grants

and Disbursements, No. 10, the first grant.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I would ask that the proviso be

23

revised to include other health-related issues in

24

the proviso for the 50,000.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Can you just give us the idea of-
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1

what it would --

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

You know, actually, Mr. Chair, I

3

wish we would discuss this again.

Because if we

4

don't have a Dengue Fever Education Program, that

5

$50,000 will not be able to be used by anyone else

6

in the area.

7

in favor of using -- of putting in this proviso for

8

the 50,000 for dengue fever education.

9

really a Department of Health responsibility, area

10

of responsibility, and I think that there are some

11

other kinds of things that could happen in this area

12

and have the full other 100,000 available for that

13

purpose and not tie up or lock out the 50,000

14

because of the dengue -- because of this provision.

15

So I would ask Mr. Carroll if he would reconsider

16

that.

And I know that Mr. Carroll had spoken

17

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

This is

No objection.

Thank you very much, Mr. Carroll.

We shall

19

develop some language to not only be able to

20

encompass the dengue fever education, but other

21

health-related concerns.

22

the Chair to work with Staff and Corporation Counsel

23

for appropriate language?

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any objections of allowing

No objections.

Okay.

We shall provide the Committee with
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1

a revised proviso.
Okay.

2
3

Thank you.

Now, is there anything else on page 13

at this time?
Okay.

4

Let us move forward to page 14.

First

5

under 22, since I know we are on reduction, but I

6

think upon hearing it, Members, you had a request

7

for a Small Business Promotion, so --

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10
11

Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

That would be correct.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any objections by the members at this time?

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24
25

Because our net gain would be a

That is correct.

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

23

I could support that, Mr. Chair.

Okay.

19

22

That would be to just leave

loss of 30,000.

18

21

Yeah.

it at 100,000?

12

16

Mr. Chair.

No objections.

Okay.

We shall maintain the original

request.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

With reservation, because I want some

of it to go to Maui Nui.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

That is line 3 -- 471, Mr. Carroll.
Okay.

Thank you, Members.
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Anything else on page 14 at this time?

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Johnson.
I would like the body to consider

5

on line 453 keeping what the Mayor had recommended

6

in his budget for Maui Visitors Bureau at $3

7

million.

8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

consideration.

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

MS. KOLLER:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

MS. KOLLER:

15

Any objections?

No objections.

Okay.

We shall move forward.

Mr. Chair.
Yes, Staff.
If we could go back, what happened on line

445 with the Maui Nui?

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

MS. KOLLER:

18

Members, you've heard the

Nothing.
Okay, thank you.

But the Small Business

Promotion is now at 100,000?

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Correct.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

MS. KOLLER:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Okay, thank you.
Mr. Kane.
Since Staff is asking for

24

clarification, I'll go on record on stating again my

25

support for Maui Nui Botanical Gardens and that I am
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1
2

in support of the full 100,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

3
4

Thank you.

Thank you.
Any other considerations on page 14 at this

time, Members?

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Johnson.
On line 457, we deferred that.

8

And I believe that we received the information from

9

the MEO Micro Enterprise, and so I -- I have no

10

problem supporting the full 150 at this time based

11

on that information.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

Okay.
We'll calion that, Chair.

I would just prefer to go by consensus and

if there is one objection; it does not move forward.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

Okay.

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you, Chair.

Any objections?
Me.
We shall maintain that level at this

time.

21

Okay.

Any other considerations on page 14?

22

Okay.

Let us move forward.

23

Page 15, any

considerations up to the --

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

29.

-- grant 29?

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(RnR\

!;?L1-?nQn

232

BF 04/29/04

Okay.

1
2

Any other considerations for the

E-Tech program?
Let us move to Department of Parks and

3
4

Recreation.

Administration Program, any

5

considerations at this time?

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

10

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Johnson.
I'll let Charmaine go, because

she's probably going to say the same thing that I
was going to.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah.

Mr. Chairman, we had heard

13

from the Department Deputy stressing the need for a

14

position like this, whether it's called this or not.

15

And I think part of the concern was that with the

16

fees for ORAP being transferred from the Finance

17

Department to the Parks Department, that it was

18

going to be additional work without additional

19

resource.

20

was, is Finance transferring a position over to

21

Parks to take care of this, and, obviously, the

22

answer was no.

Because the question I had asked once

23

And what I would -- I would offer as a

24

compromise position or so that we don't change this

25

too much is to reduce those E/P's later on in
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1

Recreation Support Services from 13 E/P's to 12, and

2

move one of those EIP's here.

3

should delete this Special Events Specialist

4

position that we're referring to specifically as was

5

established without authority from the Council.

6

kind of like, I don't know if we can erase and start

7

over kind of a thing, but I would like to give the

8

Department some support in this area since it will

9

fall to the Administration to be responsible for

I still think we

And

10

these ORAP permits and whatever else occurs; making

11

the rules, going out and helping with the

12

assessments and those things.

13

give them some support in this area.

14
15
16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So I would like to

Thank you.
Other comments?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

Ms. Johnson.
And I did speak with the

17

Director, Mr. Correa, and I believe -- I don't see

IS

it on here right now, but Mr. Correa was also saying

19

that they believe that because some funding had been

20

restored, there was a program that Ms. Tavares

21

wanted to include.

22

it was one -- Oh, Intercession Program, line 551.

23

So he has no objection to eliminating the 47.5 to

24

help provide for that position.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And I don't see where it is, but

No, I cannot agree with that.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

That -- Because he believed that

2

they could fund from perhaps within existing funds.

3

That was the comment that he made to me.

4

Tavares feels strongly about this, I'm not going to,

5

you know, suggest removal of it, but that was what

6

the Director's recommendation was.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

10

So if Ms.

Thank you.
Members, I will ask you to focus on page 15

first at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane.

Thank you, Chair.

If this deletion

11

request is being asked to stay there and its

12

function is to deal primarily with the ORAP

13

application for the permitting process, is it

14

justified to have a full-time position getting

15

paid -- And I believe -- Is this figure here an

16

eight-month dollar amount?

17

be more than that to manage what we have been told

18

at this point is 55 permits administratively now.

19

Not the guy out in the field managing it, but the

20

person who's administering this.

21

just -- and, again, I'm just asking because I don't

22

know.

In my mind I'm

Is it justified to us having

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

No.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

a person.

25

And if so, it's going to

So if you can clarify,

Mr. Chair, if I can ask for clarification.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

If I may, Mr. Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
Yeah.

This would not be only for

4

the ORAP permits.

It just is an additional duty

5

that they're -- It would be a very much of a strain

6

in the Parks Department to assign those duties to

7

existing staff.

8

activities would still be part of this person's

9

duties and responsibilities.

The Special Events Coordinator type

They may be slightly

10

different in the Parks Department than what this one

11

was designed for, but they -- the person who also

12

handles special events or is titled a Special Events

13

Coordinator is actually working almost totally full

14

time on grants management for the Parks Department.

15

So the Special Events Coordinator or a person that

16

would handle that and ORAP I think would be of great

17

help to the Department.

18
19
20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Chair, for allowing that

question to be clarified.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

I understand the intent, Members.

I

21

personally would recommend, one, the deletion of the

22

Special Events Specialist, because first, of course,

23

I have my big concern about the legality of how this

24

was first established.

25

very clear to the Administration that I don't

So I would rather make it
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1

appreciate it, and, therefore, I have no problem

2

deleting it.

3

that the Department did try more than once to

4

convince the Chair for some consideration, and I

5

think a position is merited, but I don't believe at

6

the SR-22 range.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

10

But at the same time I can tell you

No.

I was looking more at something at maybe an

SR-20 range, like an Accountant II.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares.

Yeah, Mr. Chair, another option is

11

to put a position like a Recreation Specialist

12

And I hate to do this, because Personnel is

13

responsible for the classifications of positions

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's right.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

That's right.

after the duties and

16

responsibilities are outlined.

So I would hesitate

17

to call it the title that I think, you know, maybe

18

would fit.

19

in like a Recreation Specialist type of person in

20

the Central District Office who would handle, along

21

with -- Like in the Permits Clerks that are being

22

redescribed to Booking Agents, but you would have

23

another person like that who would handle this level

24

of permits and could still assist with the special

25

events because they would be in that recreation

But an option would be to put a person
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1

line.

But I would certainly defer to the Department

2

of Personnel Services to properly classify the

3

position.

4

a range of SR-13 to SR-20, perhaps, but I think,

5

more importantly, what the Department is going to

6

need help with is those -- is the permits.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

But it should be, you know -- it will be

Okay.

We're going to need to figure out

8

how to do this properly, if I can use that term,

9

Members.

So I would say maintain line 504, we'll

10

add an additional line for -- at this time we'll

11

call it bad one E/P, expansion E/P for program

12

specialist or whatever is the appropriate

13

description.

14

because, again --

And we should have some net savings,

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

Yes.

-- I don't believe it will be an SR-22.
Any objections at this time, Members?

18

COUNCIL

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

MEMB~RS:

20

No objections.

Okay.

Thank you.

Any adjustments under grants on page 15

21

within Parks and Recreation from grant No. 2 to

22

grant No.5?

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Pontanilla.
On grant No.5, I would like
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1

this Committee to consider the removal of the

2

proviso.

3

the State fund requirements and that the County

4

request would be directly for the completion of the

5

community center.

6
7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I think Mrs. Barroga yesterday explained

Okay.

The consideration is to remove line

519.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objection.

Any objections?

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.
Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
I would like to add just an

15

additional comment on that included -- In addition

16

to Mr. Pontanilla's comment.

17

funds are appropriated, the final step is where most

18

people have the concern of the release of the

19

monies.

20

some of the issues that revolve around projects like

21

this as well as others as far as having funds

22

actually released.

23

both sides of the Houses, goes to the Governor for

24

signature, ultimately we have issues there.

25

Even if the State

And for whatever reason that seems to be

Even if they are approved on

So with this as the language is stated, even
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1

if it gets appropriated, it could still be stuck.

2

And if we don't appropriate our side, then they

3

would be back to square one with everybody

4

approving, but nobody releasing.

5

the consideration, Chair, from the body.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So I would ask for

I think at this time the Chair did

7

not hear any objections, but I would say the

8

scenario that members have brought up as in regards

9

to the State consideration can also be applied at

10

the County consideration.

11

to either release the whole amount, partial amount,

12

or none at all.

13

into advisement on what is the circumstances that he

14

faces at that specific time.

15

it is no guarantee that even if we appropriate,

16

those funds will be released, too.

17

a decision that we need to allow the Mayor to make

18

at the appropriate time.

19
20
21

22
23
24

25

Okay.

The Mayor has full option

I'm sure the Mayor will take it

So, again,

I would say

I think that is

Page 16 under Aquatics.

Any

considerations at this time?
Under Parks Maintenance, any considerations
at this time?
Under Planning and Development, any
considerations at this time?
Parks and Recreation Services, I believe that
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1

we need to look at line 542 and that the change will

2

be to 12 full E/P positions.

3

objections at this time?

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Comments?

Any

No objections.

Okay.

At this time we shall make an

6

adjustment on 542, Staff, to go to 12 from 13 full

7

E/P positions.

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

Mr. Chair.

Yes, Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

The Staff will be putting in -- Do

11

we have an approximation of what figure that would

12

be, or are they still researching that?

13
14
15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We're going to need to make the adjustments

that we will report tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I would request consideration of

16

line 539 for the Park Rangers, because under ORAP it

17

may take a little bit of time because those -- with

18

the transfers and everything.

19

of doing eight months funding, to consider six

20

months.

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23
24
25

I would say instead

No objections.

Okay.

Thank you very much for that, Ms.

Johnson.
Staff, line 539 under Rangers, we shall
provide funding for six months.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
For clarification, on line 542 --

Thank you.
is it just going to reflect the

12 E/P positions and no reference to the half time?

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, ma'am.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

That would be the Chair's direction to

10

Staff, because as we have noted in earlier

11

discussions, the Department still has the

12

opportunity to fractionalize the full E/P counts.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15
16
17

Okay.

Thank you.
Thank you.

Members, are there any other considerations
under Recreation and Support Division?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, line 546.

Mr. Mateo.

This has to do

18

with the One Alii electrical and stage replacement.

19

At this particular time, Chairman, the Department

20

still has some issues to resolve regarding the lease

21

with the Kawela Plantation homeowners, therefore, I

22

am requesting to change that figure of 160,000 to

23

30,000 to repair the stage, and redo -- and delete

24

that additional 130,000.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.
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First, let me ask Staff, where did we put the
20,000 for Kaunakakai gym, please?

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

MS. KOLLER:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

MS. KOLLER:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10
11

Countywide.

Okay, Countywide.

Thank you very much.

Countywide Parks, I believe.
I am so happy you folks -It's a proviso.
have great recall.

Thank you.

Incorporated into the $

, Mr.

Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

That is correct,. Mr. Kane.
Okay.

12

Members, you've heard the

13

consideration by Mr. Mateo, $30,000 for the repair

14

and maintenance of the facility at One Alii Park on

15

Molokai.

Any objections?

16

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you very much, Mr.

Mateo.

19
20

No objections.

Are there any other considerations at this
time?

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
If Member Tavares -- Oh, no, no,

21

that's okay.

25

Johnson already made the comments about the

I was going to -- I think Member
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1

Director's comments, but -- We're not interested in

2

that consideration until some statement is made by

3

the Director, but until then we just move?

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

Support

Mr. Chair.

One second.

7

COUNC ILMEMBER T.AVARES:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Under Recreation and

Yeah.

-- any other considerations?

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.
Ms. Tavares.
Yeah.

Mr. Chair, under Recreation

12

Support Services is where I would add the E/P for

13

the ORAP permits and special events, or somewhere

14

else, but let's put them here for now so we don't

15

forget that we added one.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18
19
20

I believe on my directive

Administration?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

-- to Staff was under Administration

Program.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Or did you add it already in

Okay.

Okay.

Fine.

Thank you.

Thank you.
This is too confusing.

Again, Members, there is a potential for,

hopefully, some decrease in the amount for the --
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Right.

-- environmental assessment for the Ocean

3

Recreation Activities Program, but until such time

4

as the Chair can provide sufficient rationale on the

5

adjustment, I would ask that we maintain this

6

amount.

7
8
9

Okay.
.

See~ng

MS. KOLLER:

Anything else under this Division?

none, let us move to the PALS Program.
Mr. Chair.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

MS. KOLLER:

Yes, Tamara.
Just -- Thank you.

Just for clarification on

12

the One Alii Park, the 30,000, was that for both

13

electrical and the replacement of the stage?

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I would say that

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chair.

I would like to -- I had interpreted Mr.

17

Mateo's comments as repair and maintenance of that

18

structure, so they could use it for both the

19

electrical and stage repairs.

20

understanding.

21

Mr. Mateo, is the Chair correct in its

22

understanding?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Yes, Chair.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

25

That was my

Okay.
Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Is this -- I think I asked this

2

earlier, so I don't know if we've resolved it.

3

this 30,000 can be incorporated, too, in Park --

4

Countywide Parks because it's a stage replacement?

5

Again, just for clarification.

6

absorbed there instead of adding here.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.
Thank you.
Thank you.

Anything else under Recreation and Support,

Members?

16

Under the PALS Program, any consideration for
the PALS Program?

18

Okay.

Let us move to the Waiehu Golf Course

Program.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

So when we get

clarify where we're going to put it.

12

19

Just a thought.

there, we can have maybe a little bit more of it to

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

So it can get

We could consider that.

11

15

So

Okay.

No.
Nope.

D~partment

of Personnel Services,

any consideration at this time?

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

No.

2S

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

No.
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No.

1

?:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Department of Planning, any consideration

3

as far as those items listed on page 17 for the

4

Department of Planning?

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

No.

Let us move to page 18.

The Chair was

8

working on, Members -- I am -- Again, I apologize,

9

your Chair just ran out of time this evening.

1u

Regarding the Tri-Isle or let me just call it the

11

Main Street Program and the Maui Redevelopment

12

Agency, I will promise you that tomorrow you will

13

have a Chair's proposal.

14

move on.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So I would ask that we

Mr. Chair.
No objections.

Ms. Tavares.
Yeah, Mr. Chair, you know, and I

19

think it was in last year's budget that we called

20

this item Community Planning as a generic, because

21

one time it went to the Kihei Community Association

22

for their work on the Kihei Plan.

23

know, it wasn't named specifically to an

24

organization, it was called Community Planning

25

Grants or something.

So to name -- You

Was it that year or the year
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before?

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm trying to think.
I don't recall.

Because I know Kihei did receive a couple

5

of grants.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

MS. KOLLER:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

Two years ago.

Two or three.

Mr. Chair.

MS. KOLLER:

Tamara.
Last -- In the current budget, the 2004, it's

11

Grants and Disbursement for Wailuku Main Street

12

Association, Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center.

13
14
15
16
17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I think it was the year before,

because -- It's okay.
MS. KOLLER:

We can check on that and see the wording from

before if you want this changed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

No, Mr. Chair.

I guess we'll go

18

through this discussion later on, but if the

19

intention is to fund other organizations that are

20

doing planning functions or assisting the Planning

21

Department, perhaps a more generic name for this

22

item should be listed.

23

And I'll check on it, Tamara, you have plenty

24

to do.

25

was two years ago.

I'll check the wording from -- I think it
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

And the Chair welcomes

2

any suggestions as the Chair develops this proposal

3

for presentation to the Committee tomorrow.
Okay.

4

Department of Police, any adjustments

or considerations under the Administration Division?

5

Under the Investigative Services Division?

6

7

?:

Nope.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Uniform Patrols Services Division?

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

Ms. Tavares.
Yes, Mr. Chair.

I have a proposal

12

here for consideration that we take the 36 -- 36

13

vacancies that seem to be what happens pretty much

14

on the average, take 30 of those and fund them for

15

six months.

16

approximately $585,000.

17
18
19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That will result in a savings of

Okay.

You heard a consideration.

Comments, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane.

Thank you, Chair.

I would feel

20

comfortable if we at least got some comment,

21

although I can anticipate what the comment is going

22

to be, but I think the comment I would like to

23

understand is in the context of what existing

24

recruits we have and how that impacts the request.

25

Because we may have a cycle of recruits coming
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forward, and I don't know where they're at.

So

2

depending on where those recruits are coming in, if

3

they're ready to come in earlier than the six

4

months, which is saying January before they can

5

actually come in, then we may have some situation

6

there.

7

something back from the Chief specifically to the

8

recruit question and how it would impact a proposal

9

that Ms. Tavares is making.

So I would only ask if we can get at least

Other than that, I think we can all

10
11

anticipate throughout the years the Chief's position

12

about, you know, something -- you know, something

13

close to what we're talking about now, yeah, Member

14

Tavares.

15

limited to the context of recruits.

16

and I hope I'm trying to get my message clear on

17

that.

And so I would ask that the question is

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And I hope

~

The Chair understands.
Okay.

Thank you.

And I hope the

20

members understand where I'm coming from with that.

21

I would hate to compromise the hiring of recruits

22

because we've -- we're cutting it back to six

23

months.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Any other comments by the members?
Yeah, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Understanding how funding occurs

3

in a program is that it's basically you're taking

4

the positions -- or not the positions, you're just

5

taking the amount of money and they decide what

6

they're going to do with it.

7

only going by a newspaper article that appeared

8

recently about the vacancies and the crisis in the

9

Police Department.

I have to admit I am

And I believe when the Chief was

10

here, he did talk about the vacancies being, you

11

know, throughout the year and throughout the past

12

years.

13

we totally fund their request, we are always holding

14

in reserve for the Police Department over $1 million

15

a year with the number of vacancies that they have.

16

And I think we're at a time now where we have to be

17

looking at what we're actually utilizing and we

18

have

19

that we should be able to help the Department, the

20

Police Department with their recruitment, but at the

21

same time help other departments who need help so

22

that we are using our resources wisely in the

23

County.

24
25

And I think that because we completely -- or

if we can use those funds in other areas,

So this is why I bring this forward.

I know

it's always been a contentious issue when it is
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brought up, but I think we have to face those facts

2

that there is a certain amount of vacancies in the

3

larger departments where, you know, some of them

4

don't have much wiggle room in their personnel area.

5

But with those many vacancies, and I think they

6

reported 39, if we look at some of them, which in

7

actuality would be only

8

that we would be taking the funding away from.

9

I just wanted to bring it up at this point rather

10

than, you know, between First and Second Reading.

11

Thank you.

12
13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

it would be 18 vacancies
But

Thank you.
I will direct Staff to make contact with the

14

Department of Police.

15

concern stated by the Committee.

16

that I also believe that part of the vacancies -- as

17

stated by our colleague from Upcountry, I believe

18

the Department also utilizes those vacancy funds to

19

assist in the overtime payment of officers that are

20

required to work extended shifts.

21

that confirmed and upon receipt of current

22

information, then the Chair will allow the Committee

23

to make an appropriate decision.

24

do what is best for the County, not one particular

25

Department, but for the total County.

We shall follow up on the
I can tell you

But we will have

Okay.

And we will
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Okay.

1

Services?

2

3

?:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

No.
Any considerations under Technical and

Support Services Program?
Department of Prosecution -- excuse me,

6
7

Anything else under Uniform Patrol

Prosecuting Attorney?

8

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Remember those swinging axes?
Any considerations at this time for the

10

11

Yes, Chair.

Department of the Prosecuting Attorney?
Okay.

12

Let us go to Department of Public

13

Works.

Before we start, the Chair will ask for a

14

ten-minute recess, so we shall please return by

15

9:35, Members.

16

so please return at 9:35.

I know the evening is getting long,
(Gavel. )

9:23 p.m.

17

RECESS:

18

RECONVENE:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9:36 p.m.

(Gavel. )

Okay.

We shall begin the

20

continuation of the second pass of potential

21

reductions.

22

Parks and Environmental Management, General Fund.

23

At this time any considerations under Administration

24

Program?

25

We're on page 19 under Department of

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

(Inaudible) Parks.
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2
3
4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Oh, I'm sorry, Department of Public

Works -COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

-- and Environmental Management.

Anything

under Engineering Program?

8

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

Special Maintenance Fund?

10

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

I'm sorry, I

heard you say Parks.

5

7

Public Works, Chair?

No.

Developmental Services Administration --

Development Services?

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

Under the Highway Fund, any revisions to

15

the Administration

16

adjustments right now Contributions to General Fund,

17

Health Fund, Retirement, and FICA.
Page 20.

18

I would say there should be no

Any adjustments for the Bikeway

19

Fund?

20

Service at this time as well as the overhead

21

charges.
We are on Road, Bridge, and Drainage

22
23

I would say there should be none for Debt

Maintenance of the Highway Fund.

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Question, Mr. Chair.

Ms. Johnson.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.

254

BF 04/29/04

1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

On the line 678, the vacuum

2

assisted tanker truck at a quarter of a million

3

dollars.

4

that it takes for this particular equipment to

5

arrive or if it's just something you buy off the

6

shelf, so to speak.

7

of leasing for a period of time to reduce the cost

8

of this particular item, or do they not do that type

9

of program?

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I am not familiar with the length of time

Is there also the possibility

I am not sure about the ability to lease or

11

rent a piece of equipment regarding this.

12

you can rent tanker trucks that -- for, I guess,

13

dust control and those types.

14

one that has the ability to suck up or vacuum fluids

15

back into the truck.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I know

I'm not sure about

And the only reason I ask this,

17

Mr. Chair, is because it is a specialized piece of

18

equipment and it is relatively expensive.

19

sure what the frequency of usage would be to justify

20

the expenditure.

21

that if there were construction firms or other firms

22

that we could enter into some type of either an

23

arrangement where we paid for the service and, you

24

know, did it on that basis rather than actually own

25

the piece of equipment, because I don't know what

I'm not

So I was thinking along the lines
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the frequency of use would be.

2

understand it, I'm a little bit reluctant to put a

3

quarter of a million dollars into something that is

4

going to be sitting a good percentage of the time.

5

That's my only concern.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And while I can

I guess you could put that -- you know,

7

conceivable callout all those private cesspool

8

pumpers to just pump -- suck up water, you know,

9

drain water, and have the County assist in the -- an

10

area to flush it out.

11

for some comments, Ms. Johnson.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So we can ask the Department

I would really appreciate that,

13

because that is another big-ticket item that I --

14

while I realize the need for it, it's just if we

15

could achieve the same goal in a different way.

16

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Staff, can you take note for us to

18

contact Highways Division and see if there's an

19

ability to look at a contract for services instead

20

of the purchase of a vacuum tanker truck.

21

Okay.

22

Mr. Kane.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you for that suggestion.

Mr. Chair, was this the -- I believe

24

this is the tanker truck that I asked for

25

consideration of Equipment Bond.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

MS. KOLLER:

4

Bond?

5

Yes.

Yes, you're correct.
Do you want us to move it to the Equipment

CHAIR HOKAMA:

This is Highway Fund.

Yes, I would

6

recommend deletion from the Highway Fund.

7

couple of million dollars over.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

$2.6 million.

Two and a half million.
Okay.

10

We are a

Members, shall we delete this from

11

line 678 and we'll move it to the bond

12

Bond Fund, as well as follow through with the

13

Department on the suggestion that Ms. Johnson posed

14

to the Chair.

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

1'1

Equipment

Any objections?

No objections.

Okay.

Thank you very much for that, Ms

Johnson.

18

Anything else in this area, considerations?

19

Okay.

20

Management.

Seeing none, let us move to Traffic
Any considerations?

21

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23
24
25

No, I do not, Chairman.

Garage Services?

Any additional

considerations.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I
Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, Mr. Kane.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Line 687, that shift to CIP

3

Resurfacing, that's for Countywide resurfacing

4

specifically?

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

please.

Staff, can you assist the Committee,

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair.

Yes, Ms. Tavares.
I think this was one of my brain

10

lapses.

Not really.

11

operations from Garages, and it was shifted into

12

various districts.

13

one district, 300 in another.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

17

20

Right.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Because there were some districts

That is correct.
Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

No.

So I'm just looking for,

I

guess, to specify in the note.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

It's the one where it has 200 in

that had zero resurfacing.

18
19

It was because we took out the

Okay.

We can try put better

-~

It is noted in the Highway

in

the Highway section.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Under Resurfacing, Mr. --

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Under Resurfacing in the various
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districts, because it was this deletion as well as

2

the 500,000 from the roundabout that I had just kind

3

of split up.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, yeah.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And it's, you know, neither here

6

nor there as we look at which is the best way to do

7

the resurfacing or how much goes where.

8

open.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I just plugged it.
Thank you.
Anything else under Garage Services, Highway

10
11

It's all

Funds?
Okay.

12

Let us move to the Waste Water

13

Division under Waste Water Funds.

14

have worked hard, Members, to eliminate a general

15

fund subsidy.

16

Administration and Engineering at this time?
Okay.

17

And, again, we

Any adjustments or considerations to

Let us move to page 21.

I would say

18

there should be no changes at this time to the

19

Health Fund Debt Service or Overhead.

20
21

Under the Reclamation Facilities Program, any
additional considerations at this time?

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

No.
Seeing none, under Solid Waste, I

24

would say that there should be no adjustments at

25

this time on page 21.
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Page 22, you will see -- Let's see.

2

Landfill, Residential, Diversion.

3

Solid Waste on page 22?

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Any comments for

Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
Was this where we were going to

7

consider that Molokai grease trap pumping to be a

8

proviso under the Diversion Program?

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for that question.

I believe

10

Staff did have some time for a comment from the

11

Deputy Director of the Department.

12
13

Ms. Koller.
MS_ KOLLER:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

The Deputy Director

14

indicated that the 25,000 that we had looked at in

15

the Department was intended to be utilized for two

16

groups; one, the Community Workday, and that's for

17

the Paint Exchange, Computer Swap, and the recycling

18

baskets that they produce that are in the parks.

19

And then the second group is the Maui Recycling

20

Group, who assist in running the Aloha Shares

21

Recycling Network which finds homes for items to be

22

recycled.

23

computer distribution.

24

specify -- If we put it with the 25,000, there

25

wouldn't be any funds left for these two programs.

Also, the used motor oil education and
So we weren't able to use
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However, I inadvertently put it in Landfill

2

Disposal.

I was intending to add it to the

3

Diversion Program on line -- on line 746.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.
We shall take note from the Staff

6

that line 739 will be relocated under the Diversion

7

Program.

8

MS. KOLLER:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

Mr. Chair.

MS. KOLLER:

Tamara.
If I could just remind Members that if

11

currently we do have a supplemental transfer.

12

did not eliminate the supplemental transfer up

13

front.

14

different programs within Solid Waste to see if

15

there could be some cuts.

16

going through the process, we forgot to consider

17

that.

18

that we do still have a supplemental transfer.

19

We

The intention was that you look at these

And I think as we were

So I just wanted to make sure that you knew

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for that comment.

20

So, Members, if we do want to eliminate the

21

general fund subsidy, I believe right now we're at

22

the quarter of a million mark, $250,000 in --

23

rounded out, that we would need in this area to

24

reduce spending by $250,000.

25

Okay.

Any further considerations?
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Seeing none --

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Chair.

I'm sorry, Ms. Johnson.
On

Again, it's a small thing,

5

but on line 747, the Clerk Typist, I don't know that

6

it's going to make much difference, but, again,

7

that's for eight months.

8

Wherever we see eight months, if we could convert or

9

consider converting those to six months, unless it's

If we could convert --

10

really, you know, urgent.

11

remember if it's urgent or not.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

And this one I can't

We will follow through

13

with the Department, Ms. Johnson, and then tomorrow

14

we'll try and get updates for the Committee members.

15

MS. KOLLER:

Mr. Chair.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

MS. KOLLER:

Tamara.
I'm not certain, but on this one position,

18

the Clerk Typist III, one of the departments

19

indicated they had someone that they were ready to

20

hire, and I don't know if this is the position.

21

generally Clerk Typists are easier positions to

22

fill.

They have a Civil Service list.

23

cut

I mean, you can cut it for the six months,

24

but it would probably be in one of the more

25

technical fields that you have more difficulty in

And so for
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1

filling the slots.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

status.

Okay.

We will contact the Department for a

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7
8

Ms. Tavares.
The difference in salary between

six and eight months would be $3,802.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Okay.

Thank you.

We shall await comment from the Department.

10

Okay.

Let us move to the Department of

11

Transportation.

12

considerations?

13

Mr. Chair.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

The Administration Program, any

Mr. Chair, you can eliminate line

14

758, just take away the gray mark, because we just

15

never addressed that.

16

but there's no need for it anymore.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

Okay.
Okay.

I mean, we did address it,

Thank you very much, Ms. Johnson.
Let us move to page 23.

19

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Chair.

Mr. Carroll.
We have over here on 766,

22

"Consider a proviso for East Maui Dialysis

23

Transportation."

24

dialysis proviso inside there at the last meeting,

25

$75,000 for the East Maui Transportation.

I thought we agreed to put a
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for that --

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

MS. KOLLER:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

MS. KOLLER:

It's the line above.

-- comment.
Mr. Chair, the
It's on the line above.

Tamara.
On the previous page, on line 765, the 75,000

8

is included there.

9

whether that -- we were going to add a proviso.

10
11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Mr. Carroll, we'll -- The funds is

there and --

12

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
but --

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

(Inaudible) we'd consider it,

Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair.

Forgive

me.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21
22

That was just a proposal.

-- we shall --

15

17

I think Staff wasn't clear

Mr. Carroll, we will address
Thank you, Chair.

-- the proviso.
Okay.

Thank you.

Staff, we shall work with Corp Counsel

and the Chair in providing proper language.

23

Members, any considerations on page 23 as in

24

regards to Department of Transportation General

25

Funds?
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1
2

Okay.

of Transportation Highway Funds.

3
4

Okay.

Page 24, any considerations for

Highway Funds, Transportation Department?

5
6

Seeing none, let us move to Department

Okay.

Under the Department of Water Supply,

these

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, Ms. Tavares.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

On 805.

The Grants and Disbursements For

Public Transit.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

I'm sorry.

Yes.

13

15

Chair.

Yes.
Were we able to get a response

from Akinas?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Taguchi has been in contact, I believe,

17

with the Akina Group's accountant or financial

18

officer, and I believe they will try and provide

19

some information to the Committee tomorrow regarding

20

what they believe would

21

the revenue losing routes.

22

tomorrow, I'm expecting it in the morning, to have

23

some information for the Committee.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

it would take to maintain
And so sometime

Thank you.
Mr. Kane.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

265

BF 04/29/04

1

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair, is there opportunity --

2

And I don't want to open a can of worms, but is

3

there opportunity for consideration of provisoing

4

Department of Water Supply money?

5

a real small one, 25,000 for the Maui Nui Botanical

6

Garden additional.

7

fund, but it works for this fund.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10
11
12

And I'll make it

So it doesn't tap in our general

Under the
Under Department of Water Supply,

wherever the appropriate place is.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Under the Enterprise Funds of the

Department?

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yes, sir.

Yes.
And so instead of the 25,000 that was

16

represented in testimony, that we consider getting

17

50,000 provisoed to fulfill the request.

18

the body's consideration, to provide for the funding

19

for the Maui Nui Botanical Garden's request.

20

question, Chair.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Again, at

Just a

I don't see a problem with the ability for

22

the irrigation or the water project.

There may be a

23

problem if it's for operations of the garden,

24

because of the generation of the special or

25

enterprise funds and the parameters of authorized
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1

uses.

There might be a problem.

2

review the restrictions on use.

3

up with the Department and tomorrow I will be happy

4

to report back to the Committee.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We would need to
But we can follow

Thank you, Chairman.

Okay.

Members, you've heard the comments

7

of the Chair that regarding Water Supply, it is an

8

enterprise program.

9

involved.

There is no general funds

They run on their revenues as generated

10

through meter fees, deposits, development fees.

11

so at this time we may have some slight adjustment

12

within their projects and allocation, but it will

13

not basically help us with our need to reduce

14

general fund.

15

So I would ask that we move to

crp, page 25,

16

Parks and Recreation General Fund, Hana.

17

considerations?

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And

Any

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
At Some point, I don't know if a

21

consideration would be possible based on the

22

discussion about Boundless Playgrounds.

23

tie it into where you're at right now, Chair, of

24

tying in the three -- or trying to incorporate the

25

money that right now is showing for Boundless to

And I'll
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1

assist with Paani Mai as well as Kalakapua Parks, as

2

well as the Boundless Playground at the Horseshoe.

3

And somehow be able to incorporate the funds, the

4

$800,000, to somehow assist with those other two

5

playgrounds.

6

Chair.

7

that, but I wanted to put it on the table.

8
9
10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I just put that on the table,

And it slows down things, then I'll defer

Okay.

Thank you.

.I would share with the

members that I believe -- I'm sorry, I forgot the
lady's last name, but --

II

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Rosete.

-- Ms. Rosete as well as Mr. Yokouchi, I

13

think, mentioned that they are trying to get their

14

architect to provide better details so they can get

15

a better estimate on their costs.

16

are -- if they are able to, they would report back

17

the ability to reduce the consideration, as I

18

understood it, and hopefully they will be able to

19

present us a smaller request.

20

that the Weinberg Foundation's commitment is for 30

21

percent of whatever is the project's total cost.

22

if it's 600,000, it's going to be 30 percent of

23

600,000 is the Weinberg's share.

24
25

And that they

As well as we know

So

I would say that for programs such as this, I
will ask that you consider we're still available to
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1

utilize park assessment fees.

2

your district fees, you zero it out, but you can

3

show that you have used it for what it was intended

4

to, improve facilities within the community plan

5

district that it was generated in.

6

that we consider that.

7

~

268

And if you zero out

So I would ask

And, of course, we already had an update of

8

the amount of funds that each district has remaining

9

in their balances, but I would ask that if that's

10

viable, the Staff can make those adjustments for the

11

Committee.

12

Okay.

Any other considerations under CIP

13

Hana at this time?

14

Okay.

Let us move forward to the Paia-Haiku

15

projects under Parks and Recreation.

16

the same comments that was provided for the Hana

17

park that if possible, we -- Oh, Ms. Tavares.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I will take

Mr. Chair, there's a balance of

19

$33,000 in the Paia-Haiku.

And I note on page 35

2,0

Mr. Molina had recommended an amount of 30,000.

21

we change that amount to 33,000 and use the park

22

assessment fund.

23

much, I would ask if we could just eliminate the

24

general fund cash to this project.

25

this group was looking for any kind of help, and the

If

And because we're going over so

Because I think
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1

33,000 is probably a good number for them.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Molina.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah.

Chair, this is a tough one,

4

but in light of what we're doing here tonight, I am

5

(inaudible).

6

members know, last term, if you recall, they -- when

7

they got their initial 20,000 appropriation last

8

year, they said it would be the only time they would

9

come.

And just want to let the Committee

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I remember.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

You remember that, Mr. Chair?

I don't forget.
And this is the second time.

And

14

they had, I think -- this second time they did incur

15

some unexpected expenses, I think, close to $10,000,

16

which I think there is a debate whether it was more

17

their fault or maybe there was some miscommunication

18

going on with the Parks Department.

19

30,000 plus is fair to them.

So I think the

And I believe Member Johnson had some

20
21

comments as well regarding the cash coming out of

22

the general fund, Chairman, but I will live with the

23

33,000, Chairman.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Molina.
Ms. Johnson.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

One of the things that the

2

Kalakapua Playground is going to be doing is also

3

leveraging the money.

4

given them, they are going to be using that for

5

matching funds for the grants for which they've

6

applied.

7

them, the greater the leverage would be in terms of,

8

let's say, getting either a one-to-one match or a

9

two-to-one match.

So that whatever money we had

So I think the more that we could give

So that was why I had suggested

10

giving them 20 here and then 30 from the Parks

11

Assessment, but, you know, it's the will of the

12

body.

13

And if there is any way that we could assist

14

them potentially out of the Boundless Playground if

15

additional money becomes available, if they're short

16

10,000 or something like that, I think that I would

17

have no problem doing that because the sweat equity

18

that they're going to be putting in not only to the

19

Kalakapua Playground, but the other playgrounds as

20

well as Boundless I think is worth a great deal.

21

And so I'm hoping that in the Weinberg match, since

22

they do consider man-hours and volunteer labor, even

23

though it's maybe not as high as some of the

24

professional help might be, it is considered, too,

25

when they're looking at the matching funds, as far
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1
2

as I understand.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you.

3

Any other comments?

Thank you.

4

And you're right, Mr. Molina, I remember all
the organizations that are asking here that told me

6

one time or last time.

7

all.
General Fund, Makawao-Pukalani-Kula, any

8
9

So, yes, the Chair remembers

consideration?
General Fund, Wailuku-Kahului.

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Yeah.

I would like this body

14

to reconsider the request for Maui Arts and Culture

15

Center.

16

funding to upgrade their kitchen and food service

17

facility at the MACC.

18

sUbmitting a proposal to the Crusade Foundation, and

19

if successful, they would have a match of three to

20

one.

21

$150,000 that has been requested.

Maui Arts and Culture Center is requesting

So I'm asking this body to reconsider the

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24
25

They're in the process of

Okay.

I'm looking for deletions.
I'll get some deletions or

additional revenues for you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, Mr. Chair.

On the Boundless

2

Playground, the $800,000, this organization has done

3

a lot of work in this area and I think they're well

4

on their way to accomplishing a great playground for

5

our community.

6

consider reducing the amount at this time to give

7

them enough money to get through the design process.

8

Normally when a CIP project comes -- is formulated,

9

it has a conceptual portion, preliminary plans and

10

design portion, then engineering or bid documents,

11

and the bids, et cetera.

12

most of the time you'll see CIP projects have two

13

separate types -- and land acquisition would be

14

another one, but two separate appropriations for

15

plans and design.

16

believe it was 50,000 to get them started, I think,

17

the other year or something like that.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I would like to ask the body to

It's a long process.

So

We did give them an initial I

I'm not sure.
Yeah, something like that.

So

20

being that usually I think the industry standard is

21

around 8 to 12 percent of the total project is

22

usually plans and design, that I would reduce this

23

and leave $150,000 for them to complete their plans

24

and design portion, which is a difference of

25

650,000.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Any other comments?

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson.

I can support that at this time.

3

And I think that because the program has now

4

combined with the other projects and because it's a

5

community-built playground, I think that if we give

6

them the funding so that they can proceed, we'll

7

have a much more realistic figure when they do come

8

back.
And if we do by some chance, let's say, have

9

10

an opportunity to see this project prior to, you

11

know, let's say next budget cycle, I would ask the

12

Administration, because they have been supportive of

13

this concept of the community playgrounds, if we do

14

have supplemental funds available, that they could

15

bring this back earlier.

16

point in time if we're trying to look

17

or at least money, that's -- trying to go the other

18

direction instead of spending more, I would say this

19

is one of the areas that we could do it in.

20

you.

21
22
23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

fo~

revenues

Thank

You've heard the consideration, a

reduction of 650,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KANS:

But I think that at this

Objections?

Mr. Chair, before I provide you with

24

my consideration of this, I also recall that this

25

is -- this money is going to be primarily used for
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1

the materials of this project, and that they were

2

targeting April of 2005 for their start to

3

construct.

4

would have to pay for the materials to be on site

5

and ready to start in April.

6

requested now would delay the construction of this

7

playground, so I have my concerns about the request.

Which means in order to do that, they

So what's being

Plus, we're depending on volunteer and the

8
9

recruiting, and if we're going to be putting it off

10

until months and months later, like everything else

11

that volunteers are involved with, enthusiasm wanes

12

the longer it takes to get something started.

13

quite frankly,

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15
16

Okay.
Okay.

I have my concerns.

So,

Thank you.

Any other comments?
Let us move forward.

The Chair will

take that as an objection.

17

Okay.

18

General Fund, Kihei-Makena.

19

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

20

Remove.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

MS. KOLLER:

23

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

24

MS. KOLLER:

25

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

Next, anything else, Wailuku-Kahului?

We've got money in Parks Assessment.

Additional comments?

Mr. Chair.
Don't we have 425,000?

We've already used that,
Okay.
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1

MS. KOLLER:

2

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

The Administration used that.

Thank you.
Then we have to leave it.

Thank you for the gesture.
You were saving that for all night,

huh?

8

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

I'm sorry.

No, no, no.

I don't have much.

Thank you for the gesture, Mr. Nishiki.

It's appreciated.

11

General Fund, West Maui?

12

General Fund, Molokai?

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

That's the old one.

Page 27, I will tell you the Chair has his

problems with Molokai General Hospital.

16

Okay.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

General Fund, Lanai.
Excuse me, Chair.

Mr. Kane.
You've made your comment about the

20

General Hospital.

21

500,000 because there is an objection?

22
23
24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Are you not moving forward the

It is being moved forward.

I'm just

letting the members know I have objections to that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

And I have stated in the past

that I also have concerns about this.

Thank you.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

250.

We have a consideration for 250.

Comments?

Any objections?

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

No objections.

Reduced 250.
General Fund, Lanai?

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Me, too, Chairman.

A lot of tension.

This, you know, Members, is to finish the

project that is 90-percent built.

10

General Fund, Countywide?

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
Thank you.

I think this is, again,

14

the question about the stage being incorporated into

15

a number that the body feels comfortable with

16

incorporating here.

17

across the board in all of the Countywide

18

improvement areas, that the body consider a

19

percentage of the numbers that are reflected that

20

are currently shown as zero.

21

we can put some funding in these areas starting

22

first and foremost -- starting first with this, Mr.

23

Chair.

24

proceed with a request like that because it does

25

encompass all of the Countywide areas that currently

I would suggest, and probably

And that way at least

But I don't know how you would want to
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have zero in them.

1

And to keep in line with your request for

2

3

reduction, Mr. Chair, I ask that instead of putting

4

in the current figures that are showing up in these

5

Countywide Facility areas, that we consider a

6

reduced amount and perhaps we can try to be

7

consistent in providing a percentage of the number

8

which represents a level funding across the board.

9

So that's my proposal, Chair, for the members to

10

consider.

I was looking at a number of 65 percent

11

of the number here, which represents not half of

12

this, you know -- well,

13

which would come out to I think $260,000, if my

14

brain is working.

15

?:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

65 percent of the number,

Is it 240, 65 percent?

240, 250, 260.
And with that 260, Chair, that would

17

incorporate, if the body has no objections, the

18

20,000 which is already, I believe, put in there, as

19

well as the 30,000 for the stage for One Alii Park

20

included in that 260 number.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

Thank you.
Any further consideration?

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Any comments?

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
The Velma Santos Community
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1

Center --

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

-- improvements, the 50,000 that

4

was hanging out there I think we were going to

5

consider putting in this fund, also.

6

be for the other improvements besides the acoustical

7

treatment.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10
11

So that would

Okay.
So if we write it there and then

we have it all in front of us.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Why don't -- At this time, why don't we

12

reduce Countywide Parks by 100,000, add the language

13

for one Kaunakakai gym treatment, One Alii Park

14

repair and maintenance of electrical and stage, and

15

Velma McWayne Santos Community Center Parking

16

Improve

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

No, it's just improvements,

18

because it was hardware for the doors and the

19

screens and --

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22
23
24
25

Okay.
I guess parking lot was the big --

the big one of the three.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

We'll just list the Velma McWayne

Santos Center Improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair, just for clarification.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I heard you say electrical.

Under One Alii?
Yes.

R&M for electrical and stage.
Yeah.

My understanding was

7

electrical was something we weren't going to

8

consider at this time.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

10

Electrical is the 30,000 for the

included --

II

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Mr. Mateo, please.

I'm sorry.

The 30,000 will be inclusive of the

13

repair and maintenance to the stage and its

14

electrical work.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16
17

Thank you, Chair.

to get that clear.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

And I just wanted

Thank you.

Thank you.
Any other comments?

19

?:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any objections?

No.
Okay.

Let us move -So that's a reduction of 100,000?
100,000.

That's correct.
Thank you, Chair.

Any other considerations under Countywide
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1
2

General Fund For Parks and Recreation?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

Ms. Johnson.

Because we don't know yet

3

what's going to happen on the grease traps on line

4

922, we just kind of had a guesstimate as to there

5

being an approximate cost of 50,000, you know, for

6

each facility, I'd ask at this time that we reduce

7

that amount to one half of that, so it would be

8

125,000.

9
10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

You have heard the consideration put forth

by Ms. Johnson.

11

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Any comments?

No objections.

Mr. Kane.
I was under the impression from what

14

was presented to us that at least a couple of the

15

facilities were going to be more costly than others

16

because of the size.

17

apologize, Chair, but by halving it, again, because

18

we're dealing with a consent decree and we're

19

already dealing with a violation which they're

20

already going to get charged per facility and

21

because they may -- because we don't even have a

22

contractor set up for the six facilities, that there

23

also may incur fine issues if they're going to be

24

treated the same as John Q. Public.

25

not has been resolved and -- and so I would have a

And I can't recall, and so I

So that still
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1

problem with the 100 and -- with half of it being

2

taken away.

3

reduction, but half of it I think, in my opinion, is

4

not a number I would feel comfortable with.

5

I can favor a reduction, but not half of it.

6

you, Chair.

I can see us looking at a lesser

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

Okay.

Any other comments?

I am
Thank

Ms. Johnson.

Mr. Chair, I would reduce that,

then, to 200,000.

And because of the other issues

10

that were raised with regard to, I guess, looking at

11

Countywide General Fund for Parks and Recreation,

12

some of the other things.

13

believe we could look at taking some of that out of

14

the Countywide Parks.

15

for the consideration of putting that maybe on the

16

list of projects that might be considered and then

17

reducing the amount underneath the grease traps.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

Okay.

If it's mandated, I

And so I would at least ask

What's the numbers, Jo Anne?
It would be 200,000.
Thank you.

You have heard the revised consideration.

22

Comments?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Nope.

Mr. Carroll.
I support 200,000.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

L

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Any objections, Members?
Mr. Chair, for clarity, the reduction

is $50,000?

3

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

That is correct.
Thank you.
Okay.

I can support.
Support.

Thank you.
Thanks, Jo Anne.

Reduce 50,000, net 200 revised.
Countywide General Fund, Government

11

Facilities.

12

Any considerations?

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

We are under the Department of Fire.

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
I would ask that the body consider

16

reduction of $100,000 from the total figure of

17

350,000.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Thank you.

Consideration is forwarded.

Any comments?

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objection.

Anyobjections?

Reduction, 100,000, net

revised 250.

22
23

Countywide, Police.

24

?:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any considerations?

Nope.
Okay.

Let us move forward.

Road
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1

Improvements.

2

100,000.

Countywide, Bridge Improvements,

3

?:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

Nope.

Hana.

Any considerations?
No.

Okay.

No objection.
Let us move forward.

Highway Fund,

Any considerations?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
I would ask for the consideration of

12

line No. 941 for District Road Resurfacing, that the

13

number be reduced by $75,000.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

We have a consideration.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Comments?

Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
It gets so confusing to do the

18

road resurfacing part per district, so is it

19

possible for us to lump all of it together and then

20

look at something to distribute.

21

you already worked this out for every district?

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

Or, Mr. Kane, have

I have done it for every district.
Oh, okay.

And that's why I was -- At first I

submitted a number of 65 percent, and I'm just -- I
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1

revised that because the Chair in the first

2

consideration of the Countywide Parks area, the

3

reduction was for 100,000, which represents a

4

75-percent keep, so a 25-percent reduction.

5

trying to work -- trying to be as consistent as

6

possible with that same number going through.

7

Understanding our constraints, but at least having

8

funding available for the areas.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

13

Okay.

Okay.

Mr. Carroll.
Thank you, Chair.

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18
19
20

I agree with

this figure.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

Thank you.

Thank you.

14

16

So I'm

Any other comments?
Mr. Chair, I had $100,000

reduction.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you for that comment.

Mr. Kane, I'm sorry, what is the number now
for your number for 941, please?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair, my request was a

21

consideration of 75,000 with the concurrence of Mr.

22

Carroll.

23

for an additional 25,000 for a total of 100,000.

24

And I have not conferred with Mr. Carroll, but I can

25

concur with the figure given the extensive work that

And Mr. Pontanilla is asking, I believe,
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1

we are doing in Hana on the bridges.

2

have at this point four bridges that have been --

3

gone through the first round, and so I can concur

4

with the request of Mr. Pontanilla.

5

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So it would be 200.

Yeah, 200.

Yeah.

Mr. Carroll.

Okay.

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

MS. KOLLER:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

MS. KOLLER:

15

You know, we

That's acceptable.
Any other comments?

Thank you.
Any objections?

No.

Okay.

We shall reduce 100,000.

Mr. Chair.
Yes, Tamara.
So that's 200,000 for District Road

Resurfacing for Hana.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

MS. KOLLER:

That is correct.
Okay.

And just a note for the Committee, the
-i

18

road improvements that were up above in Countywide,

19

that should be moved down to Highway Funds, so I'll

20

move it down below to Countywide Highway.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

Thank you.
Where?

What number is that, Chair,

I'm sorry?

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

930.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

933, 934, 935.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That should be under Highway Funds and not

4

General Fund.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7
8
9
10

Okay.

Oh, okay.

Thank you.

Page 28.

Any considerations '?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Highway Fund, Paia-Haiku.

Mr. Molina.

Yeah.

A reduction to 225 for Road

Resurfacing.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

11
12

Highway.

Thank you.
Any comments?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, Mr. Chair.

I had a

13

reduction of $100,000, leaving $200,000 for District

14

Road Resurfacing.

15
16
17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane.

Thank you,Mr. Chair.

Just to share

18

with the body, maybe, a thought that I have -- that

19

I have carried into this process is that I will

20

recognize, I think, what the Mayor and the

21

Administration have recognized that the reason for

22

the deferrals of the road resurfacing was because of

23

the extensive, large projects in these respective

24

districts.

25

not big road projects or highway projects, that the

And that if you notice where there was

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.

287

BF 04/29/04

1

funding for District Road Resurfacing was pretty

2

much left intact.
So I did not have any intention of reducing

3

4

what would be a normal schedule of road resurfacing

5

in these particular districts.

6

we are in a reduction mode, I would still ask the

7

body to reconsider any type of reduction from the

8

normal scheduling that we have historically

9

practiced in road resurfacing.

And although I know

And so I would ask

10

the members of the respective districts and the rest

11

of you, of course, that in the districts that did

12

not have large highway projects and that the road

13

resurfacing was left intact, I would ask you to

14

consider leaving them intact.

15

just a request for consideration, Chair.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And, again, that's

Thank you for that comment.

17

And, again, Members, it was -- and I haven't

18

reconfirmed it, but it has been the practice of the

19

County and the Council's way of appropriating that

20

those fuel taxes paid in the district remain in the

21

district for district use such as road resurfacing.

22

And so I can -- while I can appreciate your

23

comments, Members, I would say I would prefer to

24

defer to the member from the district as well as I

25

believe he had discussed with the Chair a
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consideration for a proviso to prioritize certain

2

street resurfacing requests.

3

this district --

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Chairman, I think that was in the

Makawao-Puka1ani-Kula for Makawao Avenue.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

Thanks.

8
9

So I don't if it's in

Yeah, I got that.

Yeah, thank you.

Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

And in light of Member Kane's

10

comments, I would withdraw my request to reduce the

11

300,000 for the Paia-Haiku, since I believe that was

12

originally appropriated --

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chairman.
-- if there's any objections.
Oh, I'm sorry.

Mr. Kane.
I apologize, Mr. Chair.

May I

18

request a very brief recess.

19

minute and I would like to approach, approach your

20

table.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

RECESS:

23

RECONVENE:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Okay.

It's just about a

We'll recess till 10:35.

(Gavel. )

10:31
10:38

(Gavel.)

Let us return to work.

you, Members, for the short recess.
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1

Let's see.

2

Fund, Paia-Haiku.

3

consideration.

4
5

I believe we are under Highway
I believe Mr. Molina withdrew his

Mr. Pontanilla, are you still moving your
consideration at this time?

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Yes, sir.

We have a consideration of a

8

reduction, $100,000 under Road Resurfacing.

9

Comments?

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Chair.

Mr. Molina.
I object to a 100,000 reduction.
you know, if we can reach a

13

can live with

14

compromise if that's the will of the body, but I

15

still think we need some funding there for road

16

resurfacing.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I

Unless you want to put forth a

18

number, the Chair has -- the Chair has honored

19

the -- through the years one objection automatically

20

does not move, automatically retains the current

21

status, so --

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24
25

Okay.

Okay.

Well, 250.

Thank you very much, Mr. Molina.

You heard the alternate consideration.
comments?
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1

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8
9

Mr. Pontanilla.

Okay.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Nope.

Thank you very much, Mr. Molina.
Mr. Chair, if you can just cite the

On line 947.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

District Road Resurfacing, Highway Funds,

Paia-Haiku.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

The revision is 50,000 reduction, net

revised is 250,000.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

Any objections?

number, please.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

No objections to that.

Any other comments?

10

12

Mr. Chair.

Thank you, Chair.

We are under Highway Fund, Makawao-

Pukalani-Kula.

Any considerations?

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20

$100,000 reduction.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I have consideration of

Any comments?
Mr. Chair, this is why I wanted to

23

do all the resurfacing one time, beoause it just

24

doesn't make sense, we're going around back and

25

forth on this.

But I would stay -- I would like to
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1

be equal to my partner and the rest of Upcountry and

2

say 250,000.

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9
10

Comments?
No objections.
Mr. Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
Yes.

I would also like to have a

proviso in this section, the proviso being Makawao
Avenue is top priority.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

I have no objections.

Okay.
Mr. Chair, if we look at the road

priority that was given to us by Public Works --

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I really hope that the Public

16

Works Department will find another way to set

17

priorities.

18

priority list.

19

something like that, or maybe -- I don't want to

20

lie.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24
25

And Makawao Avenue is down No. 15 or

Was it IS?

21

23

Because the street I live on is in that

15.

One portion is 15 and the other portion is

35.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

And the Makawao Avenue needs

a whole lot more than a whole number of streets
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1

above it.

It just doesn't make sense to me.

And

2

this is the second time I have told -- or I have --

3

Not second time.

4

live on was on the list, I told them, we don't need

5

it, go pave somebody else's street that's worse than

6

ours.

7

back on the list.

8

than Makawao Avenue, for sure.

9

neighbors will yell at me, they'd like a nice road,

The first time my street that I

And so we skipped it that time.

Now it's

It still is in better condition
So, I mean, maybe my

10

but, you know, it's a matter of priorities.

11

many people use that road?

And how

I mean, I'm not sure what they use -- what

12
13

kinds of things are involved with this.

And perhaps

14

one of the things that we might ask the

15

Administration to consider is that you set up a

16

little committee at each one of the districts and

17

have them tell you what the priorities are.

18

the ones who drive it every day, or drive around the

19

neighborhoods.

20

sure they'll be honest about what roads need to be

21

repaved and not just, oh, make sure mine's on the

22

list.

23

that would be interested, and let's address the

24

priorities that the community feels are the

25

priorities.

They're

And if you get a mix of people, I'm

So I think this is way we could use a group

Thank you.
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1
2
3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for those comments.
Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

I think I

4

couldn't have said it any better than Member

5

Tavares.

6

major thoroughfare for Upcountry Maui, and you have

7

big trucks, cattle trucks, dump trucks, all kinds of

8

heavy vehicles that traverse that road.

9

And I just would like to add that it's a

And there were two portions, I believe, on

10

that list that was given to us by Public Works.

11

the -- You know, it costs a lot of money to

12

resurface roads.

13

Avenue can be resurfaced with the appropriations

14

that we're recommending here, 250,000, but if they

15

can get to at least one portion, it would make a lot

16

of people happy in the area.

17

people coming from Haiku, Paia, Kula,

18

I would definitely agree to that proviso being put

19

in there.

20

know if it's more appropriate for us to specify from

21

what area in Makawao Avenue.

22

can -- we can discuss that with Staff.

23

I don't know if all of Makawao

Because you have
Pukalani.

Whichever part of Makawao Avenue,

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

If

Yeah.

I don't

And I guess maybe I

I would suggest Baldwin

24

Avenue to the Pukalani Bypass.

25

through Makawao Town.

That would take it
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Other comments?

If not, the

2

consideration is a reduction of 50,000 for a net

3

revised number of 250.

4

that the priority resurfacing shall be Makawao

5

Avenue from Baldwin Avenue toward the Pukalani

6

Bypass.

And that proviso be inserted

Any objections?

7

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

10

note --

II

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

enough.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you very much.
Mr. Chair, no objections, but a

Yes, Mr. Kane.
that the 250,000 may not be

That is, yeah, much understood, Mr. Kane.
I understood an approximate of

16

120,000 per lane mile.

17

than that, so -- Anyway, thank you, Chair.

18
19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

We're talking about more

Thank you.

Highway Fund, Wailuku-Kahului.

Any

20

considerations at this time on those projects listed

21

on page 28; Aleo Place, Lono Avenue, Market Street,

22

and East Waiko Road?

23
24
25

Okay.

Let us move to page 29.

Any other

considerations?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

I'm sorry, go ahead.
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1

yield.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Mr. Mateo.
Chairman, to be consistent, the

4

District Resurfacing, to be consistent with the

5

other districts we just dealt with, I would like to

6

bring that in line with the other two that we just

7

dealt with and reduce that amount by 100,000.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

9

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No obj e,ctions.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

Any other comments?

Yeah, this is a very big district.
Yes, thank you.

Okay.

No other comments?

Any objections?

Nope.

Okay.

Reduce 100,000 at this time, net

revised 500,000.

16

Highway Fund, Kihei-Makena.

17

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

Don't you dare.

250,000.

Mr. Nishiki, you just keep me going.
You can take my gym, you can take my

20

roundabout, you can take my sidewalks, you can take

21

my concrete roads, and I'll give you 50,000 more.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Mr. Nishiki, but you know the

23

Chair has continuously supported you in your gym,

24

your drive to get a gym built.

25

Okay.

Before I -- we address the District
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Resurfacing, I would say that I would recommend no

2

other changes at this time.
Mr. Nishiki did offer a reduction under

4

Resurfacing.

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

Any comments?

Okay.

No.

No.
Any objections to the consideration

by Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

No objections.

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
I do have a concern about the

13

Kumulani Drive Reconstruction Section, Concrete

14

Road.

15

steep grade and it has deteriorated significantly

16

and they felt that this was a priority.

17

that the body consider reinstating the 100,000 for

18

the KumulaniDrive, and then making an appropriate

19

adjustment in the Resurfacing.

It was explained to us that this road is on a

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

I would ask

I will ask Mr. Nishiki if he has a comment.
No comment.

Other comments by the Committee?

objections?

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

No objections.

I've got an objection.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

2

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I just don't know what the priority

3

is with the roads.

4

have been pointed out as one portion, I'd like to

5

speak to the road experts in the County to find out

6

if that is really the one. that we need to address.

7

So I would hate to take it out of -- again, another

8

100,000 out of the District Resurfacing.

9
10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And despite that Kumulani may

Mr. Nishiki, your objection is so

noted.
I will ask that we go back to the original

11
12

consideration as proposed by Mr. Nishiki at this

13

time, reduction 50,000 from Resurfacing.

14

comments?

Any other

Any objections?

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.
You know, and I want to --

Yes.
I just want to say something about

20

this.

And I don't want to be petty about it, you

21

know, it's -- If we really saw Kumulani as being the

22

road that really needs to be fixed, then in reality,

23

Members, we should have funded it just as we looked

24

at other areas in your districts and saw that, you

25

know, whatever street needed to be fixed.
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1

2

don't want to be petty, I just want to move on.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

3
4

Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.

Highway Fund, West

M~ui.

Any considerations

of what is on page 29?
Okay.

5

6

Okay.

Let us move forward.

Page 30, any

considerations?

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Johnson.
On line 1008 originally there had

10

been no funding in this.

11

made to add 200,000 to this, but because there were

12

two other projects that were listed, then I would

13

ask to remove 100,000 of money from the District

14

Resurfacing.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Our suggestion had been

Thank you.
And then if we could leave in --

17

I'll try to get an estimate for the Shaw Street.

18

I'm pretty sure that the estimate is right on with

19

Shaw Street.

20

I'll try and find out also on that one, but I

21

believe we're going to try to ask for other help in

22

the area from one of the resorts.

23

get that crossed down.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And then Napilihau, the lower road,

So we'll try to

Thank you very much, Ms. Johnson.
Members, any other comments?

Any objections?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.
Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
Just a comment.

A $100,000

6

resurfacing in a district is an unlikely occurrence

7

because it takes, again, contracting out.

8

don't know if Member Johnson feels comfortable with

9

the consideration, and the body, of course, to look

And I

10

at that number in total for those three, No.3, 4

11

and 5, incorporating it into a dollar amount and

12

then just provisoing that the focus is the Lower

13

Honoapiilani, as well as the Shaw Street sidewalk.

14

Just so we have some flexibility in being able to

15

incorporate additional resurfacing in the other part

16

of the district.

17

something that makes sense or not, but just a

18

consideration.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I don't know if that's

No.

I thank Chair Kane for the

20

comment, and that's perfectly fine to just put in I

21

guess it would be the 400,000 combination with the

22

provision that's listed on line 1009 and 1010.

23
24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

revision?

Okay.

First, Staff, are you clear on the
Thank you.

Comments by the members?

Any objections?
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Okay.

1
2

Thank you.

We shall do the revision.

Thank you very much, Mr. Kane and Ms. Johnson.

3

Highway Fund, Molokai.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman.

Mr. Mateo.
Chairman, in bringing it in line

7

with the other districts, I would request we reduce

8

that amount to 250.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10
11

Thank you.
Comments?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane.

And just echoing the comments, I

12

think, Mr. Chair, that you made about how on the

13

on our sister islands where they

14

rotation, every other year.

15

much as possible done while they're there.

16

would ask if Member Mateo would consider leaving

17

that number there so that they can get as much

18

accomplished when the work is going to be done.

19

that maybe at some later point we can look at a

20

reduction, if it's necessary, if there's a rotation.

21

Anyway, it's just for discussion to add to making,

22

hopefully, a better informed decision if that's

23

going to help make it a better one.

24

Chair.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

that there is a

And so we try to get as

Thank you,

Thank you.
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Any other comments?

1
2

You've heard the

consideration from Mr. Mateo.

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any objections?

No objections.

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.
Minus 50, huh?

Okay.

Highway Fund, Lanai.

We are

7

currently having some projects done, Members, and if

8

you'll note, in the long-range plan I do have a

9

multimillion dollar consideration in the second

10

five-year period of this decade for our major

11

drainage improvements that after completion will

12

include major resurfacing.

13

willing to allow some money that we could use for

14

maintenance resurfacing, and I am willing to reduce

15

this by $100,000, half.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So at this point I am

Half.

Any comments?
Chairman.

Mr. Mateo.
I think your offer is quite

21

generous, and I would have no problem with standing

22

on what exists right now, 200.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

I appreciate that, but I

24

believe Lanai wishes to do its fair share, too, Mr.

25

Mateo.

Thank you.
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Any objections?

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Nope.

We shall reduce at this point

4

$100,000 from the Lanai District Resurfacing, and

5

leave a net 100,000 at this time.
Highway Fund, Countywide.

b

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
Under Countywide Road Resurfacing and

10

Program, 30-14, representing level funding would

11

from '07 through 2010 is $500,000.

12

request to increase, I believe.

13

adjustments, Mr. Chair, that you made in your

14

original revision.

15

objection, having a level funding here for

16

Countywide, since this would deal with everything

17

throughout, kind of the catch-all when there's needs

18

that are restricted in the other communities.

19

this body consider, since we have taken care of -- I

20

think the intent was to, I think, accommodate the

21

zero balances in the '05 budget for other districts.

22

But because this body has recognized and have moved

23

forward with dollar figures in each of the

24

districts, that this number may be reduced to level

25

funding of $500,000.

There has been a

This was from the

And if the body has no

That

So that would be a reduction
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1

of 299,000 and -- 299,400 to make it an even

2

500,000, Chair.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

Okay.
Comments?

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

10

No objections.

Okay.

Anyobjections?

Reduction 299,400,

net revised amount of 500,000.

8
9

Thank you.

Countywide Speed Hump, any considerations?
COUNCIL MEMBERS:
CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

No objections.

Okay.

Seeing none, let us move forward.

Wheelchair ramps, any consideration?

12

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

Bikeway fund, Countywide?

No objection.

Bond Fund, Hana.
Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
I think we as a body have made a

19

decision on a total of four bridges, all, I think,

20

representing -- or having expiration dates.

21

only put on the table, whether it's making it

22

difficult or not, because of where we're at in our

23

shortage or being over, whichever one it is, that if

24

the body feels that biting the bullet on Paihi

25

bridge, which is the fourth of the four, which would
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1

reduce $680,000, I ask the body to put it on the

2

table.

3

about tonight if we are still significantly short

4

going into tomorrow in the homestretch, that this

5

might be one that we really think about as an option

6

for consideration, Chair.

7
8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And if not, then at least something to think

Okay.

Thank you.

Any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Mr. Carroll.

Thank you, Chair.

This is one of

10

those things that give us all nightmares.

11

obviously trying to trim the budget, but this is one

12

thing that's going to come home to us whether it's

13

now or a future Council.

14

future Council, the cost is going to be

15

extraordinarily high, more than double.

16

probably be triple what it is right now, because we

17

will not be able to get the Federal funding because

18

this is the second and last chance on these.

19

We're

And if it comes to a

I know it's a hard call.

It will

And it's not just

20

that it's Hana, it's how far are we going to think

21

in the future and are we going to do -- are we going

22

to bite the bullet now, or are we going to pass it

23

on in the fairly near future to not only another

24

Council, but to our taxpayers who are going to have

25

to pay for this.

So I would hope that everybody
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1

could sleep on this and we could give it some

2

serious consideration tomorrow.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4
5

Thank you.

Thank you for your comments.
Any other comments?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

Ms. Johnson.

And I don't know if our

6

Budget Director could check on the status with

7

either Public Works or the Administration, because

8

there were two letters that went out on both of

9

these bridges asking for extensions in terms of the

10

implementation.

11

there is any possibility at all that we could get

12

some kind of indication on those two.

13

the Administration has been trying work both with

14

State and Federal agencies on giving this extension,

15

so I did note that there were letters that had gone

16

out and we just don't know what the status is.

17

if the Budget Director could please check on that

18

for us.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

MR. AGSALOG:

21

Chair.

I know that

So

Mr. Agsalog.
I'll check on it tomorrow morning, Mr.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

And I would just like to know if

Thank you very much for your assistance.
Thank you.

Any other comments?

Okay.

If not, you

have heard the consideration that we think about
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Paihi bridge, and tomorrow at the appropriate time

2

we will bring forward the consideration.

3

Bond Fund, Makawao-Pukalani-Kula.

4

Bond Fund, Wailuku-Kahului.

5

Bond Fund -- Okay.

6

anything Government Facilities?

And under Kahului we have

7

Parks and Recreation?

8

Sanitation?

9

Sewers?

10

Other?

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
Is it appropriate that this

14

discussion take place tomorrow on this item?

15

that the Committee is in receipt of specific

16

documentation itemizing specifically the components

17

of the Central Maui land acquisition request by the

18

Mayor, but for the sake of brevity I ask you, Chair,

19

is it preferable that we have this discussion

20

tomorrow, since you are looking tonight at consensus

21

on reductions?

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I know

I would prefer that we maintain what we

23

have been doing.

And I will provide the Committee

24

with its opportunity to have full discussion on the

25

consideration of the Central Maui acquisition.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Chairman.

Thank you.

3

Bond Fund, Kihei-Makena.

4

Bond Fund, West Maui.

5

Bond Fund, Molokai.

6

Government Facilities.

7

Sewer.

8

Bond Fund, Countywide, Government Facilities.

9

Countywide Parks and Recreation.
Road Improvements.

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kane.
Under 1121 and 1122, Drainage

14

Improvements and Safety Improvements, these two

15

numbers represent what would be level funding, and

16

at this time I will be asking for reductions of

17

from the total million dollar appropriation of

18

250,000.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.
125,000 from each entry.

Okay.

Thank you.

Comments?

22

23

?:

No.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Okay.

No objections?

No objections.
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1
2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

375,000.

Drainage revised to 375.

Safety,

Thank you very much, Mr. Kane.

3

Countywide Sewer.

4

Countywide Other.

5

Equipment Bond.

6

Page 34, Lapse Bond, Wailuku-Kahului

7

Sanitation.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

Bond --

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

On the Countywide Equipment

Yes.
-- was there a consideration for

14

that -- for a truck that we talked about earlier,

15

the vacuum?

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

Thank you very much for that reminder.
Members, I believe when we were in the Public

18

Works we decided to relocate the vacuum pump truck

19

at 250,000.

20

MS. KOLLER:

It's on page 20.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

MS. KOLLER:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Pardon me?
Page 20.
Page 20, thank you.

We decided to move it

24

to this area, so we will add that piece of equipment

25

of 250,000 for the vacuum tank truck under the
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Equipment Bond consideration at this time.

2

objections?

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

No objections.

Okay.

Thank you.

Any other considerations on equipment bond?

5

6

Any

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I had a question.

And, you know,

8

this may have been answered previously, but I can't

9

recall.

When we purchase vehicles, whether it's

10

vehicles in this section or any other area of the

11

County, do we engage in leasing or in outright

12

purchase?

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We basically purchase; Ms. Johnson.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And that I think is something that

15

I don't know what the ultimate cost savings would be

16

or if it would add to.

17

appropriate place would be particularly Police,

18

because, you know, they have, you know, different

19

requirements, let's say, than other vehicles.

20

would -- I would ask just from a policy perspective

21

to look at wherever we have vehicles that are being

22

purchased, if we could look at that as a fleet

23

management policy in general.

24

possible, but I can only tell you that if you're

25

leasing versus the actual write-off, it may make a

And I don't know if the

I don't know if it's
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1

difference in actually how that's -- how that

2

appears in our -- I guess in our budget.

3

throw that out there because I've thought of it.

4

And I don't know if it would make any difference,

5

but I would like us at some point in time to look

6

into that.

7
8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So I just

Thank you.

Okay.

Thank you.

That is a reasonable

request.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
I'm glad that Member Johnson is

12

reiterating what I think we've been -- we've been

13

asking -- Actually, we've been asking specifically

14

about lease program from 1999, as far as I can

15

remember, as long as I've been here.

16

I think it is something that is worth looking at,

17

because you pay for what you use, and it's a

18

depreciating piece of equipment.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20
21

Okay.
Okay.

But I think

Thank you.

Thank you.
We're almost done, Members, hang in

there.

22

Lapse Bond Proceeds, page 34, Sanitation.

23

Sewer.

24

Lapse Bond, Kihei-Makena.

25

Lapse Bond, West Maui.
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1

Lapse Bond, Molokai.

2

Parks and Recreation.

3

Sanitation.

4

Park Assessment Funds, Hana.

5

Park Assessment Funds, Paia-Haiku.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Chair, I think this was the

7

one where we were going to the full 33,000 or

8

whatever was left.

9
10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, thank you very much.

I was just

giving members one more opportunity.

11

Park Assessment, Makawao-Pukalani-Kula.

12

Park Assessment, Kihei-Makena.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
Yes.

There's a Park Assessment

16

for Wailuku-Kahului I think fits in this order, and

17

I am suggesting that 86,000 from Park Assessment be

18

indicated for the Boundless Playground.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you very much.
So that would bring their total up

21

to 236,000, which should be more than adequate to

22

get them a real good start on this project.

23
24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Wait now.

One quick check for the

Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I guess that's a double-check to
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1

see if those funds are available, but on my sheet

2

it's not marked as having any items withdrawn from

3

it.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Members, just for your

5

information -- Did we make an adjustment, Tamara, on

6

page 26 regarding Boundless?

7
8
9
10
11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Oh, Mr. Chair, I think I'm jumping

the gun.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
that.

I don't think we had a decision on

It's just I'm reading my notes.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr.--

Yeah.

I believe that at this time there

14

was no adjustments under General Fund for Boundless

15

Playground during this round.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kane.
You took my comments as an objection.

Yes, I did.
So it didn't move forward.

Okay.

But the Chair will review the use of

that Park Assessments in the next round.

23

Where am I?

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Park Assessment, Kihei is next.

Thank you.
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1

Park Assessments, Kihei-Makena.

2

Park Assessments, West Maui.

3

Waste Water, Wailuku-Kahului.

4

State Revolving Loan Fund, Wailuku-Kahului.

5

State Revolving Loan Fund, Makawao-

6

Pukalani-Kula.

7

These are the big ones, Members.

8

State Revolving Loan Fund, West Maui.

9

And we are done for this evening.

Okay.

10

Thank you very much for your hard work today,

11

Members, this evening.
Okay.

12

Any announcements?

We'll see you at 9:00, and then if

13

need be we will -- the Chair will provide and invoke

14

recess for the Committee to have consideration on

15

the adjustments.

16

Okay.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Okay.
Okay.

We are still in session, Members.
Sorry.
Any further announcements?
We shall reconvene -- not reconvene.

20

We shall return at 9:00 a.m. tomorrow morning.

21

meeting is adjourned.

22
23
24

(Gavel.)

COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:
ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

11:16 p.m.

25
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2

3
4

C E R T I F I CAT E
STATE OF HAWAII

5
6

SS.
CITY AND COUNTY OF MAUl

7

8

9

I, Sandra J. Gran, Certified Shorthand Reporter for the
State of Hawaii, hereby certify that the proceedings were

10

taken down by me in machine shorthand and was thereafter

11

reduced to typewritten form under my supervision; that the

12

foregoing represents to the best of my ability, a true and

13

correct transcript of the proceedings had in the foregoing

14

matter.

15

I further certify that I am not attorney for any of the

16

parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the cause.

17

DATED this 27th day of May, 2004, in Maui, Hawaii.

18
19
20
21
22

Sandra J. Gran
Hawaii CSR 424
Notary Public for Hawaii
My Commission Expires: 5/14/08
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